&

F %
C 1 X RGN
Q000000000

ANNUAL REPORT
2020/2021

ELEGANCE OPTICAL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WY EREEEBRFRAR
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(MREREEIMRILIZERAT)
Stock Code A% 15 1X5% : 907

=
=]

©0000000000000:-000000
©00000000000000000000




Contents H §§

Corporate Information 2
NAVE R
Management Discussion and Analysis 4

B E R A Mo AT

Environmental, Social and Governance Report 12
RE Mg RERRSE

Profiles of Directors

EHEN 20
Corporate Governance Report 23
PEERRE

Report of the Directors 41
Exewd

Independent Auditor’'s Report 51
B AZ B

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 64

FeEBmK

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 65
mertEbaR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI R 66
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 68
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 69

= A ==
%ﬂ'\éfﬁﬁ/}wi%

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 79
e R RN

Particulars of Properties
= 207



Corporate Information

LFRH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Baodong (Chairman)

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun

Mr. Wong Chong Fai

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Man Wai Lun

Mr. Cheng Chun Man

Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Chun Man (Chairman)
Mr. Man Wai Lun

Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Man Wai Lun (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Chun Man

Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Man Wai Lun (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Chun Man

Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

AUDITORS
CCTH CPA Limited

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square

338 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong

EEE
BTES
TERLE(EE)
EEBELE
EEIE LA

BIAFPTES
SR B
IR R 55
FFXOE R

EXESE
WIRR & (/)
X B2
HFXOK S

REEST
B ()
B4R R 5
FFXOE St

MIMEST
BB E ()
B iR R
BFIBSLE

FRERRTT

ERRT (BE)BRAA

BIRIRTTBRA A
BB

RIEXRESFEAR DA

ABWE
BEB L

FERGBFERE
HABHBEERAA

Hri A

5 2 383385
ERRZFEH2H
331£3301-04%

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report



Corporate Information
LFEH

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Room 22, 22/F

On Hong Commercial Building

145 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/eleganceoptical

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 907

ETERMBBFRELE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda

st i 3% S5 B2

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

MMEREREEERMEL

BB

AT

e FFE1455%
TREEKNE
221822=

8 s

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/eleganceoptical

% 193 1K 5%
BEEBERSHFABER AT 907

SHENNEHEEEEGR AR 2020/2021 £ 3



4

Management Discussion and Analysis

TEHEEBARRSH

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (“Year”), Elegance Optical
International Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”) recorded
a loss before tax of approximately HK$18.2 million. The loss
attributable to the owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$15.3 million (2020: approximately HK$98.4
million).

Total revenue for the Year was approximately HK$53.9 million.
Compared to approximately HK$66.2 million recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2020, it represents a decrease of approximately
18.6%. The Group's operations comprised of 5 segments, namely,
(i) manufacturing and trading of optical frames and sunglasses,
(i) property investment, (iii) debts and securities investment, (iv)
film investment and distribution and (v) energy business (2020:
comprised of 4 segments, namely, (i) manufacturing and trading of
optical frames and sunglasses, (ii) property investment, (iii) debts
and securities investment and (iv) film investment and distribution).
The largest part of total revenue came from the sales of optical
frames and sunglasses. This decreased by approximately 21.7%
or approximately HK$49.0 million (2020: HK$62.6 million). The
decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”), which has adversely
affected the export sales of the Group's optical frames and
sunglasses, especially in European countries.

For property investment, rental income decreased slightly from
approximately HK$2.1 million in 2020 to approximately HK$1.9
million in 2021. However, it remained relatively insignificant to the
Group's operation.

For debts and securities investment segment, the Group did not
record any revenue for both years. The fair value of the Group's
securities investment amounted to approximately HK$5.3 million as
at 31 March 2021. The management will continue to adopt prudent
approach under the volatile financial market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS I

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

For film investment and distribution segment, Filmko Culture
Limited, the holding company of a major film distributor in the
People’'s Republic of China (“PRC"), whose 25% interest was
acquired by the Group in July 2018, showed good performance
in its film distribution business in the PRC. That company issued
five films this Year and recorded a profit after tax of approximately
HK$54.9 million, which had exceeded the profit guarantee.

For the energy business, the Group acquired a company engaged
in sale and trading of liquefied petroleum gas products in the Year.
The business is yet to generate revenue to the Group in the Year.

PROSPECT

For the Year, the outbreak of the Pandemic together with
subsequent lockdown measures had substantial and profound
impact on the global economy. Although, with the introduction
of the vaccine, the Pandemic is expected to be gradually under
control in long run, it is expected that the business of the Group
will still face certain challenges in the short term. Therefore, the
Group will carefully assess the business environment in which the
Group is engaging and adjust its resources allocation accordingly.

For the manufacturing and trading of optical frames and sunglasses
business, the cost control measure has shown initial achievements.
The Group will continue to optimise its cost effectiveness so as to
mitigate any uncertainty and influence brought by the Pandemic.

For the film investment and distribution business, on the first half
of 2020, the film industry in the PRC faced a devastating blow due
to the Pandemic. However, with the ease of Pandemic in PRC and
series of favorable policies on the film industry being issued by
the PRC government, the PRC box office has shown remarkable
progress. The total PRC box office recorded RMB20.4 billion,
surpassing North America as the largest film market in the world for
the first time. The number of screens in PRC kept a growth trend,
with 5,794 newly increased screens to a total of 75,581 screens
in 2020, ranking first in the world in movie screens for years. As
the PRC film market has quickly emerged from the doldrums, the
Group believes in the comprehensive strength and resilience of the
PRC film market and expects its continuing growth in long term.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS I

PROSPECT (Continued)

Moreover, the Company will from time to time examine its existing
business and investments and look for appropriate business
and investment opportunities with the aim of diversifying the
Company'’s business and income streams. With the view that along
with the recovery of the economy activities, the demand of energy
resources, particularly in liquefied petroleum gas, will surge in
future. Thus, the Group started to do the layout for the energy
industry by setting up Oasis City Group Limited as a foothold to
capture any opportunity arose. The Group is reviewing its existing
resources, including the experience, expertise and network of the
Company's directors and management, with the aim of exploring
and developing its energy business.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had no capital commitments,
which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2020: Nil). As at
31 March 2021, the Company had no contingent liabilities (2020:
Nil) in respect of corporate guarantees given to banks for the
general banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

()  On 19 May 2020, Elegance Optical Investments Limited
("Elegance Optical Investments”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the provisional sale
and purchase agreement with Healthmark Medical Supply
Co., Limited (“Healthmark”) to dispose the property located
at Factory B7, 3/F, Block B, Mai Hing Industrial Building (of
Hing Yip Industrial Centre, Phase |, Blocks A and B), Nos.
16-18 Hing Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong at
a consideration of HK$10.26 million (the “First Disposal”).
Healthmark is principally engaged in the business of medical
equipment supplies. Further details of the First Disposal is set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 20 May 2020.

(i) On 9 September 2020, Elegance Optical Investments entered
into the provisional sale and purchase agreement with Power
Keen (Hong Kong) Limited (“Power Keen") to dispose the
property located at B4, 8/F, Block B, Mai Hing Industrial
Building, 16-18 Hing Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong at a consideration of approximately HK$16 million (the
“Second Disposal”). Power Keen is principally engaged in
investment holding and the ultimate beneficial owner of the
Power Keen is a connected person at subsidiary level of the
Company. Upon the completion of the Second Disposal, the
Company has leased back the property for the Group's use as
office. Further details of the Second Disposal is set out in the
Company's announcement dated 9 September 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS I

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

(Continued)

(i) On 4 February 2021, Evergreen Palm Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which Evergreen Palm Limited
agreed to acquire 100% equity interest of Gulf Energy (China)
Limited ("Gulf Energy”) at a consideration of HK$20 million.
Gulf Energy is principally engaged in the sale and trading
of liquefied petroleum gas products. Upon completion,
Gulf Energy has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company since then.

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE
OF PROCEEDS

Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 15 July 2020, the Company conducted a placing of 121,310,000
new ordinary shares to not less than six independent placees at a
price of HK$0.1 each to raise a gross proceeds of approximately
HK$12.1 million (the "2020 Placing”). The net proceeds from the
2020 Placing (after deducting the placing commission for the 2020
Placing and other relevant expenses) were approximately HK$11.63
million, which were intended to be applied for (i) general working
capital of the Group and/or (ii) any possible investments in the
future when opportunities arise. The 2020 Placing was completed
on 29 July 2020. As at 31 March 2021, HK$7.8 million was utilised.
The remaining amount has been fully utilised as at the date of this
report.

For further details of the 2020 Placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 15 July 2020 and 29 July
2020.

Placing and subscription of new shares under
general mandate

On 20 January 2021 the Company entered into a subscription and
placing agreement with the controlling shareholder and a placing
agent in relation to the subscription of a maximum number of
45,000,000 new shares of the Company (the “Subscription”) and
placing of 10,000,000 new shares of the Company (the “2021
Placing”) respectively at the price of HK$0.381 per share. The net
proceeds from the Subscription and 2021 Placing (after deducting
the placing commission for the 2021 Placing and other relevant
expenses) were approximately HK$54.1 million and were intended
to be applied for (i) approximately HK$3%9.1 million for possible
investments and potential business enhancement strategies in
favour of the Company in future, including but not limited to
investment in debts and securities, film investment projects, energy
related business and other potential business development, when
such opportunities arise; and (i) the remaining approximately
HK$15.0 million for general working capital of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS I

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE
OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

Placing and subscription of new shares under
general mandate (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, HK$35.5 million had been used for investment
and acquisition. No proceed from the 2021 Placing was applied
for the general working capital of the Group. As at the date of this
report, approximately HK$1.0 million has been used as general
working capital. The unutilized amount is expected to be utilized
as intended in the coming 12 months subject to future market
developments.

For further details of the Subscription and 2021 Placing, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 20 January
2021, 28 January 2021 and 8 February 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Grant of Share Options

On 19 March 2021, the Company has resolved to grant share
options (the “Share Options”) to eligible participants, subject
to the acceptance by the grantees, to subscribe for a total of
60,000,000 Shares pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by
the Company. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
grantees have accepted the grant of share options on the dates in
April 2021, the date on which the share options became effective,
and thereafter the grantees are eligible to exercise the share
options immediately.

The fair value of the relevant share options at these effective dates
is estimated to be approximately HK$50.0 million in aggregate,
which has been charged to profit or loss in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2022.

Further details regarding the grant of share options are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 19 March 2021 and
25 March 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS I

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's financial position with cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$40.1 million (2020: HK$28.4 million), short-term
borrowings of approximately HK$23.4 million (2020: HK$30.5
million) and the debt to equity ratio (expressed as a percentage
of non-current liabilities over equity attributable to owners of the
Company) is approximately 7.4% as at 31 March 2021 (2020: 12.1%).
The non-current liabilities of the Company mainly comprised of
deferred tax liabilities, deposit received, interest bearing other
borrowings and lease liabilities amounting to approximately HK$2.0
million, HK$0.1 million, HK$Nil and HK$18.9 million respectively
(2020: HK$2.4 million, HK$0.1 million, HK$8.3 million and HK$17.0
million) which came up a total amount of approximately HK$21.0
million as at 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$27.7 million). The Group's
equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 March 2021
amounted to approximately HK$283.4 million (2020: HK$229.4
million).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group employed 235 (2020: 271) full time
employees in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Salaries, bonuses
and benefits are determined with reference to market terms and
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee, and are subject to review from time to time.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Being one of the major manufacturers and exporters of optical
frames, the Group has put its emphasis on product quality and
production technology development. Putting the customers’
needs on the highest priority, the Group always strives to provide
customers with first class service and full satisfaction.

The Group is also actively identifying and exploring other
investments and business opportunities to broaden its assets and
revenue base. Potential acquisitions or mergers will be assessed by
the Board for expansion of the business segments of the Group.
The Board believes diversified investments are beneficial to the
interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.

RBEERMBER
RZZE-_—F=ZA=+—8 2£ENHK
Ko BIR & MR & FE Y 4%140,100,000% 7T
— T — F 528,400,000 T)  EEIEE
#923,400,000/8 7T ( —ZF = Z 4 : 30,500,000
BTN BEEEZLE (UERBHEE
EARARAEBAEBEEZNEILEET)D
7A% (ZZE_FBF:121%) - R T - —
FZA=Z+—B AQRMIFERDEGE
THELEHRBAEE BWRIZE B EME
BERAEAREAN 9 5#%2,000,000% 5T »
100,0007% 7T « = 7% 7T % 18,900,0005% 7T (=
T — T4 :2,400,0005 7T * 100,000 JT
8,300,0007% 7t 17,000,000 7T ) * & 4
#$21,000,000% 7T ( =& = Z 4 : 27,700,000
BIL) RZE-_—F=ZA=+—8 &2
B HE A A FE (L 2N 5 B 4 %= 4 A283,400,000
BT ( —ZF —Z 4 229,400,000 7T ) °

& B8 & 37 Bl B 5
RZBZ—F=A=+—H AEENRFEH
A R EBIEA235% (ZSE_FF 1 2714)
2HBES - AEBL2EMHEEALERE
BrRE - ERMKERETH S AKLE
o WA EITRES -

H& nwn
EREfmES
—E-FF )

— ==

EHENA BRI
ARERIERARPEHRE OB —
—HEBEQHERLERNBR KEH
—HEREEBERESE L BOAEFR
BB BN —RRT -

RN AFEEZERE R

AEBTLEBYERRREMRERE
BHe UITREEERPRAEZR -EFE
B BEERBERAHER UHERRE
BEBLIM-EFERE" Txﬁ TiEE
MR AEE MR BN E

SHEXEREEBBAR DA 2020/2021 £ 9



10

Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS I

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) and are in
addition to the matters referred to the Management Discussion and
Analysis.

In the normal course of business, the Group's operations, business
performance, financial position and prospects may be exposed to
the following risks and uncertainties:

1. Economic Conditions and Market Risk

The impact of economic conditions on consumer confidence
and buying habits will affect the sales, revenue and results
of the Group. The economic growth or decline in respective
geographical markets that affected consumer spending
on our products will also affect the Group's business. The
Group continues to implement its strategies to develop and
strengthen penetration of different geographical markets
thereby reducing its dependence on specific markets.

2. Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, loan and interest receivables, equity
investments, amount due from a joint venture, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, deposits received,
deferred income, obligation under finance leases and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings. The management will
closely monitor the risks attributable to those assets should
there be any significant exposure arise in the future. Details of
the Group's credit and liquidity risks are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS I

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

3.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets
and liabilities, mainly loan and interest receivables, interest
bearing bank and other borrowings and bank balances at
prevailing market interest rates. The Group's interest rate
risk relates primarily to its interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings subject to negotiations on expiry/renewal date.
The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Commodities Risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of
commodities used as raw materials in the manufacturing
process, primarily cellulose acetate and potassium gold
cyanide. While the Group may be able to partially offset
these fluctuations with a flexible pricing policy, the Group
bears the risks of fluctuation in the costs of these materials.
Accordingly, rising prices for commodities have affected and
are expected to continue to affect the Group's cost of goods
sold in the form of higher raw materials prices. On the other
hand, decreases in prices for commodities may affect the
value of the Group's inventories. The Group currently does
not use any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to
commodities risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant commodities risk should the need arise.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi (“RMB"”) and United Stated dollar
("USD"). As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the USD, the
Group does not foresee any material exchange risk in this
respect. The management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BE-HERELHSE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This report highlights its Environmental, Social, and Governance
(the "ESG") performance by the Group, with disclosure reference
made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("”Stock Exchange”).

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two
areas, namely, environmental and social areas of the business
operations in the PRC and Hong Kong including the offices, 2
factories in the PRC, retail shops in the PRC and Hong Kong.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report in this ESG report, key stakeholders including investors,
shareholders and employees have been involved in regular
engagement sessions to discuss and to review areas of attention
which will help the Group meets its potential growth and be
prepared for future challenges.

SUSTAINABILITY VISION

Our vision and aspiration are:

1. To be a pioneer and a leader in the industry with a portfolio
of transformative and innovative products for our customers;

2. To ensure that our business is sustainable and profitable
providing healthy and long-term returns to our shareholders;
and

3. To build a high-performance team with good business culture
and robust engagement of internal and external stakeholders.

Our commitments are:

1. To do business in environmentally-friendly way to conserve
resources;
2.  To create a positive impact and contribute to our

communities; and

3. To be an effective organization that enhances integrity and
high operational standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELRSE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. IR
Type of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting AEBRBREPBEESIREN A
period was mainly electricity, gasoline, water, paper and K HROR C EEEYEBERR R -
waste.
The business does not involve in production related air and ZEBWEIRER R T )5 EHE
land pollutions which are regulated under the laws in Hong WEE FHESEXBEBRPEIELAE
Kong and in the PRC. FTARE -
Total floor area coverage for the Group was 479,722 sq.ft. NEBMBERREEER479,722
(2020: 479,722 sq.ft) and the Group accounts for 100% of FHER(ZEZFF:1479,722F%
emissions from its operations in the PRC and Hong Kong. ER) MASEERPBRRES ZED
EEBERE 2100% ©
Greenhouse Gas Emission im 2= R B HE
Change in
Scope of Greenhouse Emission Emission
Gas Emissions Emission Sources (in tonnes of CO.e) (in percentage)
ERE EREZ(
mERBHENEE BEROKRR (M-S LS Eat) (B5EL)
31 March 31 March
2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020
—EC--F “R-RF BT HH
ZEA=+—-H ZA=+—H ZZT-TFUE
Scope 1
&E
Direct Emission Unleaded Petroleum 53.0 60.8 (12.8%)
HEHN Consumed by
Company owned fleet
RRTEHERL
B § )7
Scope 2
gE2
Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 2,194.2 2,802.4 (21.7%)
142 HE TR BAEN
Water Consumption 12.5 31.62 (60.5%)
ke
Sewage Consumption 4.1 29.18 (85.9%)
7K H #E
Scope 3
EE3
Other Indirect Emission Paper Consumption 11.5 35 (67.1%)
HAth 8 4 B A BRHRE
Total 227.5 2,959.0
4 =

WA
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Removal of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELRSE

BRREREHBE

Unit 2021 2020 Changes

B Z®-—F _—T-THF g1t

Total Greenhouse Gas Emitted (a) tCOse 2,275.3 2,952.3 (22.9%)
BERBHENEE(Q) ZELREE

Total Floor Area Coverage (b) ft? 450,089 479,722 (6.2%)
FiEE 2 BEEMEE (b) FHER

Annual Emission Intensity (c) = (a)/(b) tCO,e/ft? 0.01 0.01 0%
FEHBREE () = (a)/(b) —ELREE
S ERER

There was 2,952.3 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and
nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group's operation in the
reporting period. The annual emission intensity was 0.01
tCO,e/ft? (2020: 0.01).

Water

Water consumption by the Group was 28,247 m3 (2020:
103,429 m3), with water intensity of 0.06 m3/m? (2020: 0.22
m3/m?). The Group actively promotes water efficient practices
so as to reduce water wastage caused by human error and
unintentional switching mistake.

Electricity

The electricity consumption by the Group was 3,124,825 kWh
(2020: 3,991,005 kWh), with an energy intensity of 6.9 kWh/m?
dropped from last year (2020: 8.3 kWh/m?) despite positive
business growth. The Group continues its commitment in
installing and switching to energy-saving lighting fixtures and
sourcing energy efficient equipment to ensure functioning in
optimal conditions and efficiency.

Gasoline

A total of 31,545 liters of gasoline (2020: 36,219 liters) was
used for motor vehicles and production equipment in the
reporting period, contributing to 53.0 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (2020: 60.8 tonnes).

AEBEBRBERHZAERE (X
ER_EMH FhkEATE)FK
BR29523 —_ AL EE FEH
MEE R F 77 RR0.01HE — /1L

EE2E(ZEZFF:001)

Ak

NEE 7 BKE B28,2473 L K (=
T -FE 103,429 FK) - BKBRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELRSE

Paper

The Group continues to practise paper saving initiatives, such
as default double-sided printing, reminder for staff to have
environmentally friendly photocopying habit, and separated
collection of waste paper for effective recycling. A total of 2.59
tonnes of paper (2020: 7.89 tonnes) has been used for daily
office operations and advertising materials such as leaflet,
catalogue, sales kit.

Non-Hazardous Wastes

Wastes from the Group’s operation includes cellulose acetate
sheets, packaging materials, scrap metal, scrap equipment
and scrap papers for production and office use for sales and
marketing purposes.

All of the aforesaid wastes have been collected by licensed
recycling companies. Packaging materials such as paper
boxes and carton containers used for packaging were also
collected by licensed recycling companies.

AEBEEE RN BEEE Hl
FEREMANE REBIEERRY
ENH B8 R D BIUREBE 4R A S5 B B UK -
HEMRAZEBERESDE (NEE -
EmBERAEEBSR) MTAHKERE E
B2 59ME (=T = F 4 7.890F) o

BEBRZRY

AEBMEGRELZ BENARIEL
ERHEREHNDARORBE S
BiR-2ENH EESE BERE
R B4 -

FrE LM EEEYE M5 E R A K
& BEMANBEDH (NARME R
RE) IR FF AR O U~ B

SOCIAL B. #E
Employment and Labour Practices EBlERSGETESR
Employment &R
The Group had a total number of 235 employees as of RZZEZ—-—F=A=+—H Xx&H
31 March 2021 (2020: 271), in which 100% was working as full BEHRHEBZ(ZEBE_FF 27118
time staff. 5 EHI100%EEHET-
Employee’s Age Distribution EEFRIMH
56 and
18-25 26-35 36-45 46-55 above
18-258% 26-358; 36-458% 46-55% 56 RLLE
2021 —8--& 2% 14% 37% 36% 11%
2020 —T-TF 15% 21% 32% 24% 8%

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract
and retains talents. Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on a
yearly basis based on performance appraisals and the market
trend. Employees are entitled to year-end bonus, mandatory
provident fund, medical insurance, various types of paid leave
in addition to annual leave and sick leave.

AEBREAEBFHZHMWM BSH#
T HENMEMNFSE ARSI RBEA
F-BIHMNZAERFHERTESE
EmEFRTAAE - BREAIZEAF
RIEAL I TEE BERERRUR
FREBBAIINZZBEHERDY -
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The Group regularly reviews employee handbook which
outlines the Group's key messages, policies, procedures,
promotion channel, compensation and benefits, occupational
health and safety, complaint and whistleblowing channels.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELEE

AEBEHRIBEIFM EPEHI
FRAASBZERME BE BF-
%ﬂ“%%ﬁ%ﬁ%&?ﬁﬂ BERRER

Annual Turnover Rate FERAR
56 and
18-25 26-35 36-45 46-55 above
18-25p% 26-355% 36-458; 46-558 S56RRLLL
2021 :@:—ﬁ 19% 45% 29% 6% 0%
2020 —TZTF 16% 30% 13% 19% 22%
Occupational Health and Safety Data BERREZZHE
2021 2020
—F-—F —T_FTF
Work related fatality E TERRI T 0 0
Work injury cases > 3 days ITHER(ZRN3A) 0 0
Work injury < 3 days I (PR38) 0 0
The total days lost due to work injury ET{5EBXATIEE 0 0
Employee Health and Safety BERERZZ
The Group commits to ensure safe and healthy working rEER I ERAEERMZERE
environment for employees and to inspire and strengthen RO TERE - WHBRZERESE

workforce regardless of their age, gender and ethnical
backgrounds. With the aging population being a long-term
demographic trend in Hong Kong, the Group has a
sustainable workforce in this perspective.

The Group regularly reviews the employees’ health and safety
procedure to safeguard employees’ well-being. Briefing,
training, news and tips are provided to employees to raise
their awareness on safety production process.

There was no lost day due to work injury in this reporting
period. The management will continue its effort in
strengthening the Group's occupational health and safety
performance.

THRBENFR ENMRERER &
FEEAOZRICRARMBENESR
T AEBERUESTHEC A FENS
8-

AEBERRTEERERLERF
URERERE - AEEAEBREH
B HIERARRER URARSE
BRLEEERFHNES-
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B-ERERSEERIMBAEERZ
BERENRZ 2R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELRSE

Labour Standard

Neither child nor forced labour was in the Group's operations
in the reporting period. It is in compliance with the
Employment Ordinances, both in Hong Kong and the PRC in
terms of employment management.

The recruitment process is strictly abided by the guidelines
of the Group’s Human Resource Department. Every job
applicant is required to fill in their information in a recruitment
questionnaire, which is checked by Human Resource
Department to ensure information’s accuracy. This also allows
the Group to hire suitable candidate in accordance with the
job requirements and candidates’ expectations.

Employment Communication

The Group actively engages and motivates employees
through various communication channels. The regular update
on website keeps employees updated on corporate news and
activities. The Group also organized annual dinner, festival-
related celebration, sport and volunteer works, etc. to nourish
a greater sense of belonging and to provide enhanced
communication channels between senior management and
general staff. The Group believes having better transparent
governance and investing efforts and hours on our best asset,
employees, is the key to success of a sustainable business.

Development and Training
Comprehensive professional training is provided to
employees to deliver top services to our customers.

Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement,
and compensation and benefits. The employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities on the
basis of gender, ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual
orientation, age, marital status, family status, retirement,
disability, pregnancy or any other discrimination prohibited by
applicable law. The Group also appreciates the importance
of cultural diversity in the development of the business, and
employs employees in a wide range of ages, genders, and
ethnicities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELRSE

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

A strict tendering process is also in place to provide a fair
and transparent platform for securing the best supplier for
procurement of all equipment, products and services.

Supplier

Suppliers for products, semi-products, spare parts, raw,
treatment and packaging materials range from France,
United Kingdom, Germany, ltaly, Japan, Taiwan, the PRC
and Hong Kong. They are selected based upon rational
and clear criteria, such as production process, quality
management system, regulatory requirement compliance,
operating capacity, sample availability for testing, packaging,
management’s commitment, training policy and procedure,
price, delivery assurance, and product recall policy, so as
to procure superior goods and services from the most
competitive sources. Additional information such as
observation results after suppliers’ production plant visits
is used to evaluate the suppliers in order to have the best
selected providers. The Group also monitors the overall
performance of selected suppliers by conducting vendor
audits with documented reports to substantiate the selection
and on-going cooperation.

Product

To provide top quality services to customers, the Group
carefully sourced its raw materials and equipment with
standardized procurement procedure and policies. The
Group's procurement policy and its comprehensive
procurement management systems help screening out
undesirable products in the aspects of raw materials
and ingredients selection, product formulation, product
packaging, quality management system in factories,
transportation, etc.

Product Responsibility: Product recall policy

The Group maintains a good record of zero product recall
this year, nevertheless the Group continues its commitment
to consumer safety and protection by having product recall
procedures and policy in place.
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BR -EREIEE

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policy

The Group's Information Technology Department has devised
a comprehensive data protection policy to provide adequate
protection and confidentiality of all corporate data and
proprietary information. To comply with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance, Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong
and to protect the rights of employees, customers, and
business partners, access control protocol is clearly defined
to limiting the access to a system or to physical or virtual
resources. The Group employs a comprehensive enterprise
resources planning system for its finance-related operations
to ensure privacy and maintain information confidentiality.
The Group strictly abides with the regulation in the collection,
usage, handling, and storage of data to ensure data integrity
and safety.

Anti-corruption

The Group commits to manage all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness
as its core values. All directors and employees are required
to strictly follow the Code of Conduct and Group's policy
to prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

The Group will continue actively sourcing energy-saving appliances,
equipment and materials with careful selection and review of
suppliers and their origins. Opportunities to work with other charity
partners and more training and development in terms of raising
staff's awareness on environmental and social impacts from the
business will also be considered. The Group also recognises the
trend and possibilities with applying digital technologies in daily
office operations and marketing strategy, therefore resource use
and promotional tools in the future will be adapted to make the
businesses more transformative, sustainable, as well as having
greater capability to attractive future talents.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude to all of our staff and fellow directors for their
contributions, support and dedication. | would also like to thank
our customers, shareholders, bankers, suppliers and other business
partners for their continuous support.

Chung Yuk Lun
Executive Director

Hong Kong
30 June 2021
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Profiles of Directors

EFEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YU BAODONG, aged 57, has been appointed as executive director
and Chairman of the Board of the Company since 23 February
2021. He has over 10 years of experience in project investment and
corporate management. He holds a master degree in Economics
from the Renmin University of China and a doctorate degree in
Economics from the Wuhan University. Mr. Yu was an executive
director of GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3800)
from November 2006 to September 2014, a non-executive director
of GCL New Energy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 451) from May
2014 to February 2015 and a non-executive director of Asia Energy
Logistics Group Limited (Stock Code: 351) from March 2009 to July
2020, all companies are listed companies in Hong Kong.

CHUNG YUK LUN, aged 60, had been appointed as an executive
director of the Company from 29 September 2018 to 11 January
2019 and was reappointed on 15 July 2019. He is also the company
secretary, an authorised representative and a consultant of the
Company. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an ICAEW Business and Finance Professional. He has
approximately 30 years’ management experience at board level in
a number of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chung is currently (i) an executive director, company secretary,
authorised representative and a member of Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of KNK Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 8039); (i) an executive director of CT Environmental Group
Limited (Stock Code: 1363); (iii) the company secretary and
authorized representative of Life Healthcare Group Limited (Stock
Code: 928); and (iv) the company secretary of QPL International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 243), all are listed company in Hong
Kong.

During the past 3 years, Mr. Chung was (i) an executive director
of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8059) until
19 September 2018; (i) an independent non-executive director of
Success Dragon International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1182)
until 30 September 2018; and (iii) an executive director of Life
Healthcare Group Limited (Stock code: 928) until 8 January 2019, all
are listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Profiles of Directors
EE@HN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WONG CHONG FAIl (Former Name: Wong Ching Fai, William),
aged 50, had been appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 19 March 2021. He received his undergraduate degree
in Manufacturing Engineering from Boston University in 1993. Since
then, he has involving in watch industries, distribution, marketing
and retail for over 20 years. In addition, he has been investing in
new-energy related business and trading of petroleum chemical
products. Mr. Wong was an executive director of China Trustful
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8265), a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange from 3 June 2020 to 5 November 2020.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MAN WAI LUN, aged 48, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 11 January 2019. He
is the chairman of both of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.
Mr. Man obtained his diploma in Business Management from the
School of Continuing Education, Hong Kong Baptist University in
April 2003 and obtained a bachelor degree of accountancy from
the University of South Australia in March 2007. Mr. Man has over
16 years of experience in accounting.

Currently, Mr. Man is also an executive director of Life Healthcare
Group Limited (Stock code: 928), a listed company in Hong
Kong. He was previously (i) an executive director and compliance
officer of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8059) until
19 September 2018; (i) an independent non-executive director of
Roma Group Limited (Stock code: 8072) until 1 March 2020; (iii) a
independent non-executive director of China Trustful Group lelted
(Stock code: 8265) until 9 November 2020; and (iv) an executive
director of CT Environmental Group Limited (Stock code: 1363)
until 19 April 2021, all are listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Man
is one of the directors of HF Financial Holdings (H.K.) Limited which
was founded by him.

CHENG CHUN MAN, aged 59, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since 15 July
2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 30 years’
experience in accounting, auditing, consulting and management.
Currently, Mr. Cheng is also an independent non-executive director
of Life Healthcare Group Limited (stock code: 928), a listed
company in Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HUI MAN HO, IVAN, aged 42, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
31 March 2020. He is a member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Hui holds master degree in Practising Accounting, master
degree in Applied Finance and a bachelor degree in Business
(Banking & Finance) from Monash University, Australia. He is also
a member of CPA Australia. Mr. Hui has over 15 years of working
experience in auditing, accounting, financial management and
corporate finance.

Currently, Mr. Hui is also an independent non-executive director of
Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited (Stock Code: 8379) and
Upbest Group Limited (Stock Code: 335). He was previously a non-
executive director of Cocoon Holdings Limited (Stock code: 428)
until 28 June 2018. The above companies are all listed companies
in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREIHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The statement of corporate governance practices set out below and
information incorporated by reference constitutes the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

The Board is committed to ensuring and maintaining high standard
of corporate governance practices and procedures in fulfilling its
responsibilities. It is the belief of the Board that shareholders can
maximize their benefits from good corporate governance. The
Company has always recognised the importance of transparency
and accountability. The Group has adopted the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance practices. The Directors of the Company consider that
the Company has complied with the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2021 (“Year"), except for the following deviations:

Code provision A.2

Code provision A.2 stipulates that there should be a clear division
of responsibilities between management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of business. During the Year, the Board
did not appoint any Director as its Chairman. Following the
appointment of new Chairman of Mr. Yu Baodong to the Board
on 23 February 2021, such deviation from Code provision A.2 had
been rectified.

Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Other than
Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan who has been appointed for an initial term of
two years which is renewed automatically for successive terms of
one year, the other existing independent non-executive Directors
of the Company do not have any specific term of appointment. All
of them are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company.
The Bye-laws require that every Director will retire from office no
later than the third annual general meeting of the Company after
he was last elected or re-elected. Further, any person appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director
(including non-executive Director) will hold office only until the next
general meeting and will then be eligible for re-election. As such,
the Board considers that such requirements are sufficient to meet
the underlying objectives of the relevant code provision.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Code provision C.2.5

Code provision C.2.5 stipulates that a listed company should have
an internal audit function. In the past, the Company has outsourced
the internal audit function on analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management and internal
control systems to independent professional firm(s).

For the Year, the Audit Committee has performed such function
itself by carrying out walk through tests on the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems with reference to the
policy and procedures manuals of the Company, interviewed and
discussed with the management on their effectiveness and followed
up on the rectifications of any findings from their work. The Board
considers that compliance with Code provision C.2.5 has been
fulfilled by the Audit Committee for the Year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers under Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry to all Directors of the Company, all of
them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of six Directors, including
three executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Baodong, Mr. Chung Yuk
Lun and Mr. Wong Chong Fai and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”), namely Mr. Man Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun
Man and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. As least one of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from Mr. Man Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun Man and Mr. Hui Man Ho,
Ivan as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The composition of the Board will be reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section “Profiles of Directors”
of this annual report.

Appointment and re-election

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In
addition, every Director shall retire from office no later than the
third annual general meeting after he/she was last elected or
re-elected or ceased to be a Director and been re-elected by a
general meeting at or since either such annual general meeting.
Further, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

The Company has published the procedures on its website for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director.

Duties of the Board

The Board formulates the overall policies and strategies, monitors
the financial performance, oversees the management, and
implements good corporate governance practices of the Group.
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs.

The Directors meet regularly to review the financial and operational
performance of the Group by discussing and formulating the
Group's development plans. Daily operations and administration
are delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's
management. The members of the Board are mostly professionally
qualified and widely experienced personnel who bring in
valuable contribution providing different professional advices and
consultation for the development of the Group. They provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Functions of the Board

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, 13 Board meetings
were held. The attendance records of each Director at the
meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and general meeting of the Company

during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out as follows:
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ZEEERUNRARAIREARE Z HER

BHIMT
Number of meetings attended/held
e/ BTEERY
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of directors Exgz EXE BEEEE REZEE FWEEE BREXE
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Yu Boadong (Chairman) FTEREE (FE) ”n
(appointed on 23 February 2021) (RZFE-—F_J-1=HEZH#F)
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BEEBELE 13/13 171
Mr. Wong Chong Fai - b 0/0
(appointed on 19 March 2021) (R=ZF=-—F=F1NAREF)
Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor BRF A KA 4/10 11
(resigned on 4 February 2021) (R=F——%#— AIAFT)
Independent Non-Executive Directors B EHTESE
Mr. Man Wai Lun NEBTE 13/13 2/2 3/3 3/3 11
Mr. Cheng Chun Man BIRREE 13/13 2/2 3/3 3/3 11
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan U E 1/13 2/2 2/3 2/3 11
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Functions of the Board (Continued)

All the regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance, and
at least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors to give them an
opportunity to attend. Agenda and accompanying Board papers are
normally sent to all Directors in advance of every Board meeting to
enable the Directors to make informed decisions on matters placed
at the Board meetings. All Directors have been consulted about any
matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
the company secretary, all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings, so that Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner.

Detailed minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary and are open for inspection by any Director. All Directors
have access to independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

Directors’ continuous professional development
The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities as
directors of the Company.

In addition, each newly appointed Director would be provided with
an induction package covering the duties and responsibilities of
directors under the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and
other related regulatory requirements.

The Company provided updates and reading material (“CPD")
to keep the Directors informed on a timely basis about the latest
major developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements affecting the Group or their duties and
responsibilities as the Directors as well as the macro economics
and general business environment in which the Group’s major
operations are operated. The Company, through CPD, enhances
Directors’ awareness and keeps them abreast of the essences and
key areas of such updates and information. Such CPD is an efficient
and effective way which offers flexibility to the Directors by allowing
them to access the information at a time suitable to them. All
Directors are required to provide the Company with their training
records on an annual basis. A summary of their training records
during the year ended 31 March 2021 is as follows:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ continuous professional development
(Continued)

EFE(H)
EEZHEFEER (H)

Type of training activities

Name of directors EEga sl EEE R

Executive Directors BITEE A:  In-house training and/or

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun EEBELE seminars.

Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor BR 1P A 55 4 AEEI R, A & o
(resigned on 4 February 2021) (R=ZE=Z—F =AM AFF) B:  Reading newspapers

and journals relating

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUERTES to directors’ duties

Mr. Man Wai Lun R B A and responsibilities as

Mr. Cheng Chun Man BIRER K& well as updates on the

Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan S A Listing Rules and other

applicable regulatory
requirements.
MEEHEZRENE
EARBT EMmRAIK
Hi @A EE R T A&
HmE RS-

RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Board
is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in annual and interim reports and other financial
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. With the assistance of Finance Department,
the Directors prepare the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with statutory requirements and prevailing accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for timely publication
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern.

The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 51 to 63 of the annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in June 2005 and its terms of
reference were amended on 29 March 2012. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Man Wai Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Chun Man
and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. The major duties and functions of
the Remuneration Committee include but not limited to making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual directors and senior management of the Company. It is
also mandated to review and approve compensation payable to
the directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office to ensure that it is consistent with the contractual terms and
is otherwise fair and not excessive.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the reporting
year and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “Functions of the Board"” of this report.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
summarized as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6.  to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

7. to review and approve compensation arrangement relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has, among others
things, reviewed the remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management (including two newly appointed Directors) with
reference to market terms, their duties and responsibilities and
performance as assessed by the Remuneration Committee, and has
made recommendation to the Board accordingly. Pursuant to B.1.5
of the Code, details of the annual remuneration of the members of
senior management by band for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
as follows:
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Number of employees

EBEAE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000 7T 14
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t &= 1,500,000 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017%8 7T & 2,000,000/ 7T 1
Total FEE 16

Details of the emoluments of Directors are set out in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company had adopted a specific terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee as of 29 March 2012 in accordance with
Rules 3.25 to 3.27 of the Listing Rules which has been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established in June 2005 and its terms of
reference were amended on 6 September 2013. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Man Wai Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Chun Man and
Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan. lts main duties and functions include but
not limited to review of the structure, size, composition and the
diversity policy of the Board and the selection or recommendations
to the Board for nomination on directors and senior management.

The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings during the reporting
year and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “Function of the Board” of this report:

1. review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy;

2. identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3.  assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
4. review on directors’ contribution in performing their

responsibilities;

5. make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive of the Company;

6. review the board diversity policy of the Board or this
Nomination Committee, as appropriate, considering factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background and professional experience of Board
members, and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy, and
the progress on achieving the objectives; and

7. conform to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in
the constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation, where appropriate.
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EERETARSE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

A board diversity policy had been formulated and adopted by the
Board in 2013. The Company recognises the importance and values
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. Appointments to the Board will largely be based
on meritocracy with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. Selection of candidates will generally be based on factors
considered applicable and adopted by the Board, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Company had adopted a revised specific terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee as of 6 September 2013 in compliance
with the Code Provision A.5 and it has been posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in 1999 and its terms of reference were amended by
the Board and became effective on 23 February 2016 and 1 March
2016 respectively. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Chun Man
(Chairman), Mr. Man Wai Lun and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. Mr. Cheng
Chun Man possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as prescribed
by the Listing Rules. None of them is employed by or otherwise
affiliated with former or existing auditors of the company.

The main duties and functions of the Audit Committee include
but not limited to review of the relationship between the
Company and its external auditors, review of the Group's financial
information, oversight of the Group's financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems, assessment on any
potential special risks to be encountered by the Company and
review on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Year. Minutes
of the Audit Committee are kept by the secretary of the Audit
Committee and the copies of the minutes are sent to all members
of the Audit Committee. The outcomes of the Audit Committee
meetings were submitted to the Board for consideration and action
where appropriate.
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EERETARSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the meetings held in the Year, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

1.

reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (“Previous Year”) and the
related annual results announcement with a recommendation
to the Board for approval.

reviewed the relevant disclosures made in the Directors’
Report of the Annual Report in the Previous Year.

met with the external auditors in the Previous Year and
discussed the audit findings reported by external auditors.

assessed broadly any special risks faced by the Group and
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the Previous Year
and concluded that the Group operated at a manageable risk
level and kept on improving the management system.

reviewed the reports including the 2020 audit planning report
and the management letters (if any) submitted by the external
auditor.

reviewed the Group's unaudited consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2020 and
the interim results announcement with recommendation to
the Board for approval.

considered those topics, which were requested by the Board
and reviewed those relevant documents.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were amended and
took effect by the Board on 23 February 2016 and 1 March 2016
respectively. Such amendments in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code under the Listing Rules have been posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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EERETARSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment of CCTH
CPA Limited as the external auditors of the Group for 2021/2022
and that the relevant resolution shall be put forth for consideration
by the shareholders of the Company and their approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM").

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board performs the following corporate governance functions
during the Year:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conducts and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

All committees established under the Board are required to report
back to the Board on their decisions or recommendations, unless
there are legal or regulatory restrictions on their ability to do so
(such as a restriction on disclosure due to regulatory requirements).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun is the current company secretary of the
Company. The company secretary, whose appointment
was approved by the Board, complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements under the
Listing Rules. All Directors are entitled to have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, who is responsible for
providing Board papers and related materials to Directors in order
to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and
regulations are followed.

EREEE (8)
BEnZEeERBERPEREGTAAR
ARABAEB T -_—F/-_FT-__FK
SNERZ AT HARABRREBREREERERE
HAFRe ([RRAFRKD]) AHERR AR
HEZ DU E-

EREGREE
EFRNAFEETN TR A

@) HERBIRNRAEREEEERZHK
RNED YREFSREES:

b) BALEREERSREBEABZE
IRFEEXEER:

0 BERERAADEBTERREE
5 7 T 0 TS SRR

d) FIE - RIREEARABEERR
BERBFZRTERRE R FM (L0
)R

(e) BMEARAEBTTHRELZE
EEHWEBEZBR -

il

AN
H

8

EFEeRTMAZESNARNEETQER
HFffERE S ERE BRIPDERXEERER
I E At 1T 2= (P07 8L AR TE MR il 1F
HE) o

ABHWE
BEBEAERAAARBEZABNE -KE
EEMAEZEZATAWECETLTRA
BTHAREER KREBIER-FIE
EEPREARWE (REERERRHE
EZEXHRMABERREERMRS A
HREEFGEFRABERER RAUKRR
IS BT -

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report



Corporate Governance Report
EERETARSE

AUDITORS' INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditors, CCTH
CPA Limited, are independent and has recommended the Board to
re-appoint them as the Company’s auditors at the AGM.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the remuneration paid or
payable to the Company’s auditors, CCTH CPA Limited is set out
as follows:
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FET

Audit services EZRT 1,225
Non-audit services IEEZ RS =
Total FEES 1,225

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Code.

(1) Procedures for shareholders to convene a

special general meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Board
shall, on a requisition in writing by any shareholder made
in compliance with the applicable law to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company holding not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company, forthwith proceed to convene a special general
meeting ("SGM") in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM for a day not later than two
months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
do so but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the said date.
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EERETARSE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, shareholders
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
general meeting of the Company. The number of shareholders
shall represent not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting, or shall not
be less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the general meeting. It must
also be signed by all of the shareholders concerned and be
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong at Room 22, 22/F, On Hong Commercial
Building, 145 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the
attention of the company secretary not less than six weeks
before the general meeting. In case of a requisition requiring
a notice of the resolution, the requisition must be served to
the Board not less than one week before the general meeting.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's expenses
in giving the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned under
applicable laws and rules.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company's Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F,
Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's Road, North
Point, Hong Kong. Shareholders and the investment
community may during office hours make a request for the
Company's information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Shareholders may also send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board by addressing to the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company.
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EERETARSE

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no significant
change in the Company's constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
all shareholders. The Company establishes different communication
channels with shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (ii) updated key information of the
Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) the Company's website offers communication
channel between the Company and its shareholders and investors.

The annual general meeting is a channel for the Board of Directors
and the sub-committees of the Board to address concern of
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting. Notice of the annual general meeting and related
papers are sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and the said notice is also published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

A. Objectives
The Board is responsible to ensure that adequate systems of
internal control and risk management (“Control Systems”) are
maintained within the Group, and to review their effectiveness
through the Audit Committee. The Control Systems are
designed to meet the Group's particular needs and the risks
to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement
or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure
in achieving the Group's objectives. Practicable and effective
internal control systems and procedures and risk management
systems have been implemented by the Group to enhance
internal control and risk management on an ongoing basis.
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ERELHSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (Continued)
B. Internal control

The Board

Audit Committee

The management

Internal Audit
Function

ensure the maintenance of
appropriate and effective Control
Systems in order to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and assets
of the Group;

define management structure with
clear lines of responsibility and limit
of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of
significant risk that the Company

is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives and formulate
the Group's risk management
strategies.

oversee the Control Systems of the
Group;

review and discuss with the
management annually to ensure
that the management has
performed its duty to have effective
Control Systems; and

consider major findings on

internal control matters and make
recommendations to the Board.

design, implement and monitor
the Control Systems properly and
ensure the Control Systems are
executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures
to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations;

give prompt responses to, and
follow up the findings on internal
control matters; and

provide confirmation to the Control
Board on the effectiveness of the
Systems.

carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the
Control Systems, and the details
are set out in the section headed
“Internal Audit Function” of this
report.
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EERETARSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

EIGEERMEBERE (F)

Risk management C. HAMER

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk FElERaRaEamEn mks
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and & B e B IR & R B i I B A o
review.

The management conducted interviews with relevant staff ERREHEABE T ETER FHA
members, reviewing relevant documentation of the internal EREEYE R B SO B R R AR AR
control system, identifying and evaluating findings of any SEANEEIERGRETRRAER 2
deficiencies in the design of the Group's internal control ATE N EHEmEHEERRE
system, providing recommendations for improvement and EmAEEZZARNE(HER) <A
following up on the effectiveness of implementation of such REBRANEEEENNEE RS
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope and findings EHFERBEREEGWRKAREZ-
of review on the risk management and internal control are

reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

Certain significant risks have been identified through the RNEECE B E R SR R &
process of risk identification and assessment. Such significant P& T &R - 2N 5 B P E R A %
risks of the Group and their respective key strategies/control EEARABKESEENETERE
measures are set out on pages 8 to 9 of the Management THIERSE N A BREERRE AR RS
Discussion and Analysis of this report. I ETEN

Control approach D. BERE

The scope and findings of review on the risk management and ERERERANDEZENNEE R
internal control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit REBFERETRLZEGULESTZ-
Committee annually. Procedure manuals and operational HIER T FMREEESIREZE -
guidelines are in place to safeguard the assets against NERERECANEE ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂ
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance BRER HAREZREFEE S
of proper accounting records in compliance with the FCEk AR AT E M E R A E
applicable laws, rules and regulations for the provision of AR/ SRS NI

reliable financial information for internal use and/or external

publication.

Management confirmation E. EEEED

The Board had received a written confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Control Systems
of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board, upon
reviewing the Control Systems, were not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Control Systems.
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EERETARSE

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Control Systems for the
year ended 31 March 2021. The review identified the findings in
internal control system of the Company, the risks associated with
operating units of the Company and the recommendations to
rectify the findings in internal control systems and to lower the risks
identified. Most of the recommendations have been adopted and
implemented with the remaining ones to be implemented in due
course.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Control Systems
in respect of financial, operational and compliance aspect annually
and considers that the Control Systems are adequate and effective.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting functions, and consider that they are adequate.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy where the
Company would, where the situation allows, declare dividends to
shareholders taking into consideration the Group's distributable
profits generated during the Year, the financial situation and
liquidity of the Group, the funding needs for future investment and
development purposes. The payment of dividend is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda and Hong Kong as well
as the Bye-Laws of the Company.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION
OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance ("SFO") and the Listing Rules in relation to
the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

During the Year, the Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture
and trading of optical frames and sunglasses, property investment,
debts and securities investment, film investment and distribution
and energy business.

Further discussion and analysis of the activities as required by
schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 10 to 11 of this annual report. The discussion
forms part of this Directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 and its financial
position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 64 to 206.

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).
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ZST-ALEFREZRERANEEANLEERX
RAEMB®mE-

FEEHREHOF

RAEE  RRABREREZEBR B REK B
RAETERFRERRAGREZHER
BEE DERE BEHAEFRE BEFER
BERBITARERER-

BB RAIGRPIM RSN EZBBER 2 E
—HAmhkoN (BREAKEHE 2 EZME
BETHEEE CHARAEERERZ A
ARRBER PR FERANEFEREI0EVEMN
HzEEBRREDOT -ZEmEKAE

SHREZ WD

EERRE
AREBE-_FT-_—F=A=t+—RALLF
EZBRRENZEZHBEHR BN
IS RKR E64E206H ©

EERMERBRNBE-_F-—F=5
=+t-ALFEZEARE (ZF-TF:
m) .

SHENEHBREEGR QA 2020/2021 £ 41



42

Report of the Directors
EFERE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

AEERBEEEEREREMBRRRLEE
SI(ER) 2 BEREVRERE 22 T#E
FEUMEE BERFERESHEHRN
TR B IFRBZ G A M B HRRNA
BB ©

Results -
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—BLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-F 2% ZZ-NF ZE-NF ZIZT—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET TET FHT TET
(Restated)
(&57))
REVENUE Wz 53,930 66,246 178,951 111,790 136,248
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE AFEE#F,/ (F18)
YEAR (18,166) (101,685) (102,841) (17,057) 5,646
Attributable to: TEIA LR
Owners of the Company AR E#A A (15,274) (98,399) (99,090) (14,117) 8,038
Non-controlling interests ~ FE12 %4 25 (2,892) (3,286) (3,751) (2,940) (2,392)
(18,166) (101,685) (102,841) (17,057) 5,646
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests EE BENRIEEERERS
As at 31 March
MR=RA=+-—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

—E--& —E-TF —T—-NEFE T-NF ZT—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FH#TT FHET FHET FHET FHET

(Restated)

(&=&E5)

TOTAL ASSETS BERS 400,510 379,664 427,737 450,019 381,003

TOTAL LIABILITIES BEERE (128,018) (159,106) (129,289) (88,741) (114,304)
NON-CONTROLLING FEEREE

INTERESTS 10,954 8,837 4,971 768 (984)

283,446 229,395 303,419 362,046 265,715
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the reporting year are
set out in note 13 and 15 representatively to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 March 2020 to provide incentive or rewards to
participants including the Directors and eligible employees of the
Group. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
33 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the reporting year are set out in note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity set out on page 69 of this annual
report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the reserve of the
Company amounting to approximately HK$274,718,000 (2020:
HK$168,740,000) is available for distribution or paying dividends
to the Company’s shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Bye-Laws and provided that immediately following the distribution
or dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

VX BERREURIREYE
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the reporting year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Baodong (Chairman)
(appointed on 23 February 2021)
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun
Mr. Wong Chong Fai
(appointed on 19 March 2021)
Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor (resigned on 4 February 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Man Wai Lun

Mr. Cheng Chun Man

Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In
addition, every Director shall retire from office no later than the
third annual general meeting after he/she was last elected or
re-elected or ceased to be a Director and been re-elected by a
general meeting at or since either such annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Yu Baodong, Mr. Chung Yuk Lun
and Mr. Wong Chong Fai will retire by rotation at the AGM
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. All of the
abovementioned directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the said meeting.

X
RBEFERBERRE DS AAT2
EEWT

BITES

FERLE (LE)
(RZFE-—F-H-+=HEZT)
HAELA

(RZE-Z—FE=FHF+ N AEZE)
BRI ASLE (RZF=Z—F = AAFHT)

BIAFRITES
BB
IR R 5
BB R

REARF 2 ARMAR EEERRBFK
gL ER=2Z-ZEF(WABLI=
ZEE AINRBEEERNIR=092—2 A
BRE)ERESR - WIN BUEFHA
EEERARBRRBFAGLEEHEREN
THBHEEFTMRBRAG LEERERD
BBR=EzRRBFAELERE-

REBARBZARMAA ERNEEESRE
MNIRmREERANDESTENEREZ
EX AHEEARATERREASERL
TRHEERBERET-H TERELE
BEBMELANEABEERRBEARAZ
REAANREBEFAE LRERE-FAA
PREENEEREBENZER LER
B

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report



Report of the Directors
EFEEHE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from all the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Man
Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun Man and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. The
Board considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’' BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 19 to 20 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the Group's business were
entered into or existed during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link of
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current market best practice). Remuneration should be
paid with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the executive and non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group
and applicability of performance-based remuneration. The
Directors’ fees are paid in line with market practice, subject to the
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to
financial performance of the Group and individual performance
and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical and life
insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to the
financial statements.
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EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021,
associates and the chief executive of the Company had any

none of the Directors or their respective

interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors nor their respective
close associates was interested in any business which was
considered to compete or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed in the Related Party Transactions disclosures set
out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, none of
the Directors or his connected entity had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

b‘é\_?_ FZA=1T—H BEXRARE
78 7 i i B 1R B £ 33615 78 %LM_EZE
AHEHﬂFﬁuEﬁ" ATERRR B #HITRA R

FERHE AV5% e DA | 2 5t

Long positions 5~
Number of Percentage
Capacity/ ordinary of issued
Name Nature of Interest shares interested voting shares
2T
MEERZ BREERS
HE L8 S gAY EERRBEE =5, 174
Osman Bin Kitchell Beneficial Owner 142,297,719 16.30%
EmEA A
Mr. Wong Hoi Fung Beneficial Owner 49,020,000 5.61%
TEELEE EmEA A
POLY-GCL Pertroleum Group Beneficial Owner 45,000,000 5.16%
Holdings Limited EnEEA
POLY-GCL Pertroleum Interest in a controlled corporation 45,000,000 5.16%
Holdings Limited REHDEEE R
POLY-GCL Pertroleum Group Interest in a controlled corporation 45,000,000 5.16%
Limited ZEEH A B s

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.
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EFEEHE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed shares during the
year ended 31 March 2021.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting year, the Group's largest customer and the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 45.3% and 70.9% of
the Group's total sales, respectively.

During the reporting year, the Group's largest supplier and the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 12.6% and 48.9% of the
Group's total purchases, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company
or any of their associates or any shareholders, which to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the reporting
year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting year, the Company and the Group had the
following connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

(@) On 9 September 2020, Elegance Optical Investments entered
into the provisional sale and purchase agreement with Power
Keen, pursuant to which the Vendor has agreed to dispose of
and the Purchaser has agreed to purchase the Property at the
consideration of approximately HK$16 million. Ms. Hui Sze
Man is the daughter of Mr. Hui Leung Wah, who is the director
of subsidiaries of the Company, is the beneficial owner of
Power Keen.

The Group leased back the property as short term lease from
Power Keen for a monthly rental of HK$45,000. The amounts
of rental paid by the Group for the current year in respect of
leasing of the property amounted to HK$270,000, which has
been included in “administrative expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Gold Strong Industrial Limited ("Gold Strong”), a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, in their usual and
ordinary course of business, had amounts due (to)/from the
Company's several wholly-owned subsidiaries. The amounts
due are unsecured and interest-bearing at the same interest
rate charged by the Company’s bank which is the same as
the rate applied to the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
they are repayable on demand and the outstanding amounts
are details below at the end of the balance sheet date:

FEX I RFEMAERS (B)

b) AEE-FHIZEMBRAESMETL
XER2A (MR R —RATER
BhwR (EN) /BKRARAET
2EMBRAARA - ZERFHAE
A B A R RERITWE 2 R A &
AECHBREARARTDZENBR
BIEVH R AERE - AR BEREE  ME
ERERZHAEERBEFABOT:

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
—EB-—f —ETF
=HA=+—H =H=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Gold Strong & F R (21,731) (29,209)
— amount due to Gold Strong by the - ARBI2EM B R BER
Company'’s wholly-owned subsidiaries © N EIA - =
— amount due by Gold Strong to the RAEIZ2EWE R AR
Company'’s wholly-owned subsidiaries & F| FEFRIE (21,731) (29,209)

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed above,
none of the Related Party Transactions as disclosed in note 40
to the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report is subject to disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-law 189 of the Company, Directors of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by or about
the execution of their duty in their offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and the officers of the Group throughout
the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public during
the reporting year and up to the date of this report.
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EFEEHE

AUDITORS

CCTH CPA Limited will retire at AGM and a resolution for the
re-appointment of CCTH CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
will be proposed thereat.

On Behalf of the Board

Chung Yuk Lun
Executive Director

Hong Kong
30 June 2021

% BB
PERBEFHERQAGNBRRBFA
ELRE-ARAHRELEZ —HRZE
FONBREAERESHAMERAFNLSAR
7] 1% B o

RRE=FE

HITEF
EHMR

BB
—E-—FXA=1+H

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBED RS

e

To the shareholders of Elegance Optical International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Elegance
Optical International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 64 to 206, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

CCTH CPA LIMITED
PEXREEAERLE

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B3 &% B Eh IR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BB EIR

FRETEIR (E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI EFNAEEARENER

Impairment of trade and other receivables

BSRH BRI E

Refer to notes 4, 21 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A2RE e M HRRM TS 21523

As at 31 March 2021, the Group recorded gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$16,518,000 before
impairment loss of approximately HK$2,363,000 and other
receivables of approximately HK$15,067,000.
RZZEZ_-—F=A=+—H EBEXERERAEEELD
2,363,000/ 7T A 2 42 i 48 BR 7K £916,518,0007% 7T & H fth fiE
W FRIH 4915,067,00078 7T ©

Estimations of the impairment for the Group's trade
and other receivables are dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant management
judgment, including the historical default rates, past due
status, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions as well as forward-looking
information specific to the trade and other receivables.
EEEE SN EMBYRFIAZ BREMRFTIRNE THEL
EREBEHB ZERRR BREELEHE BHHAR -
—RRAS AR B E ATAROR 2 7 4 A K B 5 Ko oA B U R
BZRERBIEER -

Our procedures in relation to management's
impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables included:
BHAMEHEREES S N H MR IE R ER (412
FFetE:

- We obtained an understanding of the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of management'’s internal controls relating
to credit control, debt collection and making
provisions for doubtful debts.
HMETHEREMREEERE KEEHR
FAHIRRBRBEMELOAMEZENRT
TREEREK-

- We assessed the classification and accuracy
of individual balances in trade and other
receivables ageing report by testing the
underlying invoices and loan agreements on
a sample basis.

P BBMmEIABEERRERB AT
8 5 K& H fh 8 W 308 BR e ¥ & P MR Bl 45 84
Z DR EREE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FRETEIR (E)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
FRETEIE BB I EEAREN SR

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

BESREMBEKRIERE (&)

We have identified impairment of trade and other - We assessed subsequent settlement of
receivables as a key audit matter due to the magnitude receivable balances. Where settlement had
of the receivables and the estimation and judgments not been received subsequent to the year
involved the determination of the recoverable amounts end date, we obtained an understanding
of these receivables. of the basis of management’s judgments
BZMEBBES REMERRBRERN ABRESEIE about the recoverability of the outstanding
1bE 7Y B A FE WK B 2R FE B K IR 7E 7 OE I 55 U AR TE A BT R receivables and evaluated the allowance for
[B] & R 50 I A 5T R 7 6 o doubtful debts made by management for

these individual balances.
BMTHEEENRIEEREE - MR FLE
BEDARKBRERZKIE BMEERERERE
3 5K Yz 5] Wy 5k I8 A A U (B R ) T e B
E-WENGHEEBHRZEERGERFTIR 2
R -

- We assessed the historical accuracy of the
estimates made by the management for the
allowance for doubtful debts.
HMFALEEERERRBRBEEL 2
HYSERE I -

- We assessed the appropriateness of
the expected credit loss positioning
methodology, by examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis, to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit loss.
1P 535 38 b S B A A B B 4R 8 A\ BUR DA ST A
HEMMETBUEUAREREBARE (B8
BERAMEEER) FERBEEEEEMS
EHMEEN  AETHEBEEEE-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FSEEEIR

FRETEIE (18)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRMEFNAEEARENER

Impairment loss on inventories

EHBEBE

Refer to notes 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEE M B RMRMFAR20 -

As at 31 March 2021, the Group recorded gross inventories
of approximately HK$25,958,000 before provision for
impairment of approximately HK$21,423,000. Inventories
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal. The write down of obsolete and slow-
moving items of inventories to their net realisable value
is estimated by management through the application
of judgement and use of highly subjective assumptions
such as management’s expectations for future sales and
product promotion plans in identifying the obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items, and estimating the allowance
for inventories.

RZZEZ—F=A=+—H' E5EHSHRRERELD
21,423,000/ 7T # 2 #8717 & #925,958,000/% 7T 17 R A A
HEAHRFEIREEINR N INE PR LEERE -
AR RENRGFEEREAGEA TR REEEEZK
AAE - BRERFHFEEANREREAERFEIHE
BEEFRERANLERASEIBMRRMET NEEER
BABRMEHFERE RAFTFERERERKEE R
EmEREENHE-

We have identified impairment loss on inventories
as a key audit matter due to the magnitude of gross
inventories and the estimation and judgments involved the
determination of the obsolete and slow-moving items of
inventories.
BHMESFEREEEINREREAEE RERAT
EHEEANEEEBR LA HFEEREB RS LG KA
B o

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment of inventories included:

BPEHEEEFERENGNREFEE:

- We obtained and understood how the
impairment loss on inventories was estimated
by the management.

B TRIEEB WA FERERBIE-

- We assessed management’s controls over
identifying and valuing obsolete, damaged,
slow-moving, excess and other inventory
items for which their costs may not be fully
recoverable, and evaluated the Group's
impairment loss on inventories policy with
reference to historical sales transactions.
HMFEEREHED LA EBR BB
HoBFREMFEEANES AR&EER
BRRARAIRERAEB B E W2 EFLHE
RGNt EEBNTFRREBBER-

- We tested the inventories ageing analysis as
at 31 March 2021 on a sampling basis.
HPRBMEEEANAR T -_—F=H
=t+—HNGFEEREKS T

- We reviewed, on a sampling basis, the
subsequent usage of raw materials and work-
in-progress and subsequent sales transactions
of the inventories.
BPEmEEERIT RV RER RO HEZ
REUREFERREERS -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FSEEEIR

FRETEIR (E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRMEFNAEEARENER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

ME- BERBEURERESEREFE

Refer to notes 4, 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FLHERAMBERAMTS 13Kk14 -

The Group recorded a loss for the year ended 31 March
2021 of HK$18,166,000. Management of the Group
determined that indicators of impairment on the Group's
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
existed and performed an impairment assessment. The
management assessment involved subjective judgements
and assumptions, such as estimated market price of
comparable asset items in determining the recoverable
amounts of such assets. To support management’s
determination of the fair value, the Group has engaged an
independent professionally qualified valuers to perform
valuation assessment of the related property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets.
BHE_ZT-_—F=ZA=+—HILFE BEXEBREERE
18,166,000 L > BESEEEEEBETA N TE E5HE
W% BB RREANEREEERE  LETRETE-
ERENESREIBAGNRERR WREEATLREER
WEEESHEBEERENGAME AXBEEREET
WARE BEEEEZREBVIEXSERMGEMEERH
ME -BELRRBAREREEELETHRE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets included:
BMBEYE BB KR @A KRERBEEERET
HE 2 Fr 845 -

- We evaluated the independence,
competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the external valuer.

BIFE A SNER L (E R B B S 1 - #EBR - BE A
BB

- We assessed the appropriateness of the
valuation, methodologies, key assumptions
and estimation used based on our knowledge
of the relevant industry.
BRIBEHRMNAEBITEMBTEAERTET
- BARBREGENEE M-

-  We challenged management and the external
valuer the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry.
ERBANEHERITENBERE LR RIN
MEEMARBRRNSEE-

- We assessed the recoverable amounts
and evaluated the inputs and assumptions
included in management’s impairment
assessment by evaluating the data used as
input for valuation, which included reference
to the market price of comparable land and
buildings and other relevant assets.
HMFEATRESE YAAEREEEED
AER B ABE RBRE It hE B
ERBEERAMANEE EEEL2ZAL
THREFUREMBEBEENTE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FSEEEIR

FRETEIE (18)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRMEFNAEEARENER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

ME - BERBEURERESZREFGE (8)

We focused on the impairment assessment of the Group's
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as
the estimation of the fair value less costs of disposal of
such assets involved judgments and assumptions used in
the determination of sale prices of these assets.

BMPEIN EEENYE BERREBEREAEEED
BETE ARMAEAEENAABRALEXNERS R
NETZEEENEBRATIEL A R R&K-

- We checked, on a sampling basis, the

accuracy and relevance of the data and
information provided by management to the
external valuer.
BPAMEA X REERRE MNP ERMIE
HOBBERENEREMBHENT -

- We considered the potential impact of

reasonably possible downside changes in
these key assumptions.
BHMZRZEERBRTAEARHTTE
EMBEEZE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
B gt EEsT BN

FRESTEIE (8)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BABET I EEEREE R

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate

—EBE AT REZBEFE

Refer to notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FLHEE M BRI FEART -

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of the
Group's investment in an associate, Filmko Culture
Limited, amounted to approximately HK$93,000,000
(after impairment loss recognised of approximately
HK$52,736,000).

RZEZ—F=ZA=+—H BREBERREBEY
52,736,000 T8 - EXEER—FABEQF (E28EXE
BRAA)IRE 2 BRI {E /& 4993,000,0007% 7T ©

To support management’s determination of the fair value
used for impairment assessment purposes, the Group
has engaged external independent qualified valuers to
perform fair value valuation on the associate.
RARXBEEEETANBRETGNARE BEEEHEZ
BN B LS ERMEMEHERFETANERE:.

We focused on impairment assessment of the
Group's investment in an associate as the magnitude
of the investment in an associate is significant and
management assessment of the fair value involves
judgments and estimates, key assumptions including the
basis of selection for the comparable entities and their
respective fair values as well as the discount rates taking
account of the lack of marketability factor.

BMEIR EEER-—HBLEARRE ZRERN G R
AAR—HBERRRECHEEN BEEEHARE
WA E S RAG R AT AR BEEEREER A ENE
EENAREARBEARRZTSRBERR AR ED
RAs MR-

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of investment in an associate included:

BAEHE—FEBERRRE ZHENENEFERE:

- We evaluated the independent external
valuer's competence, capabilities and
objectivity.

BT EBIINBAEMOER B RE
B o

- We assessed the key assumptions including
the basis of selection for the comparable
entities for fair value valuation and the
discount rates applied to the lack of
marketability factor. We considered the
appropriateness of the discount rates
adopted by management.
BHPFREERAERETANEREZE
ERBERRRZTSRBMERRZHERESE
ARBER - BMEEREEERMNME XN
‘@M

- We checked the accuracy and relevance of
the input data on sample basis.
BAIA RS AT A SR A 1 AR
B

- We evaluated and challenged the composition
of the associate’s fair value and the process by
which they were drawn up, including testing
the underlying fair value less cost of disposal
calculation.
BPPELE SRR E R AR ENEKAR
mEEF SEASEEN QR ER LS X
ZN:OERC I
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FSEEEIR

FRETEIR (E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRMEFNAEEARENER

Fair value measurement of financial instruments held
at fair value classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy
BEBEAREERFEIR S ERARERFZEMIAZA
SEFE

Refer to notes 4 and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2RHE A M RRM T4 K24

Fair value measurement of financial instruments held at
fair value classified under Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 March 2021 included fair value measurement
of investments in film production and investments in
convertible bond.

R-E-—F=A=+—HB REAREBRFEILD X
ARERFEZERIEZ AARBEHERLEEXRIERER
MR ESREZANBERFE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had investments in film
production with the carrying amount of HK$61,164,000.
RZEZ—F=RA=+—H EBESEEFZIERENE
E B &61,164,0005%8 7T ©

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had investment
in convertible bond with the carrying amount of
HK$15,534,000.

RZZBE-_—F=A=+—H ESETHEREFREN
BRE (B 7315,534,000/8 7T °

The investments in film production mainly represent
investments in certain films that the Group is not
considered to be involved in the production process or as
the distributor.

BEYHFERETIZEREETERY ( EEBEEAR/TE
HEEERRBRTREREITE) -

Our procedures in relation to the fair value of
financial instruments classified under Level 3 fair
value included:
BMEBABRBARNEERDERAAEREZS
BMIEZAREHENEFBE:

- We evaluated the independent external
valuer's competence, capabilities and

objectivity;
HAPIRFE B LI ER (L ERD AV HERR - B I R B &R
1

-  We challenged the key assumptions including
the basis of selection for the comparable
entities for fair value valuation and the discount
rates applied to the lack of marketability factor.
We considered the appropriateness of the
discount rates adopted by management; and
BMEREERNRERETANEMRBEZE
ENBERRRZTERDUEEAZRLHBEXRE
ARBR BMEREEBEMNUERENS
i R

—  We checked the accuracy and relevance of
the input data on sample basis.
BRI AT AR B A BIR EREME MR
B o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FSEEEIR

FRESTEIE (8)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRMEFNAEEARENER

Fair value measurement of financial instruments held
at fair value classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy (Continued)
REBAREEAFIRSERAREFFZEMIAZA
RAEEHE (48)

The investments in film production were recorded as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
are subject to fair value measurement at the end of each
reporting period. The Group used discounted cash flows
under income approach to evaluate the fair value of
the investments in film production as at 31 March 2021,
and recognised a income of fair value of approximately
HK$2,323,000 in profit or loss in respect of the year ended
31 March 2021.
BEYRERBEARIMERAABFABRZERMEE &
ARBEREPHERKETAAEAE BEEEREK
NEERBRRERERFEETREFREN T —
A=+t -—BHNRARE EHBE_TE-_—F=A=+—
HIEFERERER A D EKRAL2,323,0008 7T °

The investment in convertible bond was recorded as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
are subject to fair value measurement at the end of each
reporting period. The Group used present value of the
stream of future cash flows to evaluate the fair value of the
investment in convertible bond as at 31 March 2021.
AMKRESREARIMERAABFABRZEREE
BAREREHRETANBEFE-R_E_—F=H
=+—H EBESEERARKRREREZBRENHATHRAR
EFREZRARIE

These conclusions required the significant management’s
judgment, with respect to the discount rate and the
underlying cash flows, in particular future revenue of the
films.

ZEEWHEEEEHURXLRERRECRE (LERSE
T BEe ) EHEARHE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FSEEEIR

FRETEIR (E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRMEFNAEEARENER

Fair value measurement of financial instruments held
at fair value classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy (Continued)
REBAREEAFIRSERAREFFZEMIAZA
RAEEHE (48)

To support management’s determination of the fair value
used for impairment assessment purposes, the Group
has engaged external independent qualified valuers
to perform fair value valuation on investments in film
production and convertible bond.
RXBEBBETANBETANAAE BEXEEEZE
BB LS ERGEEMBEZRIERTRRESIREE
TRREME-

We focused on fair value measurement of investments in
film production and convertible bond as the magnitude of
the investments in film and convertible bond is significant
and management assessment of the fair value involves
judgments and estimates, key assumptions including the
basis of selection for the comparable films, discount rate
and the underlying cash flows, in particular future revenue
of the films.

BREIREXRERTRARESFREZANENE R
ARRETLRABRESRECHBEEAN BEEEHR
RENFH R RAGREAUARBRERRARASY 2 2%
MEEXLEERSRE (FRIRARERZNE) WHERRR -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ERE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

BRRR &R &L

13

a8
iph=¢

EEFHHMENBRE EMENEETH
RERANER ETBEEAVBERERR
BRI BB R

+°

BRHEAVBRROBEL NREE
BR HATAHZEEMENBEREMFAT
AEEEW -

BARMNYREYBRENES RFANE
TEHEBEMER FlEET ZREM
EHNROREEMBBRRARMERTB
BRRMEROBRFEENRBHEUT
FHEERERRANER - EREAD AT
T MREMRSEMERFEERS
RRE BMPFERESZEE-EETE
BIVRBEAERE -

EEREEEOAEBRGEME

&
BRAROEE

EXZFREARBEEGAMAEHEMNE
78 B 7% S YE R M BB R ARG B R AR
ERHEEMT B NGRAMBRE  WETT
EERRBEZAMES] - AEERS MR
KRBT FEHRRFFRERMERD
EARERRA

EREGAMBHREAK EFAEFNME &
SESEKLENREN YEERBRTHE
EBEKEEHNER UREAKERLSE
REER RFIEETFEN EEEBR
HIFUEEE S BEEMERERNERNER

BEERABARTEE E£ENUK
BERFWARE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2021

Kwong Tin Lap
Practising certificate number: P01953

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F, Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre,
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= A S A
fReflax
Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-_—F=A=+T—HIFE

2021 2020
—B-—% —E_EE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ETT FET
REVENUE I & 6 53,930 66,246
Cost of sales and services HE KRS AR (46,173) (58,635)
Gross profit EF 7,757 7,611
Other income and gains Eqth Uk A B b z5 6 34,273 8,996
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (2,974) (1.749)
Administrative expenses TR X (41,038) (74,285)
Other operating expenses HAth 4R 7 (27,342) (48,670)
Finance costs DF == 8 (3,058) (5,111)
Share of profit of a joint venture AME—EEEA 18 44 103
Share of profit of an associate oG — BB & A 7] i A 17 13,737 10,712
LOSS BEFORE TAX R A E 18 9 (18,601) (102,393)
Income tax credit ST & 1 435 708
LOSS FOR THE YEAR KEEEE (18,166) (101,685)
Loss for the year attributable to: THALTRIERFE
=i
Owners of the Company PiN/NETE Z =N (15,274) (98,399)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R 2 (2,892) (3,286)
(18,166) (101,685)
2021 2020
—T-—% —EETHF
HK cents HK cents
A&l B
LOSS PER SHARE ZN/NGIE ¥ DN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS BREE
OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic YN (2.15) (22.24)
Diluted e N/A RiEH N/A 8 F
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEREBRR

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-_—F=A=+T—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—-%5 —ETF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E THET FHT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEEE (18,166) (101,685)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hip2EB A ()
INCOME/(EXPENSE)
ltems that may be reclassified to profit R E & HifE A] E¥ 5 48
or loss in subsequent periods: ZEmCIER :
Share of exchange differences on HEBRE—HEE
translation of a joint venture NARIZEH ZRE 18 101 73
Share of exchange differences on DhRE —HEE
translation of an associate NRIZER =% 17 1,456 (1,154)
Reclassification adjustment relating to B HH & /BN ETEH R
foreign operations disposed of ZEHR DA 2 -
Exchange differences on translation ¥ E GINER 2
of foreign operations MEH 5 2,744 (2,148)
4,303 (3,229)
ltems that may not be reclassified to A E & HAfE A g~ & =T
profit or loss in subsequent periods: D EEEZR ZEE ¢
Gain on property revaluation, L E- G
net of tax MR IA 13 = 1,012
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AEFHEMEE
INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR Wt A/ () 4,303 (2,217)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE A4 [E 2 X 4258
FOR THE YEAR (13,863) (103,202)
Total comprehensive expense THATEEARFE
for the year attributable to: 2 TH A 2 48 58 -
Owners of the Company iN/NETE Z N (11,746) (100,036)
Non-controlling interests FEIE A & (2,117) (3,866)
(13,863) (103,202)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBERAE
As at 31 March 2021
RZEZ—F=A=+—H

2021 2020
—EC-—f —EFF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TER FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE R 13 41,196 44,027
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 14 22,868 20,387
Investment properties REYE 15 63,181 69,382
Intangible assets EmREE 16 - 10,250
Investment in an associate R—EEE QR 2"E 17 93,000 91,000
Investment in a joint venture R—HE&EERFIZERE 18 - =
Prepayments and deposits AR I RIES 23 - 230
220,245 235,276
CURRENT ASSETS mEE E
Inventories FE 20 4,535 8,802
Trade receivables JFE W2 B X 21 14,155 8,338
Loan and interest receivables RIS 3R i I B 22 - 11,129
Prepayments, deposits and other ERHIE  He REAM
receivables JiE U FR I8 23 39,542 36,656
Financial assets at fair value EBERARBEFABREZ
through profit or loss TREE 24 81,955 51,022
Cash and cash equivalents ReREEEY 25 40,078 28,441
180,265 144,388
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBaE
Trade payables J& - BR K 26 3,603 5,113
Contract liabilities ABHEE 27 3,377 7,279
Other payables, accruals and deposits £ i JE 5 508 « FE&T
received RIARBWIRE 28 60,151 72,918
Interest-bearing bank and other STERITREMES
borrowings 29 23,396 30,513
Lease liabilities HERE 31 1,162 90
Income tax payable FETER1S R 15,327 15,528
107,016 131,441
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEE EFE 73,249 12,947
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEAEBRRDAR
LIABILITIES 293,494 248,223
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEeMEBERAE

As at 31 March 2021

RZE-_—4F¢=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E=-—%§ —E-FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Deposits received =L ¢in 28 125 67
Interest-bearing other borrowings st EHEMEE 29 - 8,262
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 30 1,998 2,351
Lease liabilities HEAE 31 18,879 16,985
21,002 27,665
Net assets BEFEE 272,492 220,558
EQUITY B
Share capital [N 32 8,728 60,655
Reserves ke 34 274,718 168,740
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NEIE SN
of the Company W 283,446 229,395
Non-controlling interests FEFEAE 37 (10,954) (8,837)
Total equity T m AR 272,492 220,558

BN FAE206A N FEAMBRERC N =
——FRXA= +EIZ%§$ ?tt/%&?ﬁ%ﬁ
ToWHNIEFRAERE

The consolidated financial statements on page 64 to 206 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chung Yuk Lun Wong Chong Fai

EER HhlE
Director Director
o EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SelaEDR

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-_—F=A=+T—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATREAES
Goodwill Retained
Share Asset  eliminated Exchange profits/ Non-
Share premium Capital ~ Contributed  revaluation against  fluctuation  (accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve surplus reserve’ reserves reserve losses) Total interests equity
A
fft a5 BEEf H#z By  REEH/ R 4]
& BER 1 SNEBH Ly ik i (RitBR) Eh i a5
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tkt Tk Tt Fitn Fitn T T T T T TEn
1 April 2019 RZE-hEEA-A 40437 189,075 41925 - 20974 (152) 2,174 7,386 303419 (@9m) 298,448
Loss for the year REEER = = = o = = = (98,399 (98,3%9) (3.286) (101,685)
Other comprehensive income/ RERZEMRE
(expenses| for the year: WA/ (R%) : -
Share of exchange differences MeaE-HAE
on translation of a joint venture RAZEREE - - - - - - i3 - i3 - i
Share of exchange differences HMeaE—EEE
on translation of an associate RRZEXZR - - - - - - (1,154) - (1,154) = (1,154)
Exchange diferences on translation  #EENEHELZE
of foreign operations - - - - - - (1,568) - (1,568) (580) (2,148)

Gain on property revaluation L6 - - - - 1012 - - - 1012 - 1012
Total comprehensive income/ REEZRERN/

(expenses) for the year (Rx) &8 = - - - 1012 - (2,649) (98,399 (100,036) (3.866) (103902)
Issue of shares BIRH 2018 8,087 - - - - - - 28,305 - 28,305
Shares issue expenses DU - (2.293) - = - - = = 2.3 = (2,293
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020

60,655 194,869 41,925 - 22,986 (152) 125 (91,013) 229,395 (8,837) 220,558
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (15,274) (15,274) (2,892) (18,166)
Other comprehensive income/ RERZEMEE
(expenses) for the year: WA/ (%) - -
Share of exchange differences AMraE-Rag
on translation of a joint venture RAZERZE - - - - - - 101 - 101 - 101
Share of exchange differences AraE-RHEE
on translation of an associate RAZERZE - - - - - - 1,456 - 1,456 - 1,456
Exchange differences on translation 288 ¥ K EHZE
of foreign operations - - - - - - 1,969 - 1,969 775 2,744
Reclassification adjustment relating B &85 EHEE L
to foreign operations disposed of ~ EFHEFE - - - - - - 2 - 2 - 2
Total comprehensive income/ REEZRENN/ (AR

(expense) for the year #8 - - - - - - 3,528 (15,274) (11,746) (2,117) (13,863)
Issue of shares Bk 13,581 53,795 - - - - - - 67,376 - 67,376
Shares issue expenses i BITRE - (1,579) - - - - - - (1.579) - (1,579)
Capital reduction BRHIR (65,508) - - 65,508 - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2021 R=3--§=A=1+-H 8728 247,085 41,925 65,508 22,986 (152) 3,653 (106,287)* 283,446 (10,954) 272,492

AEEMRERELEXIEMVETUARERR
ARBEFEZEREDE-

The asset revaluation reserve arose from changes in use from owner-
occupied properties to investment properties carried at fair value.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEBaRER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZT-—F=A=+—ALFE

2021 2020
—B-—% —EC-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Fft 53 FERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBEL RS
ACTIVITIES mE
Loss before tax B 4 AT BT 1B (18,601) (102,393)
Adjustments for: BT BTRFEE
Finance costs B8 A 8 3,058 5,111
Share of profit of a joint venture SME—REERRZ
gl 18 (44) (103)
Share of profit of an associate SME—REE QR Z
i A 17 (13,737) (10,712)
Bank interest income RITHAEHA 6 (11) (23)
Write-back of other payables H b FE A5 FR I8 #5 [T 6 = (692)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B ARz 6 (175) -
Gain on disposal of intangible HERVEEZ
assets W %= 6 (4,263) -
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE BER&E
property, plant and equipment BB 2 W= 6 (14,478) (177)
(Gain)/loss on changes in fair value KEMERNNE
of investment properties g8 (M=) BB 6,7 (3,037) 2,088
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial BASEFABEZ
assets at fair value through PREEZANE
profit or loss, net (zs) BERFE
— equity investments at fair value —BRAREFA
through profit or loss BRBRERE 6 (1,256) (2,300)
— investment in film production —BYRERE 6,7 (2,323) 13,647
Depreciation of property, ME - MEMRREBITE
plant and equipment 9 4,525 6,077
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 9 990 1,411
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEZEHE 9 1,250 1,750
Impairment of trade receivables & W BR FORE 7 30 2,013
Impairment of other receivables H At & WK ITER B 7 - 127
Impairment of property, M- ME MRERE
plant and equipment 7 - 2,706
Provision for inventory obsolescence  #iEfF EH & 9 291 66
Impairment loss/(reversal of R—HEaERAIZRE
impairment loss) on investment MEEE, ORE
in and loan to a joint venture EBEER) RERT
—HBERTA 6,7 324 (98)
Impairment loss on investment in R—EBERRIZERE
an associate ZREEE 7 13,193 18,543
Impairment loss on loan and FE W E R R E W R B 2
interest receivables B B 1R 7 - 9,480
Impairment loss on goodwill R B EE R 7 2,666 -
Written off of loan and JE LB R R E W S
interest receivables i 85 7 11,129 -

SHENXEREEBAER DA 2020/2021 £/ 69



70

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ReBaRE

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—FZA=-+—HLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—% TECEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 FHET FAET
Operating cash flows before EEEEHAIZ
movements in working capital KEBERE (20,469) (53,485)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, () 3,976 (1,084)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables JEUBRZX (320) /8 (5,847) 15,272
Increase in loan and interest receivables & W & 7k & & U Fl =38 40 - (587)
Decrease in prepayments, BNFIE Re Rk
deposits and other receivables H h 8 WK IR R 15,315 76,501
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets ZA DA ABEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SEMEE (Em) R
— convertible bond — AR ESH (15,534) =
— equity investments at fair value —ERARBERABRZ
through profit or loss iR E 1,703 3,307
— investments in film production —BYEERE (13,523) (58,965)
Decrease in trade payables JFE 1<F BR FURL A (1,510) (2,594)
Decrease in other payables, H Ath fE T FRIE - FEET
accruals and deposits received FERBWEZEE R (13,196) (6,406)
Decrease in contract liabilities aHaBERY (3,902) (5,360)
Exchange realignment R (2,109) 2,775
Cash used in operations REERMEZIR® (55,096) (30,626)
Interest paid B F & (2,520) (4,506)
Interest element of finance lease REREN KT E
payments zi52) - (30)
Interest element of lease liabilities HEGEBENRFEHBD
payments (538) (575)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEFENEH (201) (33)
PRC profits tax paid B REFEH - Q)
Net cash used in operating activities & ¥R T F5E (58,355) (35,771)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ﬁéiﬂﬁlllbg

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_Z-—F=-A=+—ALLFE

2021 2020
—T-—F —EETF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERDELEZRE
ACTIVITIES mE
Bank interest received EUERITHE 1 23
Net cash outflow from acquisition WiE—RME QR 2
of a subsidiary Wem LR 35 (19,957) -
Purchases of items of property, plant EE¥ % - KFE k& #E
and equipment I8 H (583) (1,366)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BERHK
property, plant and equipment 18 B PSR 16,372 2,650
Proceeds from disposal of H %Tﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂa IE
investment properties 10,255 7,037
Proceed from disposal of HEBEEEMSRE
intangible assets 13,263 -
Net cash outflow from disposal of HERBRRZ
subsidiaries Wemt F58 36 (6) =
Proceeds from disposal of HEZRAABERA
financial assets at fair value through ~ HEfiZ2EIWA Z
other comprehensive income S RLEE TSR - 290
Net cash generated from KEESMFZ
investing activities Be 55 19,355 8,634
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MELTHELEZRS
ACTIVITIES mE
Proceeds from issue of shares AR B 2T R
upon rights issue P15 7008 67,376 28,305
Share issue expenses f&% 15 ?’*TTFfﬁi (1,579) (2,293)
New other loan asﬁia,\ﬂﬂgm 5,134 18,551
Repayment of bank loans EBEEITER - (525)
Repayment of other loans =t ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%m (20,513) -
Capital element of finance lease MEMEENKZER
payments B - (1,133)
Capital element of lease liabilities HEABENRZEARLS
payments (245) (847)
Net cash generated from MEFHEL RS
financing activities HER 50,173 42,058
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BekReEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS HEINE R 11,173 14,921
Cash and cash equivalents FUzRERREE
at beginning of year (EX7) 28,441 13,937
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEFFHTEFE
changes, net 464 (417)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZACEREE
AT END OF YEAR (=K 26 40,078 28,441
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FaEMBERRME

31 March 2021
—E-—4%=ZA=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.
The Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong is
located at Room 22, 22/F, On Hong Commercial Building, 145
Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group, comprising the Company and its
subsidiaries, was engaged in the manufacture and trading
of optical frames and sunglasses, property investment,
investment in debts and securities, film distribution business
and energy business that engaged in investments in energy
sector related instrument and sale and trading of liquefied
petroleum gas products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

AT REEEH
SEXSEHBEEEBRAA (AR
Al ARBEREFMKIZERAR -
AN A) 2 5 it it = B AL A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda e R RRIZ BB F E
EEMBAMRBAEFEHEFE4S
TR FERNE22E22E ©

FRAKE(BREARRLENEA
ADRERERRABREZHER
EE DERE BEHAEFREE
FRTEHBRNEHERAHMERTA
REARBRICABREMBEERE S
ZBEIRETS

BAMBHREABT (HTFAERRR
ZWEEEHE) 25

AHMBASZEHN
AARNEEMBARZHBERT :

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered paid-in equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
130 AT Y ) ERfTLER/ AATRELS
Z% B EFMEERE RS TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
Elegance Optical Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 and - 100 Investment holding and
Limited NG non-voting deferred property investment
RERERABRAT HK$20,000,000% REZRENERE
EER200E TR
ERFEETR
20,000,0007% 7
Elegance Optical Manufactory Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment holding and
Limited N LEk2ET trading of optical frames
BRERGRERBRAR REBRERRERZES
Fortune Optical Limited The People’s Republic Registered - 55 Trading and manufacture
("Fortune Optical")** of China ("PRC") HK$43,700,000 of optical frames
REAERFEBERAF hEE AR AR [EEA RER2BHREE
(Rzal=]) (rreEl) 43,700,000/ 7T
Gold Strong Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 55 Investment holding and
EFRIZBRART 0 HK$100 trading of optical frames
LERI008 T REZBRERERZES
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME

31 March 2021

—E-—%=ZA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

ABREEER (E)
FHAMBASIZEH (F)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of

registration and registered paid-in equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
30 RT3 ) ERfTLER/ KATRELS
Z% BEME EEMARRE BRES 5 TEEH
Direct Indirect
B Gk
People by People Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 - 100 Trading of optical
e L ER2007% 1T frames and bags in
Hong Kong and
Southeast Asia
WEERRE BT
RERRTRZES
BEXE (R BERRA PRC Registered = 100  Trading and manufacture
(TERRI ) H RMB33,000,000 of optical frames
[EE RRRZE SR EGE
AR #33,000,0007T
Brilliant Plan Global Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100 - Securities investment
BRARKERAF ("BVI") LTERIET ErRE
RBRAHS
([RBRZHE])
Capital Real Estate Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Money lending
Development Limited B 310,000/ 7T it
BHEXBRAERAA
Filmko Pictures (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100 Film distribution
Co. Limited ) L3 210,000,000% 7T BITEY
EREFE(BR)BRAR
Gulf Energy (China) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,000 - 100 Energy business
BEER (PE)BRAA 50 380%20,000,000% 7T RERET

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
the year and at the end of the year.

REARFEFR HEMRBRREET

EEHES -

SHEAERBREBGR AR 2020/2021 F 7R
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

* The first HK$1,000,000,000,000 of the profits which the subsidiary
may determine to distribute in any financial year must be distributed
among the holders of ordinary shares where one half of the balance
of the said profits is distributed among the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares and the other half of such balance among the
holders of ordinary shares. Moreover, the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares have no other rights to dividends. The holders of the
non-voting deferred shares have no right to attend or vote at general
meetings, except for general meetings convened for the purpose of
reducing the capital of the Company or altering their class rights.
The non-voting deferred shares carry the right to receive one half of
the balance of any surplus in a return of capital in a winding-up after
the holders of the ordinary shares have received a total return of
HK$5,000,000,000.

*x Fortune Optical and @ & Il are registered as wholly-foreign-owned

enterprises under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

1.

ABREEEH (E)
FAEMBASZEHM (6)

fifd 5% FfT /88 22 ] 4 T 17 B B 6 B 0 R 0
F - 78 # £ 7 & %£1,000,000,000,0007% 7T
’ﬁiﬁ%%@%%ﬁ)\*ﬁﬁim%ﬂﬁ%?ﬂz
— kA RTERERETCRIEA
—¥HRADETFE @h%ﬁA&MM
ERERBEERFSA AW & 0
BRE - ERERECERFAAERY
ﬁh%ﬁﬁim%iﬁ%~ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁm
RARARERBEZHANENTERZ
& BR K & BR AN o 4R ZE R IR T AR P A A
F-AIRERREEBRSEABEA L
5,000,000,000/8 T 1% ' BB TR sR E RN 2
,*D

= RERIE SRR E S BDER M
RENEDRZE-

ERFIAEERATEFEAKE
AEEXEIBRASEEEFEE
KB ZARBIMNBRAR - EERA
FIEMHBARFHBERESREBR
T

HWEEBROPEEXRESELEM (K
iﬁfﬁ?i ERLAR R ) - T % BE AL 9 A AP

DEBELE BRLEXT AR
ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁmuxﬁﬁ%mﬂﬁzm‘ﬁz%
BRFAZXHREE-EHBRT
BHENHEREHEXFNEHE
BERRENRECELEMBOE-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2021
—E-—%=ZA=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. EHEEUBREEN([F
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BB HREZER]) Z2EBFTK
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily REAEEBHNERZEEM
effective for the current year HEFAETEX

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting in HKFRS Standards and the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 April 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

RAFE AEEERRHESEEUH
W%%ME%EE% AEAE ([&
SHMAG)BEMEIN T -F
Eﬂ B8k KA 2 F 2 9
2 E SRS R IR
EMSERZ IR ZETAAR T

BREWBRE LA AR A

Amendments to Definition of Material BEAGHENSEIR EBRZER
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 REBGHEL
FE8RZIEFT AR
Amendments to Definition of a Business BB BRE %R EBMTEER
HKFRS 3 XA PN
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform BB TSR &R FIREEYE

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Fo% - BEET
BRIEIRREE
MRS ERETHR
ZERTR

BRTIXHdEIN RAFERBEL
MHHREEMNPEBRIERZ AL
BRI RARBEHBREE ZEFT R
HAKER B KBEFEZMBR
R&%ﬁ&/ﬁ&iﬁé%%ﬁ%%
HeWBEYEEATE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a
Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments clarify that while businesses
usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an
integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business.
To be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and
assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs
or processes and continuing to produce outputs. The
amendments also introduce additional guidance that helps to
determine whether a substantive process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. Under the optional concentration test, the acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash and bank balances,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects
of deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether to apply
the optional concentration test is available on transaction-by-
transaction basis.

The Group acquired a set of activities and assets in February
2021 and did not elect to apply the concentration test to
that transaction. Based on the assessment of elements of
a business, the Group concluded that the acquired set of
activities and assets is a business.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'

Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions?

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 2°
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current!
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to HKFRS ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards Standards 2018-2020?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022.

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs that are not yet
effective will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statement, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users.

Going concern assessment

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &x
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL =

IEpO
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B ()

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

= has power over the investee;
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

= is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

—  the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date when the Group gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the equity holders of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
equity holders of the Company.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Business combination or assets acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 April 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test
is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be
a business and no further assessment is needed.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at
the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

= deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 "Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits”
respectively;
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
"Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

= assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

- lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair
value at subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity, over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in associate and joint venture
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interests in associates or joint ventures may be
impaired. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held
for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part of interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in associate and joint venture
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for
use in the production or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Shorter of the lease terms and 2%

Shorter of the lease terms and the
rates of 5% to 10%

10% to 20%

10% to 20%

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which
are being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by
the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer to investment properties from owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under "Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserve.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are subsequently amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Distribution rights

Distribution rights are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 4 years.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of property, plant and equipment, and
land that have a lease term of twelve months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and are initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments includes:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modlfications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use assets. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the leases transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured using fair value model.

Rental income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business is presented as revenue.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business is included in other income.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset, the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i1)

(iir)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will continue to be held in the
investment revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
loan and interest receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL, The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial

significantly since initial recognition,

instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

J an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligation;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

J an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
365 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable date about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner, Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the below basis:

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
J External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 March 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or the
Group has the sole discretion to defer payment of distribution
and redemption of principal amount indefinitely are classified
as equity instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables
and deposits received, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, and lease liabilities, are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit and loss.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
financial liability from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when the Group currently
has a legally enforceable legal right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted
as to use.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit/loss differs from profit/loss before tax
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sales.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulted in net
deductible temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’'s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract assets and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Based on the historical pattern, revenue from film distribution
agency service is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation, as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
basis when the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods to its customers.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis, except for the allocation of discounts.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell promised goods or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satistaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants (including directors of the Company and
employees of the Group) who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations, under which such participants
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby participants render services as
consideration for equity instruments.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss. When share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.

When share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the profit or loss in respect of the period as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the profit or loss in
respect of the period as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured.

3.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, and a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgment. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgment in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of investment in an associate

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment of associate at the end of each reporting period.
Investment in an associate are tested for impairment when
there are indications that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on comparable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. Changes in business circumstances
of the associate may significantly affect the recoverable
amount of the investment which would result in additional
impairment loss to be made or reversal of impairment loss
previously made. Details of the impairment loss recognised
on investment in associate are set out in note 17.

Impairment loss on inventories

Management of the Group reviews the usage of the
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
provision for obsolete and slow-moving items where events
or changes in circumstances indicates that the net realisable
value of such inventories are expected to be less than their
carrying amount. In addition, physical counts on all inventories
are carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine
whether provision is needed to be made in respect of any
obsolete inventories identified. The directors of the Company
are satisfied that adequate provision for obsolete inventories
has been made in the consolidated financial statements.
As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of inventories
was approximately HK$4,535,000, net of provision for
obsolete inventories of approximately HK$21,423,000 (2020:
approximately HK$8,802,000, net of provision for obsolete
inventories of approximately HK$20,372,000).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’'s judgement
at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that the trade receivables are impaired.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer and the assessment of the expected credit
loss. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of the ability
of the customers to make payments, additional allowances
may be required. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was approximately HK$14,155,000,
net of impairment of trade receivables of approximately
HK$2,363,000 (2020: approximately HK$8,338,000, net
of impairment of trade receivables of approximately
HK$2,333,000).

The Group uses four categories for expected credit loss
assessment of deposits and other receivables which reflect
their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for
each of those categories. These internal credit risk ratings are
aligned to external credit ratings, where possible.

The information about the expected credit loss assessment of
the Group's receivables are disclosed in note 43.

Impairment of loan and interest receivables

When there is objective evidence of an impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Further details of loan and interest
receivables are included in note 22.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Management of the Group determines on a regular basis
whether there are any indications that the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are impaired. Impairment
loss for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are impaired when the carrying amounts of each of the
assets exceed their respective recoverable amounts, which
are determined based on the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. The fair values of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated by
reference to their expected selling prices which are affected
by various factors, including market conditions and the
technological occurrence. The value in use calculation requires
the use of estimates such as the future revenue and discount
rates. If the recoverable amount of an item of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount and an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss in respect
of the period. For the current year, no impairment loss was
recognised on the Group's property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (2020: impairment loss amounted to
approximately HK$2,706,000 recognised on property, plant
and equipment and no impairment loss recognised on right-
of-use assets).

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as expected usage of the asset,
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset.
The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment are different from previous estimates.
Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end date based on changes in circumstances.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value measurement of financial
instruments held at fair value classified under Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy

As at 31 March 2021, investments in film production and
convertible bond are carried at fair value, estimated to
be approximately HK$61,164,000 (2020: approximately
HK$45,318,000) and approximately HK$15,534,000 (2020:
HK$NIl) respectively, with fair value classified under Level 3
and determined based on significant unobservable inputs
using valuation techniques. Judgment and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and
the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating
to these factors could result in material adjustments to the
fair value of these financial instruments. Details of the fair
value measurement of the investments in film production and
convertible bond are set out in Note 42.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
Investment properties are carried in the consolidated financial
statements at their fair value. The best evidence of fair value
of the Group's investment properties are current prices in an
active market for similar properties in the same location and
condition and subject to similar leases and other contracts.
In making its judgement, management considers information
from: (i) independent valuations; and (ii) external evidence
such as current market rates for similar properties in the
same location and condition. Details regarding the fair value
measurement of the Group's investment properties as at
31 March 2021 are set out in note 15.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2021 was approximately
HK$199,808,000 (2020: approximately HK$181,771,000).
Further details are disclosed in note 30.

4.
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FEMBHREMEE
31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
five reportable operating segments (2020: four reportable
operating segments) as follows:

(@) the manufacturing and trading segment engaged
in manufacture and trading of optical frames and
sunglasses;

(b) the property investment segment engaged in leasing of
properties for rental income;

(c) the debts and securities investment segment engaged in
investments in financial instruments and quoted shares;

(d) the film investment and distribution segment engaged
in film right and movie investments and distributions;
and

(e) the energy business segment engaged in investments in
energy sector related instrument and sale and trading of
liquefied petroleum gas products.

The management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit/ loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit/loss before tax
except that bank and other interest income, finance costs and
unallocated gains as well as corporate and other unallocated
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

During the year, the Group commenced the energy business
engaging in sale and trading of liquefied petroleum gas
products following the completion of acquisition of Gulf
Energy (China) Limited, and this business is regarded as a new
operating and reportable segment by the management of the
Group.

Segment assets exclude other unallocated head office
and corporate assets, including cash and cash equivalents,
investments in and balances with a joint venture, certain
property, plant and equipment and loan and interest
receivables, as these assets are managed on a group basis.
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. o#&H (&)
Segment liabilities exclude other unallocated head office DEEBBETREEMRSERENZR
and corporate liabilities, including interest-bearing bank and kitZaE EPRBEFERITRE
other borrowings, income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities EE ENMAEH BREHREEER
and other payables, accruals and deposits received, as these HEMENIE Bt REREWIES
liabilities are managed on a group basis. LITHRZEaEREEELEER -
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference DHEEERERI2ENERME
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the ME=ZFHEZEBMET
then prevailing market prices.
In respect of the year ended 31 March 2021 RBE-_F-_—F=A=+—HLE
Em=E
Film
Debts and investment
Manufacturing Property securities and Energy
and trading  investment investment distribution business Total
EBR  ERRER
REREE  WERE fickdid BT RERER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TR FEL FEL FEL FEL
Segment revenue P 49,012 2,425 = 3,046 = 54,483
Inter-segment revenue PHENE - (553) - - = (553)
Revenue from external customers RENBER2KE 49,012 1,872 - 3,046 S 53,930
Segment profit/(loss) SR/ (B8) 2,571* (1,612)%* (831) (12,712 (434) (13,018)
Bank interest income RITMERA "
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR W& 175
Bad debt recovery ZH e 2,000
Impairment loss on goodwill ABRESSE (2,666)
Corporate and other unallocated TEREMRIERX
expenses (15,826)
Finance costs HBER (3,058)
Share of profit of a joint venture AME—HEEERA &R 44 - - - - 44
Share of profit of an associate PME—FBEAF 2 &7 - - - 13,737 - 13,737
Loss before tax BEAIER (18,601)
Segment assets HBEE 92,857 63,569 5,307 155,025 34,436 351,194
Corporate and other unallocated assets ¥R EMFNEEE 49,316
Total assets BEES 400,510
Segment liabilities HipALE 66,713 696 357 26,732 2,019 96,517
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMRAEAR
liabilities 31,501
Total liabilities BERE 128,018
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REeMBRERME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Included gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$14,478,000 as the corresponding assets

previously included in segment assets of manufacturing and trading.

*%

Included gain on disposal of intangible assets and change in fair value

of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — investments
in film production of approximately HK$4,263,000 and HK$2,323,000
respectively as the corresponding assets previously included in
segment assets of film investment and distribution.

Included gain on change in fair value of investment properties of

approximately HK$3,037,000 as the corresponding assets previously

5. ﬁ*ﬂéﬂ( 5 )
BRELEME BERREBEE ZBEH
14,478,000 7T + bt 5 B3 AA A A & EE ST AT

*%

FARERBEENBEE-

BRBEETEERRARE ARS
B

EREEZAAEED -

Z

HIFREZ

U 25 9 Bl 494,263,0005% 7T K2.2,323,00078

Jo BT R R A E L AT A

RBEOTHMEE-

= By

EXRE

BREREVERIAEEDH Z2EED
3,037,000/ 7T » bk )Y A AR BE & E e AT At

included in segment assets of property investment. AMEREDFEE-
Film
Debts and investment
Manufacturing Property securities and Energy
and trading  investment investment  distribution business Total
EHR  ERRER
REREE WERE EHRE £ RiREHS @t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TiER FET FET FET TFET
Other segment information: HibppEs:
Share of profit of a joint venture AE—AEERRZ &R 44 - - - - 44
Share of profit of an associate PE—HBEDNT G - - - 13,737 - 13,737
Depreciation and amortisation nEREH
Segment expenses PEEX (4,048) (409) - (2,123) (177) (6,757)
Unallocated 5& (8)
Total @it (6,765)
Impairment loss on investment R-FBERRZ
in an associate REREER - - - (13,193) - (13,193)
Impairment loss of inventories FEREER (291) - - - - (291)
Impairment of trade receivables YR SR (E (30) - - - - (30)
Written off of loan and interest JEM B S T JE IR 2 R 3R
receivables
Segment expenses ABRAX - - - - - -
Unallocated AR (11,129)
Total 5t (11,129)
Provision for impairment R-HaERRZRE
loss on investment in and loan to REBBEBERER
a joint venture T-HEEAH (324) = = = = (324)
Additions to items of property, REME BERRBER
plant and equipment 583 - - - - 583
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ##ER(E)
In respect of the year ended 31 March 2020 BBEE_ST-_FTHF=HA=+—HLE
Ems
Debts and Film
Manufacturing Property securities  investment and
and trading investment investment distribution Total
BHR BERER
HEREE NERE EHRE B Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THR T FHL
Segment revenue S 62,609 2,768 = 1529 66906
Inter-segment revenue EEME = (660) = = (660)
Revenue from external customers RENIEP 2 W 62,609 2,108 = 1529 66,246
Segment (loss)/profit 88 (B1E) /aH (35,360 (5,006 (1,558) (53,108) (95,062
Bank interest income FAFBBA 23
Interest income from loan receivables ERERFSHA 2,187
Corporate and other unallocated expenses *EREMAIRER (15,245)
Finance costs BBER (5,111
Share of profit of a joint venture AE—EREREZER 103 - - - 103
Share of profit of an associate MME—FBE AR 2 &7 = = = 10,712 10,712
Loss before tax BEAER (102,393)
Segment assets PIEE 109,925 69,865 5,967 154,316 340,073
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ tEREMAHIREE 39,591
Total assets AERE 379,664
Segment liabilities HpaE 74,233 795 35 24,625 99,688
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ¥ REMAXAREE 59,418
Total liabilities BEAE 159,106
e Included gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment * BREEEME BERRKEER 2BRH
of approximately HK$177,000 as the corresponding assets previously 177,000 7T+ 5B B B E ST ATET A
included in segment assets of manufacturing and trading. BERBEEDEEE-
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SE&AH (&)
Debts and Film
Manufacturing Property securities  investment and
and trading investment investment distribution Total
BHR EYRER
HEREER NERE BERE Ed @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL AT TAR  FER AR
Other segment information: £ ipEH:
Share of profit of a joint venture Ah—AAERAZER 103 - - - 103
Share of profit of an associate PME—RBE DR 2GR - - - 10,712 10,712
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH
Segment expenses PHRX (5,480) (309) = (3,150) (8,939)
Unallocated KPR (299)
Total @t (9,238)
Impairment loss on investment R-HBERRZRENERR
in an associate - - - (18,543) (18,543)
Impairment loss of inventories FEREER (66) - - = (66)
Impairment of trade receivables EY R FURE (2,013) - - = (2,013)
Impairment of loan and interest ERERRERFSHE
receivables
Segment expense ABREX - - - - -
Unallocated AR (9,480)
Total a5t (9,480)
Reversal of impairment loss on BER-HRERRZREA
investment in and loan to REBBRERT-HagRd
a joint venture 98 - - - 98
Additions to items of property, RENE BERREER
plant and equipment 1,087 - - 219 1,366
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 9EEE (E)

Geographical information b 13 & 44
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) REIBEFE W H
2021 2020
—B-—% —E-TE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T8 T
Europe M 4,071 14,485
America =M 38,025 40,586
The People’s Republic of China hEARAM
("PRC") (including Hong Kong) ([FFE]) (BESH) 9,139 8,884
Other Asian countries =R IETES 2,695 2,091
Others Eith - 200
53,930 66,246

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the customers. The PRC (including Hong Kong)
segment mainly represents rental income from lease of
the Group’s properties located in the PRC (including
Hong Kong), the sales of eyewear products to agents
located in Hong Kong including sales made to local
retailers, fair value gains on equity investments listed in
Hong Kong. The directors are of the opinion that the
agents in Hong Kong export the Group’s products mainly
to ultimate customers located in Europe and America.

Non-current assets

All significant operating assets of the Group are
located in the PRC (including Hong Kong). Accordingly,
no geographical information of segment assets is
presented.

Information about major customers
Revenue from individual customers of the corresponding

bt BRI IRIBEE P AT EH
o -FE(BEFB)DBER
BRESEXAEELNTEHR (R
BEREIZHERRZEBZKA
R R EENRIEE R TE/EH
ERFEEMEEDS LMBRERE
MAREBERDR - BEFER/EEL
REFKAKEERETEHLOT
(VANEWIIYEF RS

ERBEE
AEBMRAEERNEEEEDUN
TE(BERESE) Hit YE=2
S EBEEZHIHER -

FRXEERZEH
REBEFERE/AKE TR A WS

10% A EMBEAREP ZWEIT

years contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group is

as follows:

2021 2020
—FC-—F —ERCEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
IR FEL
Revenue generated from
EXBTIRIEZME
Customer A Manufacturing and
trading
EFA SERE S 24,404 28,911
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FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—EZ-—4%=A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. WizRkHMUTA

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,

after allowances for returns and trade discounts, gross i

rental income and agency and commission income from film

distribution.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income is as

WHEHRERERBERESTINRE

EmzBERFE BHSBARE

FRIRERAZEA -

AEBR S M EMBAZ DT

follows:
2021 2020
—E-—f —E-THE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue: W&z
Sale of goods - at a point in time HESm—MNHE—
ik i 2 49,012 62,609
Film distribution agency and BYBRITREBEEAS
commission income — over time W A — B B [ 3,046 1,529
52,058 64,138
Rental income from lease of HEREMEZ
investment properties He A 1,872 2,108
53,930 66,246
Other income and gains: Hi A\ R s
Sale of scrap materials SHERER 1,038 323
Accounting service fee 2:R%E 1,320 1,080
Bank interest income HRITH B A 11 23
Bad debt recovery AR 2,000 =
Interest income from loan receivables FEUWE A B A = 2,187
Rental income from lease of machineries FHE#ZE 2 LU A 865 1,327
Gain on change in fair value of BRANEGFABRZ
financial assets at fair value EHMEEL
through profit or loss NAEZEB Y
— investments in film production —BREERE 2,323 =
Gains on change in fair value of BRADEGFAERLZ
equity investments at fair value RIERE 2 A AE
through profit or loss, net W5 = EE 1,256 2,306
Gain on disposal of items of HEME  WE R&RE
property, plant and equipment HE 2 W= 14,478 177
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEREEE 2 W 4,263 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAE 2 e 175 =
Gain on change in fair value of KEMEREE S
investment properties (note 15) ZWas (FYsE15) 3,037 =
Net foreign exchange gains R e 3,009 =
Government grants T 48 B 364 -
Write-back of other payables H th & 1 ;IR B - 692
Reversal of impairment BREREERNAZ
loss on investment in and loan to KEBEEE M
a joint venture (note 18) ERXRTFT—HEEEAT
(HI5E18) - 98
Others H At 134 783
34,273 8,996
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7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 7. HEEMX
2021 2020
¥ —F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Impairment of trade receivables JE W AR FORE (B 5E21)
(note 21) 30 2,013
Impairment of loan and interest JE W B R R e W A R
receivables (note 22) A (KTEE22) - 9,480
Impairment of other receivables H fth & YR TBRE S 127
Impairment loss on investment in an R—EBERRZKRE
associate (note 17) ZREEE (M5E17) 13,193 18,543
Impairment loss on investment in and R—E&a&RraZ
loan to a joint venture (note 18) RERBEBER
BEXT—H&aERA
(PH7E18) 324 -
Impairment loss on property, Wz BE MR ERE
plant and equipment =g - 2,706
Loss on change in fair value REMERAABEEE 2
of investment properties (note 15) EE (MEE15) - 2,088
Loss on change in fair value of BRAREFARREZ
financial assets at fair value through THREEZANE
profit or loss SEEE
— investments in film production — B EERE - 13,647
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 35) EEREEE (M5E35) 2,666 =
Written off of loan and interest FE B SR K FE WOR) 2
receivables (note 22) s (FFFE22) 11,129 -
Others Hh - 66
27,342 48,670
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBER
2021 2020
—¥Z—-F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Interest on bank and other borrowings ROTREMEENF S 2,520 4,506
Interest on finance leases BEHREFR S - 30
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEME 538 575
3,058 5111
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9.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

9.

BR%i Al 5 18

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBBRBABERNBR (5T A)
(crediting): TH & IE&ER:
2021 2020
—F-—-F —E-FFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Cost of inventories sold* BEFEKA 44,408 56,592
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERRBTE
equipment 4,525 6,077
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 990 1,411
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EE 2 8H 1,250 1,750
Auditor’s remuneration % SR BN &
— audit service —FBZAR 1,225 1,225
— non-audit service — B LR - 50
Short-term leases expenses HHEERY 1,752 2,164
Directors’ remuneration = 1,077 932
Employee benefit expense BERAMAX
(excluding directors’ and chief (TREEEN
executive's remuneration): TEARME)
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE HFehEMmER 19,163 32,928
Pension scheme contributions** RIREFT B 5K 710 1,989
Total employee benefit expense FTAHE R HEFAX
included in selling and distribution ARITHFA X 2
expenses and administrative expenses EERAFAX AR 20,950 35,849
Impairment loss of inventories FEREEBR 291 66
Foreign exchange losses, net b EE  FE S 4,569
Gross rental income He W A Bz (1,872) (2,108)
Less: Direct operating expenses BRI e 2R E
(including repairs and MEMELECEE
maintenance) arising from KERY (BRE#E
rental-earning investment RIRE)
properties* 224 294
Net rental income Gik A GG £ (1,648) (1,814)

*%

Included in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

"cost of sales and services”

on the face of the

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited

pension scheme contributions available to reduce its contributions to

the pension schemes in future years (2020: Nil).

* FIAGRABRERPZ [HERRBRA] -

** RBEHMR AREY EDZYORKEF

E
XA EIR R RFE ZRIKS 58It
(
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES'’
REMUNERATION

&
H
Y
pa
it

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration EERTHARZNE
2021 2020
—g-—F¥ —T_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees e 360 268
Other emoluments: Hib NS -
Basic salaries and bonuses HAFH& RIE4 688 630
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFT I 29 34
717 664
Total @t 1,077 932
a. Independent non-executive directors a. BYFHTES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

FRARABLFATESTIN 28

for the year were as follows: ST
2021 2020
—E-—-%F —E_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Chen You Chun R E S 8
Man Wai Lun SR 120 120
Cheung Chun Man B R 120 85
Hui Man Ho, Ivan AF X 120 -
Tang, Warren Louis EE R - 55
360 268

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors for the year (2020:
Nil).
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EE - THHEARRAERS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES'’ FESZME (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EERTHAEAZME (B)
(Continued)
b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and b. HITEZ IHTESERITH
the chief executive R
Pension
Basic salaries scheme Total
and bonuses contributions remuneration
EXFHE Bikg
R4 FHEIR Bl & 4858
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TFET FER
2021 —EC-—f
Executive directors: WITESE:
Chung Yuk Lun BEB 450 18 468
Chan Chung Yin BR {0 983 202 10 212
Victor?
Wong Chong Fai¢ = AR - - -
Yu Baodong’ BR 36 1 37
688 29 717
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration

(Continued)

b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and
the chief executive (Continued)

10. BE - THARREERE
FREEZEE (B)
EERTHEZNE (B)

b. HITEEZE FHITEERITH
mE(E)
Pension
Basic salaries scheme Total

and bonuses

contributions remuneration

EXEH & RBRkE
NI4T RGN B¢
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET
2020 k- et 33
Executive directors: WITESE:
Liu Shufeng’ RE R 49 5 54
Chan Kam Wah? PR &7 2 12 1 13
Chung Yuk Lun BE B 398 13 411
Chan Chung Yin Victor3 BR fh A3 171 9 180
Non-executive FHTES:
directors:
Wong Hoi Fung* T g - 1 1
Wong Hoi Ping® TEFs - 5 5
630 34 664

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

FAMBEERTRAHNESX
FEREEFAMEZ 28
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10.

=
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ i

REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration =

(Continued)

b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and b. #{TES EHITEERTH
the chief executive (Continued) mE (BE)

1. Ms. Liu Shufeng resigned as an executive director with effect 1. gEzRLtE-"E—AESA+MN
from 14 June 2019. AREEHITES.

2. Mr. Chan Kam Wah resigned as an executive director with BEsREE L Al —E— LEMA T\
effect from 18 April 2019. AEBIMmITES.

3. Mr. Chan Chung Yin Victor was appointed as an executive BfhRELEE " BE—NELA+TE
director with effect from 15 July 2019, and resigned as an BEREESIARTESERE -2
executive director with effect from 4 February 2021. - ANBERRARTES.

4. Mr. Wong Hoi Fung resigned as a non-executive director with FHELEEA—E—NERANE
effect from 9 May 2019. AR EEHTES .

5. Mr. Wong Hoi Ping was appointed as a non-executive director ITETEER-—_E—AERA
and resigned as an executive director with effect from 27 May L EREEETAERTESY
2019, and resigned as a non-executive director with effect from BAMTES URE-_E—AE
R R0 AAZHAARBERNTES

6. Mr. Wong Chong Fai was appointed as an executive director ZaELEEa—E-—F=H+h
with effect from 19 March 2021 AREESTANITES-

7. Mr. Yu Baodong was appointed as the chairman and executive FEEGEA-_T-_—%E—8
director with effect from 23 February 2021. R REEAATERYAE

Eo
Five highest paid employees’ emoluments TEZEEFREEZNE

The five highest paid individuals for the years ended BE-—_E-—F#=-A=+—BHR_-F
31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 do not include any

—EFZA=+T—HLFE REK
directors of the Company. Details of the remuneration of S AT ABERARINFMES-
the five (2020: five) non-director, highest paid individuals for

FAN AB(ZE_TF -AR)¥E

the year are set out below: ESSHF AT IMAHBNT:
2021 2020
—E|-—f§ —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Basic salaries and bonuses EXE S RIEL 3,803 4,154
Housing benefits EE®EH 1,494 1,452
Pension scheme contributions BRINEFTEIMH K 91 109
5,388 5,715
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REeEMBERETME

31 March 2021

—E-—%=ZA=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. ¥ - {TE 4 %ﬁgi% [
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ FEESZM: (5)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Five highest paid employees’ emoluments IeemHEEZME (&)
(Continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid individuals whose MENTTHEEZIEESRSHFA
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: T2 ABITS

Number of non-director,
highest paid individuals

ESEEREHFALTAH
2021 2020
—F-—F —T_FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 7% 7L 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t 21,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t 22,000,000/ 7T 1 1
5 5
One of the non-director, highest paid individuals occupied FRA AP -—ZIEFHRFALR
one of the Group's properties rent free during the year. The MEARAEEAEGR -—EHYE -HZE
estimated value of the accommodation provided to him is - FZA=Zt+—HLFE '@
HK$252,000 (2020: HK$252,000) for the year ended 31 March HIREERE 2 H5HHE A252,000% 7T
2021, which has been included in the amounts detailed —E-ZF:252,0008 L) 0 EEtA
above. XM EER-
11. INCOME TAX CREDIT 1. Fifehiiks
2021 2020
—E-—5 —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Current tax B ER#H 18
Hong Kong profits tax ERENEH S =
Elsewhere E i [= - (1)
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBERE - 779
- 778
Deferred tax credit/(charge) (note 30) BIETRRIBEE S (i)
(B 7£30) 435 (70)
Total tax credit for the year NEZHIBE LB 435 708
No provision for the Hong Kong profits tax has been made BRAEENMEZYFEILEESE
as the Group does not generate any assessable profits for E{a] & SR B A - R I R 5 1R & B A
both of the years presented. Taxes on profits assessable EHBEE - -EfthibR 2 BRBOE AN 2
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing ﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%.i‘“ %%ﬁkﬁﬁﬁ GIbZA
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. ez RITHETH

EHABEBEEBAFR QAT 2020/2021 £ 137



138

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—EZ-—4%=A=+—H

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The income tax credit/expense can be reconciled to the loss

1. Fiehiie (8)

PSR X AREAERERZ

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss RTATEBEERAT
as follows:
Hong Kong The PRC Total
&HiE [ st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET
2021 —E-—%
Loss before tax B 75t Bl B9 18 (8,123) (10,478) (18,601)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BREEMEFEZ KA (1,340) (2,619) (3,959)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR Z F X 4,513 2,619 7,132
Income no subjected to tax AR U A (4,310) - (4,310)
Profit attributable to a joint venture —MH& & A 7l FE (L& F (7) - (7)
Profit attributable to an associate — BB & N B RS & A (2,267) - (2,267)
Tax losses not recognised ANERRIEEE 2,976 - 2,976
Income tax credit FriSfiiK e (435) - (435)
2020 —E-E
Loss before tax KR R E 18 (78,191) (24,202) (102,393)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFTE ZHIE (12,901) (6,050) (18,951)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 X 10,373 6,051 16,424
Profit attributable to a joint venture —MH& & A A &L & F (17) = (17)
Profit attributable to an associate — BB & N 5 B & A (1,767) = (1,767)
Tax losses not recognised RNERTIAE R 4,312 = 4,312
Adjustments in respect of B HAfRE 2 R
previous periods = (779) (779)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frigfips, (E®) 70 (778) (708)
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REeMBRERME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. XA HAAEBLEEIREGSR
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on BREAEBNEFRARRATEERA
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company FEIE ARG EE51E15,274,0008 7T (ZF
amounted to HK$15,274,000 (2020: HK$98,399,000), and —ZT 4 98,399,000/ T ) kB EBITE
the weighted average of approximately 710,341,000 (2020: i J% 1N 4 7 19 £ 49710,341,0008% (=
approximately 442,398,000) ordinary shares in issue during T T 1 41442,398,0000% ) 5T & °
the year.
No diluted loss per share is presented as the Group had no HREZE S - FR_ZTE-_FTF=
potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years A=+—HBEFEHHExNZEHH
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 or as at those dates. AEEVEDBRTABESEN LB

B MUE25SRETER-
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REeMBRERME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. V¥ -BERRHE
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor

buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
il KB
HEME RER REAE

TiRET R e B ARE a3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

31 March 2021 —¥--%zf=t+-H
At 1 April 2020 RZZZTEMA-A
Cost WA 54,363 14,193 15,340 8,501 6,137 98,534
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE
impairment (18,698) (11,258) (14,410) (6,362) (3,779) (54,507)
Carrying amount REE 35,665 2,935 930 2,139 2,358 44,027
Carrying amount at 1 April 2020 RZZZZEMA-AZ
REE 35,665 2,935 930 2,139 2,358 44,027
Additions, at cost RE BRA - 534 38 1" - 583
Disposals irk (1,316) - - (552) (26) (1,894)
Depreciation provided for the year ERELTERE (1,122 (674) (889) (959) (881) (4,525)
Exchange realignment EHEE 2,334 438 48 183 2 3,005

Carrying amount at 31 March 2021 RZZ=-f=A=1-H

JERE 35,561 3,233 127 822 1,453 41,196
At 31 March 2021 RZE=-%=R=1-A
Cost KA 54,784 15,607 16,676 8,416 5,289 100,772
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE
impairment (19,223) (12,374) (16,549) (7,594) (3,836) (59,576)
Carrying amount FHE 35,561 3,233 127 822 1,453 41,196
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31 March 2021

—E-—%=ZA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % M E Rkl ()
(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
Bh-%E
HENE FER RHFAE
THRET B & Hi RE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL THET THT THET THET
31 March 2020 —¥-%£=RA=+-H
At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NFRA-A
Cost KA 57,962 31,590 30,422 9823 12,404 142,201
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE
impairment (17,868) (24,355) 2111) (5713 (9,013) (84,060)
Carrying amount REE 40,094 7,235 33N 4110 339 58,141
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 RZZ-NEMA-AZ
REE 40,094 7,235 331 4110 2925 57,675
Additions, at cost RE BRA - - 8 488 870 1,366
Disposals e - (1,252) (687) (529) ) (2473)
Depreciation provided for the year FRELTERE (1.833) (792) (988) (1,666) (798) 6,077)
Gain on property revaluation NEERRE 1,124 = = = - 1,124
Impairment recognised in profit or loss ~ IMERBER ZHE - (1,868) - (222) (616) (2,706)
Transfer to investment property (note 15) B2 &% (Hi3H15) (1,865) - - - - (1,865)
Exchange realignment ERTECES (1,855) (389) 714 42) (18) (3017)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 RZZZE2F=R=1-H
LEEE 35,665 2935 930 2139 2,358 44,027
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-FE=R=1-H
Cost KA 54,363 14193 15,340 8,501 6,137 98,534
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERNAE
impairment (18,698) (11,258) (14,410) (6,362) 3779 (54,507)
Carrying amount RaEfE 35,665 2935 930 2139 2358 44,027
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% -BENSEE (E)

142

(Continued)
The land use rights of certain buildings included in land and
buildings are separately presented in “Right-of-use assets”.

During the prior year ended 31 March 2020, certain land
and building with the carrying amount of HK$1,865,000
were transferred to the investment properties and the net
gain on change in fair value of this property amounted to

SAALHMBEEBFZETEFZ LME
REEB2IRNERREEE] -

HE_ZTE-_ZF=-A=+—HI1tt—
F[E R EA1,8650008 TR A T
T REFEEREYE BZME
B AR EEE) N F 1,012,000 7T

HK$1,012,000 (comprising the gain on charge in fair value (BREAAEES 2 UWEE1,124,000/8
of HK$1,124,000 less attributable deferred tax liabilities of JU R FE 1 3R FE B IE & 5112,00008 7T )
HK$112,000) was included in asset revaluation reserve. STAEBEEHREE-

During the prior year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had
pledged part of its land and buildings with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$16,000,000 to secure the

Group's borrowings.

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

HE-_Z-_ZEF=-A=+—HItE
—5E AEECHEAEEEED
16,000,000/ JT B9 &B 10 - Hb REF - DA
S AN E A E K

14. EHEESE

Leased
Leasehold Leased motor
land properties vehicles Total
HELH HEYME HERE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET TET
(note a) (note b)
(FfsEa) (P3EDb)
As at 31 March 2021 R-B=-—%
=HA=+-—H
Carrying amount FREE 21,269 1,599 = 22,868
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-%f
=HA=+-—H
Carrying amount RHEE 20,366 21 = 20,387
For the year ended BE-F=-—%&
31 March 2021 ZA=+—-HLEEE
Acquisition of a subsidiary i — I E 2 A
(note 35) (Fft£35) - 1,776 - 1,776
Depreciation charge TEER (792) (198) = (990)
Exchange realignment ER ke 1,695 - - 1,695
For the year ended BE-E_EH
31 March 2020 ZA=+—-HLEEE
Depreciation charge TEER 784 328 299 1,411
Exchange realignment [ 5 A% 1,413 - - 1,413
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

14. EHESRE (B)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

BE_FT-—F ®HE-_ZT-_ZF

=A=+-H =A=+-~8

ILEE HFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Expenses relating to short-term leases EHEEEBEMAX 1,752 2,164

Total cash outflow for leases HERESmL@5 2,535 3,412
Notes: B -

(a) The Group owns various industrial buildings in the PRC where its
manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The Group is the
registered owner of the relevant property interests, including the
land in DaHou Village, XieGang Town of DongGuan, with the lease
term of 50 years, and the land in Yin Hu industrial area, XieGang
Town of DongGuan, which has 50 years fixed lease term with
monthly payments by the Group. For the land in DaHou Village, the
consideration for land acquisition in lump sum payments were fully
made by the Group. The leasehold land components of the owned
property are presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

(b) The leased properties at 31 March 2021 represent the Group's lease
of a residential property for accommodation provided to management
staff. Lease contract was entered into for fixed term of two years.
Lease terms were negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable. As at 31 March 2021, the Group
has termination option in the lease for the residential property.

The lease properties at 31 March 2020 represent the Group's lease of
a property for office usage. The lease expired during the current year
and no extension of the lease was made by the Group.

Management considers the lease of assets are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group's operations.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it
is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options or not
to exercise the termination options. There was no potential
exposures to these future lease payments for (i) extension
options in which the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise and (ii) termination options in which the Group is not
reasonably certain not to exercise.

There was no additional lease liabilities recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2021 as a result of (i) exercising
extension option that the Group was not reasonably certain
to exercise and (ii) not exercising termination option that the
Group was not reasonably certain not to exercise.

(@) AEERTEERZBIEKRE HEE
RAEERMN P AN EE BRI Y R
@ (B IR M R505 M 2 A 70 3R 52 9 e 3R
REN® - RASOFETEHEAA
AN B A AR 2 AR RS H e SR
TERM—BLWINELES AL
RAERBTmE i RBERECH
AEBE-RENB-FEBNENEEL
3 4B K BB 9 8 & 72 AT A T SE 3 ) B T RN
BRTEBLET]

by R-ZFE-—F=ZA=+—HNHEEWXE
AEERAEREARREEMMEE R
EEWE - BEENREEMFFHIIL -
BEGRRRENELEERN THBEEE
TR G R G- EEEHE N RFE
TAEHEBRE - AEEEBEONE
BUYBEANTBHRTHORRB-R_F
——FZA=Z+—R AEEREEDE
HERHEARIAERERE-
RZZE-_ZF=A=+—HNEHEYERE
AEBABRAEMAEMBEE-—AYE-A
HRARFEEER  BASEL BIERBL -

EEERSHEEERANKIEER

B =
SEZEMAEETENEERLMN
BAERS-
AEERHERKBHIGEEEAE

EETEEREREXTITER LR
BRE-ZFRREAENTIROANEE
WIABEETENTREER: K
AEBIFFEEHETE NTHENRILE
BREms SEELRR-

RBEE_Z_—F=A=+—HILF
B -HERRBEIMEERE BN
TTEAREYIFAEETITEMT
REZE R TTEAEELIFA
BT MTENRIEERE-
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FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a
termination option, upon the occurrence of either a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances that is within
the control of the lessee. During the year ended 31 March
2021 and 2020, there is no such triggering event.

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. EHESE (8)

AN AEE S AR LR HAEAE

HMEABHREAERBHE &
HAEREARRERTRIEREE

RITTHERLEEER - REBEE-F
—TERZF-FTF=-ZA=t—AHL
FE BELREEEEENS-

15. IREME

2021 2020
—¥Z—F —E_TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Fair value at beginning of year REN 2 A RME 69,382 77,457
Transferred from property, BME WEREE
plant and equipment L34 - 1,865
Gain/(loss) on change in fair value 7§<‘,Jﬂ%)\&%ﬁﬁ
recognised in other income EEJJZ DAEE
and gains W2k (E8) 3,037 (2,088)
Disposal of investment properties ﬁ%?ﬁﬁ%% (10,255) (7,037)
Exchange realignment PE 7 35 1,017 (815)
Fair value at end of year RERZANRE 63,181 69,382

The Group's investment properties consist of two (2020:
three) industrial properties in Hong Kong, one (2020: one)
residential property in Hong Kong, one (2020: one) industrial
property and one (2020: one) commercial property in the
PRC. The directors of the Company determined that the
investment properties consist of three classes of assets, i.e.,
industrial, commercial and residential, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's
investment properties were revalued on 31 March 2021
based on valuations performed by Roma Appraisals Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers of, approximately
HK$63,181,000 (2020: approximately HK$69,382,000).

Each year, the Group's financial controller decides, after
approval from the audit committee, to appoint external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group's financial controller has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation result once a year when the valuation is performed
for annual financial reporting.

AEBONRENEBENRBENMEA
“ECTFEZH)IEYMER R
TECEFCR)EEMEUER
FEN-H(ZE-_FF: )X
MER-B(ZTE_FF —H)PE
ME-RESEVENEE - BHELE
R ARNFEETRARINENEERRE=
REE DIX BAEREE - RES
VEEXEAERLEMESRERIGA
RARETHNHEE AKERENE
R-B-_—F=ZA=+—RHEHMHEE
R#163,181,0008 T (Z T -_FF: 4
69,382,000 7T ) °

AEBYHKBAEEFRREEREZE
SHERREZEINFEEMAER
AEEDENIFHE-BEERMTE
EMENE EE - BUSOEESH
FEXBRE - AREMBHAEESFER
%IEEM%EEi&?_‘ﬁféﬂﬁﬁ%iﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂi
PAEERRREESRETI®-
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group's investment properties are included
on pages 207 and 208 of the Company’'s 2020/2021 annual
report.

Fair value hierarchy
All the Group's investment properties were classified under
Level 3 in the fair value measurement hierarchy.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

15. REWE (B)

REMERBECEROLRTSE =77
#E— B F BN AR A B R M 3988
;ﬂio

AEEKREYEZHFBIRARAZ
TR /T - —FI{E207 M208E °

ASLEBR
MEREBRENEDBEARME
BEREIRE-

FRN TEAALEFERFIFESF

Rz EER BB AR EIR (_
ToTFE)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within DPRERAREBREIR ZARER
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: EHEK:
Commercial Industrial Residential
property properties property Total
[SEZ7ES TEY% EEME 4@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FET FET
Carrying amount at 31 March 2019 HW=Z—-AF=ZF=+—H
and 1 April 2019 RZE-NENA—-BH
REE - 42,057 35,400 71,457
Transferred from property, B BEREEHEE
plant and equipment 1,865 - - 1,865
Loss on change in fair value RERBRZAABEEE
recognised in profit or loss BB (78) (710) (1,300) (2,088)
Disposal of investment properties &R EWE = (7,037) = (7,037)
Exchange realignment X RE (117) (698) = (815)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 R=-Z-ZT#=A=+—H
fEREE 1,670 33,612 34,100 69,382
Gain of change in fair value REERRZDAEES L
recognised in profit or loss & 642 2,575 400 3,037
Disposal of investment properties (&R AN E = (10,255) = (10,255)
Exchange realignment B H R 163 854 = 1,017
Carrying amount at 31 March 2021 RWZZE=—F=HA=1+—H
KBk E B 1,895 26,786 34,500 63,181
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FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Below is a summary of the significant inputs to the valuation
of investment properties:

Significant
Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs

fH{ERKI5 EXETTHRGABR

15. IREME (/B

ARERBR (E)
KRENEREZEZHAHEMZWN
T

Weighted average price per
square foot/square metre
BEARFEFHK
IEFE Y EE

2021 2020
—B--F _"ZT_THF

Commercial properties Market comparison Price per square metre HK$46,025 HK$42,125
in the PRC approach

FEBERDR M5 L BOA TP K ER 46,025#T 42,1258

Industrial properties in  Market comparison Price per square foot HK$4,201 HK$4,400
Hong Kong approach

BEIRME M5 L8R ERENEL 4,201%& T 4,400 7T

Industrial properties in  Market comparison Price per square metre HK$1,638 HK$1,615
the PRC approach

FEITEMF M5 L8R TR ER 1,638# T 16158 7T

Residential property in  Market comparison Price per square foot HK$13,401 HK$13,362
Hong Kong approach

BEBEEME M5 L BOA FF 7 REH 13,4018 1336287T

Under market comparison approach, the properties are
valued on the market basis assuming sales in their existing
state with the benefit of vacant possession and by reference
to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant
markets. Comparison is based on prices realised in actual
transactions or asking prices of comparable properties.
Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the
differences between such properties in terms of age, time,
location, floor level and other relevant factors.

In estimating fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

A significant increase/(decrease) in price per square foot and
price per square metre would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.

RETBLEE RENETIRTS
HEEMBE BRAFVETIURIR
FHE Y2EAMMBZAELR
HEBRB - LBDNERERRR T E
RZERIATELBYEZEE -2
B EFWEZEER KE I
BESELREMEBRZZZEF N

mEE-

REFMEZRARER WEZED
EeEREREBRAR-

BFEIREBREEF T KERBER
m/ (R AIERBREREZ DR
BEREEM ORD) -
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FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—EZ-—4%=A=+—H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 6. BILEE
2021 2020
—T-—F —EFTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHT
Film distribution rights ERITIE
At beginning of the year RE A
Cost A 13,690 1,690
Accumulated impairment REHRIE (1,690) (1,690)
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (1,750) -
Carrying amount FREAE 10,250 =
Carrying amount at beginning of R F ¥ Z BREE
the year 10,250 -
Additions, at cost AR - 12,000
Disposals HE (9,000) =
Amortisation for the year F R (1,250) (1,750)
Carrying amount at end of RERZREE
the year - 10,250
At end of the year RE R
Cost DN 1,690 13,690
Accumulated impairment REHREE (1,690) (1,690)
Accumulated amortisation RS - (1,750)
Carrying amount FREE - 10,250

As at 31 March 2021, the intangible asset was fully disposed

of.

In respect of the prior year ended 31 March 2020, the
intangible asset are attributable to the film investment and

distribution, which was amortised on a straight-line basis over

the estimated useful life of 4 years.

The carrying amount of film distribution rights at 31 March
2020 was to be amortised over their remaining useful life of

3.4 years.
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31 March 2021

—EZ-—4%=A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. R—REIBEATIZRE

2021 2020
—E-—%F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Unlisted associate T E A A
Cost of investment &R 110,000 110,000
Share of post-acquisition profit and JE (5 W B 18 5 ) )%
other comprehensive income HEf2mEEKA 35,736 20,543
Impairment loss recognised BERREEE (52,736) (39,543)
93,000 91,000
Movements during the year are as follows: RNEZEBHNT -
2021 2020
—E-—f —TC-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
At beginning of the year REF 91,000 99,985
Share of post-acquisition reserves JEAE U5 B 12 7
— Profit for the year —EREF 13,737 10,712
— Other comprehensive —Hth2mEA
income/(expenses) (AX) 1,456 (1,154)
Impairment loss recognised AFEEEERRE
for the year (note 7) 518 (KIsE7) (13,193) (18,543)
At end of the year RER 93,000 91,000

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

17. R—REBEABT Z2/E (8)

The unlisted investment represents the Group's 25% (2020:
25%) equity interest in Filmko Culture Limited (“Filmko

Culture”).

Particulars of the associates of the Group (comprising Filmko

FETREEAKERESEXLER
~nA) (28X ])m25%
F 1 25% ) M RHE

—E-F

—= ==

AEEBENR (BREEXERE

Culture and its subsidiaries) are as follows: MEAR)MEFBNT:
Proportion
Principal  Issued ordinary/  equity interest
Place of place of registered  attributable to
Name incorporation business paid-in capital the Group Principal activities
TEEE CRTTERS FREREY
£ R T s B HE ERfAERE IRIELLHI TERE
Filmko Culture British Virgin Islands PRC Ordinary 25%  Films distribution and
("BVI") US$10,000 production in Hong
Kong and Mainland
China
EREXIE RBRIHEE B EFL BERDEANMNEY
((RBRES ] 10,000% 7T BITRRME
Filmko Entertainment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 25%  Films distribution and
Limited* HK$10,000 production and
artiste product
ERREFR A EE Bk LR BYRTRBHEMES
10,0007 7T H1E
Nanjing Xinhao Film PRC PRC Registered 25%  Investment holding
Culture Development RMB23,000,000
Co., Limited*
EREGTAXILERE HE B EEMARY REZK
R A 23,000,0007T
Jiangsu Anshi Yingna PRC PRC Registered 25%  Film distribution and
Film Distribution Co. RMB 10,000,000 agency service
Limited*
IHZARMEZENE hE hE B AR BRETRRERSE
R A 10,000,0007T
Khorgors Anshi Yingna PRC PRC Registered 25%  Film distribution and
Films Distribution RMB 10,000,000 agency service
Co. Limited*
ERRMZ A A hE hE B AR BRETRRERSE
TERRF* 10,000,0007T
5 These entities are wholly-owned by Filmko Culture. ZEERHEE L2 EHEE -

SHEXERBEEER QT 2020/2021 F3k
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FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
(Continued)

Note:

(iii)

The above associates have been accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

On 11 July 2018, the Group acquired 25% equity interest in an
entity, Filmko Culture Limited (“Filmko Culture”), for a consideration
of HK$110,000,000 which was settled by the payment in cash of
HK$70,000,000 by the Group and the issue of 16,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company. Filmko Culture is an investment holding
company which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the
subsidiaries of Filmko Culture were established in the PRC and are
engaged in film distribution in the PRC.

Pursuant to the terms of the acquisition, Alex Film Limited (the
vendor and a company beneficially owned as to 72% by Mr. Wong
Hoi Fung, a ex-director of the Company) and Mr. Wong Hoi Fung
shall give guarantees to the Group that the consolidated profit of
Filmko Culture and its subsidiaries for each of the three years ended
31 March 2021 shall not be less than HK$40 million (the “Guaranteed
Profit”) and that any shortfall between the actual profits for these
years and the guaranteed profit shall be compensated by the vendor.
The directors of the Company are of the view that as the recoverability
of the shortfall compensation, if any which are ultimately materialised,
is uncertain, the fair value of the profit guarantee given by the vendor
is insignificant and such profit guarantee has not been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. Mr. Wong Hoi Fung, as a
guarantor, shall guarantee by way of continuing guarantee to the
Group the due and punctual performance by Alex Film Limited of its
obligations under the profit guarantee.

During the year, management of the Group conducted a review of
the recoverable amount of the investment in the associate, Filmko
Culture. The recoverable amount of the investment in Filmko Culture
has been determined, by reference to a valuation performed by
an external valuer, on the basis of fair value less cost of disposal.
Coupled with the management expectation of continuous decline
in the overall film industry performance, the directors consider it
appropriate to recognise, based on the valuation of the associate,
impairment loss for the year against the investment amounted to
HK$13,193,000 (2020: HK$18,543,000), which was included in other
operating expenses (note 7).

17. R—REBEABT Z2/E (8)

B

(iii)

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 March 2021

—E-—%=ZA=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
(Continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated
financial information in respect of the associate and its
subsidiaries, reconciled to the carrying amount in the

17. R—REBEABT Z2/E (8)

TREIZBERFREKE QAW
REMBEMNMERESMBHRRM
SIRREE RS AR

consolidated financial statements:

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

=A=+—H _)EJ _‘f’ H
IEEE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&ET FHET
Revenue Wz 86,894 118,834
Profit before tax R 50 A1 A 54,948 43,438
Income tax expense T8 ®iF X - (589)
Profit for the period B A 54,948 42,849
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HEma2mml A (EiE) 5,824 (4,616)
Total comprehensive income 2HE A RZE 60,772 38,233
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
—E=-—%§ —E-FTF
=A=+—Hd —A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Non-current assets EREBEE 74,985 24,559
Current assets REEE 95,270 77,225
Current liabilities mEAE (70,604) (62,906)
Net assets BEFE 99,651 38,878
Reconciliation of the above summarised _F it 81 7 & L 2
financial information to the carrying REBERBERAZ
amount of the Group's investment KREHNREEHER:
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group's ownership NS B 2 %A #E L) 25% 25%
Group's share of net asset of REEELBEE QR
the associate excluding goodwill BERE TEEEE 24,912 9.719
Goodwill on acquisition Uy b g 120,824 120,824
Impairment loss on investment EERREE N AIRE
in associate recognised ZREE R (52,736) (39,543)
Carrying amount of the investment REZEEE 93,000 91,000

SR BEBEEBFR QA 2020/2021 £ 151
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—EZ-—4%=A=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. R—EEE AT ZH/E
2021 2020
—E=-—%§ —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Share of net assets fE{RE EFE 1,319 1,173
Loan to a joint venture FA—RE&aERAIER 3,464 3,286
4,783 4,459
Provision for impairment (4,783) (4,459)
Movement during the year are as follows: FREESHWT
2021 2020
—g-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
At beginning of the year ] - -
Share of post-acquisition reserves JE A U5 i 12 17 s
— Profit for the year 44 103
— Other comprehensive income —Hn2EEA 101 73
Advance to/(repayment from) BB ARZER (ER)
joint venture 179 (274)
(Provision for)/reversal of impairment
loss on investment in and loan to }FJZTEJEETE (ﬁéﬁ)/%@
a joint venture RTF—HEEQA (324) 98

At the end of the year

The loan to a joint venture of approximately HK$3,464,000
(2020: approximately HK$3,286,000) is unsecured, interest-
free and is not repayable within one year from the end of the
reporting period. In the opinion of the directors, the loan is
considered as part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture.

m— A& Q8B RL3,464,0007% T
— T T4 493,286,000 7T ) A E
B T ERTERAREHEA—
FREE-BEERE BEXERAELE
BRAEENRREFE 2 3D

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report
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REeEMBERETME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)
The directors had conducted impairment testing on the
Group’s investment in a joint venture and considered that
the recoverable amount of the investment is insignificant
as a result of the expected operating losses of the joint
venture, accordingly, impairment loss was recognised in
full on the investment in the joint venture. For the current
year, impairment loss on the investment amounted to
approximately HK$324,000 was charged to the consolidated =t+—BLEEF—FE E£RIZEFZH
statement of profit or loss (note 7). For the prior year ended BE#E 498,000 Lt AfRAIBR &
31 March 2020, a reversal of impairment previously overstated (FFaE6) ©
amounted to approximately HK$98,000 was credited to
consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 6).

18. R—HEEABZIRE (&)

EFENAKER-—HAEQAAZEK
ﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂuﬁ ARRAERARE
HELBEERRENA RO EET
Ek At ERRAERAZRERE
FHEAMEBER NAFE REZR
EE1EKI324,0008 T B AR AER KRN
B (KEsE7) - F\ai—7— F=H

AEBAERRZFBET:

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:

Percentage of

Bkt
Particulars Place of
of issued  registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held and business interest power sharing Principal activities
i E BT it i %
& Rt 1R EBE BAEER REE Feitim®l EEEH
BEMNERENE Registered The PRC 27 27 27 Trading of optical
RIFEARAH capital of (2020: 27) (2020: 27) (2020: 27)  frames
(MER%ED) RMB1,000,000
EER N FE(ZF-FF (ZT-ZTF (ZF-FF REREH
AR :27) :27) :27)
1,000,0007T

The joint venture adopts 31 December as its financial year
end date to comply with relevant regulations in the PRC. The
consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material
transactions of the joint venture between 1 January 2021 and
31 March 2021.

The joint venture has been accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

The joint venture was registered as a Sino-foreign joint
venture under the PRC law and is held through a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

BERQRERT-_A=t—B#ERE
PREEEERBAETHEBRAR
PletrEMBRRTIMEERTR
T F—-A—RE_Z-_—F=A
ST BETZERRZIELAE-

SERRREZENUFRSTBR
ERE IR BRREMAF I
&

AN
AERECERERARAIZEEN
BAEEE-

SHENXEREEBAR QA 2020/2021 £ 153
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FEeEMBEERME
31 March 2021
—EZ-—4%=A=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group's joint venture:

18. R—RB&E AT

TRINTAREEERRZHHER

Year ended
31 March 2021

®RE&E (E)

Year ended
31 March 2020

BE-T--—F #HE_ZT_TF
=A=+—H =A=+—H
W fE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue g 8,566 9,474
Profit before tax B H5 A1 4 ) 163 383
Income tax expense FTIS B S =
Profit for the period B A 163 383
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEA 376 270
Total comprehensive income ZEWABEE 539 653
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
—F-—F —B_FTF
=A=+—8 =ZA=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Non current assets EREBEE 20,222 19,377
Current assets mENE B 51 32
Current liabilities mEaE (2,125) (2,836)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (13,265) (12,229)
Net assets BEFE 4,883 4,344
Reconciliation of the above summarised B EREE
financial information to the carrying HAEERGER
amount of the Group's investment ZIRBHREESHER
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's ownership REE 2 HEBREL G 27% 27%
Group's share of net asset of the AEERELEE AT
joint venture BEFE 1,319 1,173
Loan to a joint venture m—EAEERAEXR 3,464 3,286
Impairment loss on investment ERREE R F
in a joint venture recognised KREZRIEEE (4,783) (4,459)
Carrying amount of the investment KEZEREE - =

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report
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31 March 2021

—E-—%=ZA=+—H

19. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 19. MAREFFAHME2EBA
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (MERAREFARGZE
INCOME (“FVTOCI") ANzZzERMEE

2021 2020
—E=-—% —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Unlisted debt investment, FELTEBHIRE
at fair value BAMRE - -

Movements during the year: REFEE:

2021 2020
—FZ—-F —E-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At beginning of the year REA - 290
Disposals during the year FALE - (290)
At end of the year RE R = -

During the prior year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
disposed of the unlisted debt investment (which represents

club debenture) for a consideration of approximately
HK$290,000.

BE-P-FF=A=ft—ALE-
FIEAREHE N EDEERE (0
BFFES) © (B A41290,000% 7T °

20. INVENTORIES 20. &

2021 2020
—B-—%F —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ET FHET
Inventories, at gross amount FERE 25,958 29174
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (21,423) (20,372)
4,535 8,802

An analysis of inventories is as follows: GESTHET:
Raw materials E 2,377 2,605
Work in progress EE R 1,871 3,442
Finished goods RUBK 287 2,755
4,535 8,802

SHAEREEB AR AR 2020/2021 F£5H 155
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FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—EZ-—4%=A=+—H

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. FEULBR =X

2021 2020

—F-—F —ETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables, gross amount JE UL BR TR 48 58 16,518 10,671
Less: impairment loss recognised B B ERBEEE (2,363) (2,333)
14,155 8,338

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally ranging
from 45 to 120 days (2020: 45 to 120 days). Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
each reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

AEEHEETFZRXSIERTIEEL
BREFNET EFTESL —MRERA
MRBRIN-EEH—R N T4581208
(ZZE-FF 4551200 ) - BRFPH
EERAEELR -ASESRGEFY
HABEBRRFBZBEERZFHUNEE
REFEER BHAHRESHSAE
EETHRT ZERLEERAEE
CENEREZEAREFAR W
VTAGEEEAEFEFERAR -AEH
I 4 gt E JE UNBR R AE R B (T K 3R
b Bk E fth {5 PR 38 AR - B UK BR 3R I At

B o
1N

iy

EREHAREERTEH2I 2RI
AR (

MR EE) BRI T

2021 2020

—F=-—% —E-EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Within 90 days 90H & 13,140 8,146
91 to 180 days 91%180H 1,015 39
181 to 360 days 181%&360H = 153
14,155 8,338

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report
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FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—EZ-—4%=A=+—H

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements the impairment loss recognised on trade
receivables are as follows:

21. FEWBRER (&)
St Uk B 2% R 3R Y R (S 4B 2 % B
—F :

2021 2020

—EF-—F —T_THF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT TET

At beginning of year RE A 2,333 320
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) EHERREEE

(BftEE7) 30 2,013

At end of year REXR 2,363 2,333

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

AR 23 KRR E 2 18 W AR KR e 0 4T 40

considered to be impaired is as follows: Ik
2021 2020
—E-—% —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired A R 8 BRSO (B 6,736 4,408
Less than one month past due BH R —1E A 6,021 3,017
One to three months past due BmE—Z=EA 1,398 876
Over three months past due %60 B R 48 = & A - 37
14,155 8,338

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

REHRE B RIBRS 2 &I
W EERLBEZTRAEFER-

EAMEN RBEZBKFARET
RAKEBERHRREZBIEFE
He-REBELR ARREZRAS
ARREERIELRERE RAS
FEERYEBEANEE FUEHKD
HAR DA 2L
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REeEMBERETME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

22. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 22. EWWEFR RIEWKFIE

158

2021 2020
—F=-—%§ —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FHET

Unsecured loan and interest receivables, #EEREWE &
gross amount JE U7 B 48 KR - 21,249
Less: impairment loss recognised B B ERBEEE - (10,120)
- 11,129

Movements during the year FREF

At beginning of the year RE A 11,129 20,022
Interest recognised on loan receivables TEKERERZFE - 2,187
Repayment during the year FREN - (1,600)
Loans written off during the year (note 7) FRMEE R (11,129) -
Impairment loss recognised for the year FRER ﬂfﬁlgﬂﬁ - (9,480)
At end of the year RER - 11,129

These loan receivables are stated at amortised cost using
effective interest rates ranging from 10% to 15% per annum.
Loan and interest receivables thereon will be settled by the
borrowers at their respective maturity dates within one year.
As these loan receivables relate to a number of different
borrowers, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that there is no concentration of credit risk over these loan
receivables. The grants of these loans were approved and
monitored by the Group’'s management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement over
its loan receivable balances. The carrying amounts of these
loan receivables approximate to their fair values.

The loan and interest receivables amounting to
HK$21,249,000 together with accumulated impairment
losses of HK$10,120,000 at 31 March 2020 related to a
number of different borrowers and remained outstanding
for a long period of time. Having taken various actions,
including litigation procedures, for repayment against these
borrowers, management of the Group considered that
the recoverability of these loans is remote. Accordingly,
such loan and interest receivables, net of accumulated
impairment loss recognised, amounted to HK$11,129,000
(2020: Nil) was written off and charged to profit and loss
for the year (note 7). However, continuous actions, where
appropriate, will be taken by the Group for such loans
repayments.

ZERWERREFI0%E15%ME
B AR E AR AR - R E R &
HEEKF EHEHEBERAR—FALE
ZEEMEPEEE- EEIE’\\EZ—HEHQE
RERZETRBERA BWAR
ERE ZERKEF IM*EH
EHFBER-ZEERZELTIEEASE
EEEEMAEREE - NEBEITER
HEREWEREHFETRNERRIE
tiEAER - ZERRERNEEE
BEAABEMEE -

R-_ZE-_ZTHF-A=+—B EKRE
A E U B21,249,000/%8 L& A 2
=R 18 &5 810,120,000 7T B % 4 T~

AERAEEARHRKE K318
TUHZSERARDNZETH (B2
FRREF) % AEEERERAEKE
ZEEROAEERE - Bt &%
£11,129,0008 L (Z T T F : &)
MZSRERERRERFE (KRB
ER E’Jf%.ﬁr/WEEHE)EM%IEA¢
NEIBEINE (KM sE7) - EAE@ B
REZEEEREFTFERIE R (WE
) e

F
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31 March 2021

—E-—%=ZA=+—H

22. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 22. BMERREBIFE (15)
(Continued)
Movements in the impairment loss of loan receivables are as EREFHREBEEZZB0NT
follows:
2021 2020
—EF-—F —E_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FT#ERT FET
At beginning of the year REF] 10,120 28,844
Impairment losses recognised REZHERZBEEBR
for the year (note 7) (B 5E7) - 9,480
Written off during the year F M (10,120) (28,204)
At end of the year MNER = 10,120
The Group uses four categories to reflect the credit risk 7K 62 B B A PO {E 48 Bl A R BR {2 B &L B
and how the loss provision is determined for each of those RSz SR ECERER-
categories. These internal credit risk ratings are aligned to RATENERAT ZEABEERR
external credit ratings, where possible. AR T EINBIEERT AR — B
The information about the expected credit loss and the EHEHEEBEEIRCERBEBE
impairment loss recognised is disclosed in note 43. B & BHR EE M 543 -
An aged analysis of the loan and interest receivables that WAR AR RE 2 EIE T EWF S
are not considered to be impaired is as follows: BRE AT
2021 2020
—FC—-%F —TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ERT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired R H R & - 11,129

SHABEEEBGR AT 2020/2021 FH 159
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. TE1‘J‘$)’CIE R4 R HMbE

RECEIVABLES RIA

2021 2020

—g-—F —E_THF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Prepayments and other deposits BNREREMZS 4,340 3,241

Disposal receivable fE UL & FRIE 20,135 28,392

Other receivables E {th i Uk 5RIE 15,067 5,253

39,542 36,886

Less: Non-current portion R FEBNERER - (230)

39,542 36,656
The disposal receivable represents the balance of EREEREREREASERBESF
the consideration amounted to HK$20,135,000 (2020: EHE-—RHHRBARABEHANREL
HK$28,392,000) for disposal by the Group of a subsidiary #20,135,000% 7T ( TE-FF:
in prior years. Such balance of the consideration was paid 28,392,000/ 7T) c EFRARA A S —

by the purchaser to another subsidiary of the Company
amounted to RMB17,000,000 (2020: RMB26,000,000) which
is included in deposit received (note 28). These disposal
receivable and deposit received could not be offset until
the foreign currency remittance procedures are completed.

Included in other receivables at 31 March 2021 is the
receivable from a third party amounted to HK$14,827,000
(2020: Nil) which is attributable to the disposal of assets by
Gulf Energy (China) Limited prior to its acquisition by the
Group during the year and this receivable is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Included in other receivables at 31 March 2020 are advances
to certain third parties amounted to HK$1,680,000 for their
settlements for film distribution and promotion expenses.
The advances are unsecured, interest free and expected to
be repayable within one year after the end of the reporting
period and the recoverability of these advances is also
guaranteed by an entity established in the PRC (“the PRC
Entity”) which is controlled by a parent of Mr. Wong Hoi
Ping and Mr. Wong Hoi Fung, both are ex-directors of the
Company. The amount were fully settled during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

The information about the expected credit loss is disclosed
in note 43.

el BT 8 A Tﬁzﬁmsaiﬁ{%%ﬁ%z%/\
R #17,000,000c (ZE-ZFF: AR
#26,000,0007T) - BZE KRB s
AR Wiz S (Mz28) sz & EEE
HERBRIZEESERINEERFES
Y18 8H o

R-E-_—F=A=+—H HME
WHRBEBRERGEER(FE)ARA
ARAFERARENBMLEEE
i [m) — & % = 77 FE Y R IA 14,827,000/
T(ZZ-TF &) BZEKKA
REEM A B RAREREE-

RZEZEF=RA=+—H EME
WHRIERREREEEEETRER
M mmE T % =7 #5K1,680,000%8
Lo BRAEEM £ ERBBHNK
%/Hﬂ?fifé FRNEE BRESRFTZ
AW EE TR RPN 2 ER ([F
BEBER ZEBBAITEFLLE
&Exi@?ﬁi(f&iiﬁﬁﬂi@ﬁﬁﬁ%
B)ZBRARES -ZREBEBEREEZ
T —F=ZA=Z+—BLEFERHE
&

itﬁ&iﬂtﬁﬂimﬁ P A bt
e &R A EE T ISR KR
Zﬁ%ﬂﬁlwﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁ

EHEBEEBEENERNEENN
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REeMBRERME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

24. BARRESIANEGZ ERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =

2021 2020
—E-—% —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Investments in film production B RERE (fita)
(note a) 61,164 45,318
Investments in convertible bond  ATHAREH K E (iEb)
(note b) 15,534 =
Investments in securities BHRE
— Equity securities listed -BR LT ZRAZ S
in Hong Kong 5,257 5,704
81,955 51,022

ZEEAREBEFABRGZEREEN
AREFEMRBEERBRENFE

Details of the bases and assumptions adopted for the fair
value measurement of these financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss are set out in note 42. BT EEA2 o
Notes: B 5
a. The balance represents the Group's investments in film production a. HERIEARENEVEIERE BESE

TEREHERENAEERE LA
AEEEREAABEENBEOILTAESR

which entitled the Group to predetermined percentage of income to
be generated from the films based on the Group's investment portion

as specified in respective film right investment agreements. 15 TR EE £ Z A o

Movements in investments in film production are as follows: BEREEREZEHNT
2021 2020
—g-—5 —TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FH&T
At beginning of the year, at fair value REY EBRINE 45,318 -
Additions of investment in films, at cost B R E RN AR 13,523 58,965
Increase/(decrease) in fair value AREEMS CRd) 2,323 (13,647)
At end of the year, at fair value RER BARE 61,164 45,318

SR BEBEEBFR QA 2020/2021 £ 161
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31 March 2021
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

24 FHAREFAERZEME

&= (&)

M (48)

il

b. During the year, the Group subscribed convertible bonds issued by a b. REFE AEERBR-—BE=F ([#
third party (“the Issuer”), which through its subsidiaries, are principally TADBEITHARKRES BTATESR
engaged in energy sectors related business. BEMB AR ERRASEEER-
The convertible bonds held by the Group, which carry interest at 8% A& B F A B AR I AE 5 1R8%H F F K
per annum with the principal amount of US$2,000,000, entitle the B A£%/2,000000%E T 2 AEE
Group, as the bond holder, to convert the bond into approximately (EREFFBEAN)ERSEEFERAE
2% of the issued capital of the Issuer (on full conversion). At the TTAK2BME BHITIRA (BREEBREE) -
expiration of the converting period, the convertible bond, if not RERBER%  ATHRRER (ERER)
converted, will be redeemed by the Issuer at the principal amount of HERBEITARBESASEED -
the bond.

Movements in investments in convertible bond are as follows: AHMREFRESHNT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
At beginning of the year, at fair value REY BARE - -
Additions of investment in convertible bond, at cost A2 % & FH % & 0 - A A 15,534 -
At end of the year, at fair value RER BARLE 15,534 =

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

25. IR RISZEY

2021 2020

—F-—F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHETT FAET

Cash and bank balances B e RIRTTHH 40,078 28,441

At 31 March 2021, the aggregate cash and bank balances
and deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to approximately HK$3,401,000 (2020:
approximately HK$7,574,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’'s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

R-_BE-_—F=A=+—H Hr&EEH
UARE(TARE]IEZES RIR
TTHE B LA R 17 30 & 2 49 53,401,00008
T (=T —FTF: 47,574,000 ) °
ARBTAEHLBAEMER R
i + AR IR A BIHMNE B 12 4R TE A M A5 T -
EERNEERET AEEHEES
BERTETINEEZE 2RITRIRA
REAHMEE.

RUTBESREBEBARITERNEGFE
ZERERMBME -BHERERZE
FAH-—HAE=ZEAALE BFEE
BMZAERER/RKME  LikEEH
EHERS KRN B - RITHER R
TFREROHY EERCHEAEE
REFZRIT
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e MBHwEME
?:I;AirCh 2021

—T-—f=H=+—H

26. TRADE PAYABLES

26. FE{TERFX

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of REREHRENRBNAB 2| 2 E
each reporting period, based on the payment due date, is MR ZERETT
as follows:
2021 2020
—EF-—F —E_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Within 90 days 90BN 3,181 4,592
91 to 180 days 912180H 20 157
181 to 360 days 1812360H 25 245
Over 360 days 3608 377 119
3,603 5113

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 90-day (2020: 90-day) terms.

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

BNERTTRE R —RK0A (ZF
—EF 90R ) NRBAMIB -

27. E¥ERE

2021 2020
—F-—F —E_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FHET

Contract liabilities related to: BTN = IE AR 2

SHAE:

Sales deposits and receipts HEZS R - 416
Rental deposit of machinery B LIRS - 2,646
Distribution of film sub-licenses BITERERE 3,377 4,217
3,377 7,279

The Group receives payments from customers based on
billing schedule as established in contracts. Payments are
usually received in advance of the performance under
the contracts which are mainly from sales of goods and
distribution of film sub-licenses.

AEBZBAEONENNRLHRT
PRINF ELETERBHEE M
RETEZEERENNTARRES
MEAZ AR -
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31 March 2021

—E-—%=ZA=+—H

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 27.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to
carried-forward contract liabilities:

= n’JE1ﬁ ( \g

TRIRNE #iﬁiﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁim
E .

BaWBESR

2021 2020
—EF-—F —E_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Revenue recognised that was included BEEFAFVEHEE
in the contract liabilities balance FEERE B FER U
at the beginning of the year 3,902 7,961

Transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts are

PERERBITANZIXHERIIRM

as follows: ™
2021 2020
—g-—% —E_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Expected to be recognised FEEF R —FRHER
within one year
Sales of goods HEHm - 416
Rental income of machinery 2 WA - 2,646
Film distribution BRET 781 852
Expected to be recognised after one year FE&T I —F & ER
Film distribution BRET 2,596 3,365
Total transaction price allocated to RERDEZE
unsatisfied contracts at end of the year ~ KETA LA
B 5B 3,377 7,279
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—E-—%=ZA=+—H

28. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND

28, H{hFEFIRIE - FESTRVIE R
DEPOSITS RECEIVED Bz

2021 2020
—T-—% —E-FTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Amounts due to related parties FETRAE A TR
(note 40(c) to 40(e)) (B 7£40(c) 2 40(e) ) 19,692 15,319
Other payables (note a) E {th B4 7008 (FisEa) 7,254 16,492
Accruals FEETFRIE 12,076 11,920
Deposits received (note b) BliL e (3Eb) 21,254 29,254
60,276 72,985
Less: Non-current portion R FEBNERER o (125) (67)
60,151 72,918

Notes:

(a)

Included in other payables at 31 March 2020 is consideration
payable for the acquisition of film distribution rights (classified
under intangible asset in note 16) amounted to HK$12,000,000.
This consideration payable, which was unsecured, interest free and
payable on demand, was settled by the Group during the current
year.

Included in deposits received at 31 March 2021 is payment
received for the disposal of a subsidiary in prior years amounted to
RMB17,000,000 (2020: RMB26,000,000). Such balance was paid by
the purchaser to another subsidiary of the Group. These deposits
received could not be offset with disposal receivable amounting
to RMB17,000,000 (2020: RMB26,000,000) included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables until the foreign currency remittance
procedures are completed, details of which are set out in note 23.

Mgk

RZZBE-TF=A=+—HB HMERRK
REERKRBEZRTE (RHE160 8
REWMEE) ZEMNHK(E 7312,000,000/%
Lo ENREARER THEREAR
BREE NAFENRAEEES -

R-Z-—&=ZA=+—8 Ckikse
RERAFEHE —HHBRRKIHNK
B AR¥17,000,000T (Z T =ZTF: A
R #26,000,0007T) 2 & #HEHEH A
AEBZ-—WBRAIM -ECWiEE
AT A N BB SRR PR SE AR AT B T A FRIE
RekHEMBERRBEO L EEKKEA
E 17,000,000 (ZE=Z4: ARK
26,000,0007T ) 4K 8% + H ¥ BN 23 ©
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FEeEMBEERME
31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER STERITREMES
BORROWINGS
2021 2020
—E-—% ZTETF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
B =E TS
(%) FHEAE Fi#ExT (%) ZIHf H FHT
Current
B) #A
Other loan — Unsecured 8-13.2% 2021 23,396 12%-13.2% 2020 30,513
H b B R - EIKIE
23,396 30,513
Non-current
FE BN HA
Other loan — Unsecured - - 8% 2021 8,262
H b &R - EIIE
23,396 38,775
2021 2020
—F-—F —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Analysed into: DT
Other loan repayable within one year PERRBAR
classified under current liabilities R—FREEZ
HMER 23,396 30,513
Other loan repayable more than DERIIERBDAE
one year classified under R—FREREZ
non-current liabilities EfER - 8,262
23,396 38,775
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—E-—%=ZA=+—H

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. sFBRRITREMEESE (5)
BORROWINGS (Continued)
Notes: B &
(a) The Group's other loans, at 31 March 2021 amounting to HK$23,396,000, (a) RZE-_—F=ZA=+—8 A£ENHE
are payable within one year after the end of the reporting period. fth B 5X23,396,00078 7T /AP ¥R & EA AR 1% —
FREZf -
(b) As at 31 March 2021, all other borrowings were denominated in Hong (b) R-ZBE-_—F=ZA=+—H8 FiEHME
Kong dollars. BH BT E -
30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 30. IREHIER R
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FRAZEEHBEBEZSHNOT :
as follows:

Depreciation

allowance
in excess
of related Property
depreciation revaluation Total
B HEmMIE
ZIERHE MEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFMA—H 1,292 933 2,225
Deferred tax charged/ mgae,/ GtA)BRERZ

(credited) to the statement EERTE (KIEE11)

of profit or loss (note 11) 219 (149) 70
Deferred tax liabilities arising MEMEEENRELEHIR

from property valuation B1& (FHFE13)

(note 13) - 112 112
Exchange realignment R - (56) (56)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_FF=A=t—H 1,511 840 2,351
Deferred tax credited SFABRERZ

to the statement of profit FEERE (MEE11)

or loss (note 11) (341) (94) (435)
Exchange realignment BE 5 B - 82 82
At 31 March 2021 R-ZF-—F=A=1+—H 1,170 828 1,998
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$199,808,000 (2020: approximately HK$181,771,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and joint
ventures established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries, associate and joint venture
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries, associate and
joint venture will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. There were no temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised at 31 March
2021 (2020: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

30.

EBEHIEERE (&)
RBESHAR AEEREBEEZR
=+ B B3 18 49 5199,808,00078 7T ( —
T T 49181,771,00058 7T ) - A] 4
REANREELEZSEEARZH
BRERHR N ARZEBEBRRE &
SEE—BEMZHBARES B
RAETGERRTEF A K EH
BER LT ARZSEERERE
ERTEEE °

REFBEEEMET L RPBEAM
RSN E B RRBIMNREE B K
BBABMOREMBR -REB =
TENF-A-BRBER LEARN
—ZETEFE+A=+—BHEBZEF-
BEBHNR R RSN E A e
SR EEREERBRBRBIRO 2B
ATNER RAKEMS BRRER
5% o ZNE [ A 1tk 78 st B 7 AP B 0 3 A
YHHBAREAERRR-_ZEEN
F-A—BRBRRZAFNMADIKR R
AR TR

R_E-_—F=ZA=+—HEZZEZ
TEZA=Z+—H HEAAEER
PR RH A KB AR B AT
ARAEARBHBMBIR 2 KED
BFESEZEMNBENHEMRERE
EREB-ZEERAE LWEWBAR-
BN m A E QR RA R R
EORBEAEMN RZZT=Z—F=A8
=t+—H8 YEELERP H A
BARBBMI AR ERELCHEE
BBEZEREZR(ZE-_ZEF :F)-

A2 8RR A 2 AR 3 A 25
(EAEBLIAR -
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31. LEASE LIABILITIES 31. HEAR
2021 2020
—g-—-fF —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEAE:

Within one year —FR 1,162 90

Within a period of more than one year BE—FETZR
but not more than two years RERIE 657 71

Within a period of more than two years ~ B#EMFETZRH
but not more than five years hEHRA 561 440
Within a period of more than five years B FHREA 17,661 16,474
20,041 17,075

Less: Amount due for settlement within ARt @ AR
twelve months B HAE R FRIB (1,162) (90)

Amount due for settlement after twelve ERBEEEBETS

months shown under non-current AR+ Z@EA%E
liabilities EIHAE T B 3k I8 18,879 16,985
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. gX
2021 2020
—g-—F —E_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Authorised: JERE
10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each 10,000,000,0000% & i%
(2020: 1,000,000,000 shares of H{E0.018 T 2 i n
HK$0.1 each) —E-TF:
1,000,000,0000%
FREEE1E T
ZB1m) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRER -
872,863,684 shares of HK$0.01 each 872,863,6840% & I%
(2020: 606,533,684 shares of HE1E0.0178 T2
HK$0.1 each) By (BT F:
606,533,684 1% & I
MH{E0. 15T
ZBR1MD) 8,728 60,655
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Movements in the Company’s issued share capital are as

32. BAE (8)
AARERTRAZDMT

170

follows:
Number of Issued
shares in issue share capital
ERTRHHE EBITRE
HK$'000
THET
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NFHA—H 404,369,123 40,437
Issue of new shares pursuant to RIRH AR ZHITRRR D
rights issue (note a) (HMizEa) 202,184,561 20,218
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZE-FF
“A=t—Bk
“E-FFNA—H 606,553,684 60,655
Issue of new shares by placing RBRE T BT
arrangement (note b) A (P sEb ) 121,310,000 12,131
Capital reorganisation (note c) BAREA (HiEc) = (65,508)
Issue of new shares by placing MRS L HEEIT
arrangement (note d) Ay (HizEd) 100,000,000 1,000
Issue of new shares under subscription R AR T #T
agreement (note e) &G (MisEe) 45,000,000 450
At 31 March 2021 RZTZ—%F
—A=+—H 872,863,684 8,728

Notes: Bt 5 -

(a) On 18 February 2020, the Company completed its rights issue and (a) RZBE-EF-_A+NB KRRTEKE
issued 202,184,561 rights shares on the basis of one rights share for HR T IRSFHERBRIR G RN ER —RHE
every two existing shares, at the subscription price of HK$0.14 per % A& 17 2 A %% 17202,184,561 Ik 44 AR AR
rights share (the “rights issue”). The net cash proceeds received from 7 REEBATRERKMA4E T ([
the rights issue amounted to approximately HK$26,012,000, after 1) = &8 NBR A 19 35 17 B 32 492,293,000/
share issue expenses of approximately HK$2,293,000, are intended T BRI IR @ IS RIBF L
for the repayment of the Group’s indebtedness and for the general 26,012,0008 T AN EELAEE 2 &
working capital for the Group. The rights issue has increased the BRBEREE —REEES -HRE
share capital and share premium of the Company by approximately LDARARZBRA KRG 5 E D BIEINL
HK$20,218,000 and HK$5,794,000 respectively. Those rights shares 20,218,000/% T }.5,794,0007 It ° 7% & 4
rank pari passu in all respects with the ordinary shares of the RRAR AT A EEAD B NZ B BT
Company in issue on that date. Please refer to the announcement of TARAEBTEE MU -FLHUAAR A
the Company dated 17 February 2020. BR-T-TF_A+tHNRE-

(b)  On 29 July 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement with by RIZEZZEFLA-+AH ARQFHER

the placing agent, pursuant to which the placing agent completed
the placing of 121,310,000 placing shares (at par value of HK$0.1) to
not less than six independent placees at the placing price of HK$0.1
per placing share. The net cash proceeds from the placing, after
deducting the related placing commission, professional fees and
other related expenses, amounted to approximately HK$11,630,000
(at HK$0.096 per placing share), which is intended by the Company
to utilise for general working capital of the Group and any possible
investments in the future when opportunities arise. Those placing
shares issued by the Company rank pari passu in all respects with the
ordinary shares of the Company on the date of issue. Please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 15 July 2020 and 29 July
2020.
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Annual General
Meeting by the Company’s shareholders on 30 September 2020,
the Company has implemented the capital reorganisation which
comprises the following: (i) the par value of each of the existing
shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company (the "Existing Shares”) in
issue be and is hereby reduced from HK$0.1 each to HK$0.01 each
("New Shares”) by cancelling the capital paid-up thereon to the
extent of HK$0.09 on each of the issued Existing Shares, such that
the par value of each issued Existing Share be reduced from HK$0.1
to HK$0.01 (the”Capital Reduction”); (ii) each of the authorised but
unissued Existing Shares of HK$0.1 each be and is hereby sub-divided
into ten (10) New Shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Share Subdivision”);
(iii) the credits arising from the Capital Reduction be transferred to
the contributed surplus account of the Company within the meaning
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Contributed Surplus
Account”) (items (i) to (iii) collectively referred to as the “Capital
Reorganisation”); The Capital Reorganisation was effective on
6 October 2020. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 28 August 2020 and 30 September 2020.

On 3 February 2021, the Company completed the placing of
100,000,000 shares (at par value of HK$0.01) to not less than six
independent placees at the placing price of HK$0.381 per shares.
The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from the placing for
general working capital of the Group and any possible investments
and potential business enhancement strategies in favour of the
Company in the future, including but not limited to investment in
debts and securities and other potential business development, when
such opportunities arise. Those placing shares rank pari passu in all
respects with the issued ordinary shares of the Company on the date
of issue. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
20 January 2021, 28 January 2021 and 8 February 2021.

On 8 February 2021, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with a third party (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the
Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total of 45,000,000
shares (at par value of HK$0.01) at the subscription price of HK$0.381
per share. The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from
the subscription for general working capital of the Group and any
possible investments and potential business enhancement strategies
in favour of the Company in the future, including but not limited
to investment in debts and securities and other potential business
development, when such opportunities arise. Those subscription
shares issued by the Company rank pari passu in all respects with the
issued ordinary shares of the Company on the date of issue. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 20 January 2021,
28 January 2021 and 8 February 2021.

32. g & (48)

s ()

(c)

BEARTBRREAZZTZZEFNLA=T+
ARBREBAFAE LRBAOFIIRESR
ARAREEMEARNER BENTSIE:
(VEATHEREETHEAROHDHZ
RA0.09B LM AARBERITEREE
BOITBITHMRAERG ([(BERK])ME
BERER0. 1B TTEIRZESR0.01E T ([#1
Bml) #HmEEREETREREROS
HERO0.1E LBl B £0.0178 T ([ & A H|
Bl (NVEREECIEIT ZATEERE K
BB BERGEFRARTORERE
B0.01B TTHIFT IR (AR #4811 ) : (iii)
BRBIREENERBEREARNTHA
BHEFP(ERERBRE (— ﬂﬂ FR
auE) ) ([BARBERL]) ((WEI)EA
mﬁ%fﬁ$ﬁ@” §$E@W474
f$+ﬂ/\5$xﬁ( BL2HARTAEA
ZENAZFTNBEZZZZFH
A=+BzR%-

—Zg=

RZB-—F-_A=A ARARETKRA
NAORARNBBULABRA AR EEESRERN
0.381% 7t & 100,000,000/% & % E {80.01
BIHED - AR BEBEE FRMEK
HERRAEFAEE-REEESRHEKE
FRARB ZEM A EHRE REEEGE
BERE BEETRAERAERERR
AREHBREFAREMCEEEBER
ZERERMNERRBNEITE BB BT
MEBRERTEHEAREHGE 2
MARRAMA—FT_—F—HA_-1+H"
—E-—HF-A-+N\BHRZEZ—F=
ANBZR&E-

RZEZ—FZANH XARAHA
FREBADTLREGH ?Fﬁt
ABBRHGRERBRARARBIEER
RREE iﬂx0381/%7tﬁﬂé%&§’*ﬁ:./\
45,000,0004% & A% E 1E0.01% 7T 89 ik 10

&y %Fd?

8
-0 8 0

ARBHRKRBEHEAEFRFER Eé‘$
EE-REELELRBRENRARRN

ERAEREREEEBERRE 25
BRRRERSERERHRENESLE
FUAREMEEEBER - AARETH
ZERBRMHERRBNEITE BB BT
MEBRERTEHEARSEHG B2
MARRAHA-—FT_—F—HA=-1+H"
—E-—HF-A-+N\BHRZEZ—F=
ANBZRE-.

SHEXEREEBAR QA 2020/2021 F8R 171



172

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 16 March 2020.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
(i) any director, including any executive or independent
non-executive director or any full time or part time
employee of the Group; or (ii) any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, customers, suppliers, agents,
business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoter and service providers of any member of the
Group.

(¢) Maximum number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme
(i)  Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme as at 16 March 2020
(i.e. the date of passing the resolution for adoption
of the Share Option Scheme): 60,655,368 shares.

(i)  Percentage of the issued shares of the Company
that it represents as at 30 June 2021: 6.95%.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant under the Share Option Scheme
(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(i)  options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any 12-month period
exceeding 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

At any time during the option period in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and such other
terms and conditions upon which an option was granted
from the date of grant of the option but in any event not
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors.

()  Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(i)  The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(i) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company and will not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant; and (b) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

The remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme
Approximately 8.5 years (expiring on 15 March 2030).

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme.
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34. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 66 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents (i) the excess of
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 8 February 1996,
over the nominal value of the Company's shares issued
in exchange therefor; and (ii) the premium arising on the
subscription of shares of Elegance Group Limited (“"EGL"), the
then holding company of the Group's subsidiaries existing at
that time, at an aggregate premium of HK$22,000,000 which
was credited to the capital reserve. The Group reorganisation
has resulted in EGL becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

The contributed surplus represented the difference of the
amount of the Company's share capital immediately before
the capital reorganisation and that immediately after the
capital reorganisation. Details of the capital reorganisation are
set out in note 32(e).

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries in prior years remain eliminated against
consolidated reserves.

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

34. #1&
AEEREERATEE Y HERE
&ﬁ%“@%ﬁé%%ﬁ%%%ﬁz

ABAEHEL2T-

AEEZERFERHEEODRE AR
F_ANBETZEEEAMKEH
BARRZKRMHEERARNRDR UL ET
e 2 B {n EE 2 18 38+ R (i)
RBAKENBLRRER ZZERAT
BESEBERA T(Fmﬁ‘ﬁ‘%lJ)J&Tﬁ

FTEE A% (8 #8)% (822,000,000 T E
FAEARE - SBEASESHEEER
MEARREZENBRR

BMABBREEEEANEHAHEERE
EAREHERNQRIBRAETENEZEE-
BEAREHMFBHNMFE32E) ©

BEFERBHBARMEEZET
BESREFEGARHEYE-

35. IgEBMi B A S

2021 2020
—E-—%F —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Net cash outflow arising from B LA TN & TE B A Y
acquisition of WE T FE
— Gulf Energy (China) Limited -BERR(FER)ER
(Note (a)) 2\ (MeE) 19,957 —
Net cash outflow from Wi — P B8 & &1 /Y
acquisition of a subsidiary BembFeE 19,957 =

Note: The Group has not acquired any subsidiaries during the year ended
31 March 2020.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
Acquisitions during the year ended 31 March
2021

(a)

Acquisition of Gulf Energy (China) Limited

On 4 February 2021, Evergreen Palm Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party for the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Gulf Energy (China) Limited
("Gulf Energy”) for a consideration of HK$20,000,000.
Completion of the acquisition took place on 4 February
2021.

Gulf Energy is principally engaged in investment holding
in Hong Kong. The acquisition of Gulf Energy would
allow the Group to diversify its business and commerce
its energy business.

The acquisition of Gulf Energy has been accounted for
by business combination using the purchase method.

Acquisition related costs are insignificant. Such costs
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in the current
year, within “administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

35. BB AT (&)

BE-_F-—F=HA=+—H
IFEENKEEIR

(a)

WigsERIR (hE)BRQ
Gl
RZTEZ—F-_AMB AQF
— A Kt B A @l Evergreen Palm
Limitedle — B E=FFVEE
1 & - LA {820,000,000% 7T 1
BEERR(PE)ARRA
(IEEaeIR]) B 2 AR ME - Z K
BEEHER-_FT-—F-HAMA
TERK °

BEEREIZNEBENRERER
B W BB BB REIR T © AN EE B
HEXBZn UHEERER
EESN

BEERWBERBEEANER
BHFITAARR

WRERBKAL TNEKX-BREK
Ao aEMEEREZIN X
REAFEERNERERERMN (1T
KA BEEAERRAX -
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. B EAT (&)
(Continued)
Acquisitions during the year ended 31 March 8E-F_-_—F=R=+—H
2021 (Continued) I EERWAEETE ()
(a) Acquisition of Gulf Energy (China) Limited (a) WEBERR (FE)BRA
(Continued) (&)
HK$'000
Assets and liabilities recognised RUEE B B8R 2 PrEE R
at the date of acquisition BENERE FHET
Assets BE
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,776
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIE - 12 & I E b FE YK
other receivables 17,971
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBESEEY 43
Liabilities AR
Other payables, accruals and HMENRIE EAERK
deposits received B iz % (666)
Lease liabilities HEAR (1,790)
Total identifiable net assets acquired BATHRNFEERSE 17,334
The prepayments, deposits and other receivables EWBENRIE e REMmE
acquired had gross contractual amount of WHRIEH & K # 5 /17,971,000
HK$17,971,000. No contractual cash flows from the BRI EEIWRIES LR
receivables are expected not to be collected. B E A -
Goodwill arising on acquisition WehE B A g
HK'000
FET
Consideration transferred FEERE
— Cash paid —BfRE 20,000
Recognised amount of identifiable BAFRBMNFEEN D BREHE
net assets acquired (17,334)
Gooduwill arising on acquisition (note 7) WHEESHEE (H57) 2,666
In view of the unpredictability of Gulf Energy’s EREETEREE B IR AR R A A
future profit streams, impairment loss amounted to FAT - Bh U B A 9 P B R ROR
HK$2,666,000 (2020: Nil) was recognised on the goodwill EE5182,666,0008 L (ZE ==
arising on acquisition which was charged to profit or loss FE) ERAREEEEARFE
in respect of the current year (note 7). iR R (FIEE7)
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. WIBMI B AT (48)
(Continued)
Acquisitions during the year ended 31 March BE_FT_-_—¥=H=+-—H
2021 (Continued) IEFEMWIEEIE (1)
(a) Acquisition of Gulf Energy (China) Limited (a) WEBERR (FE)BRA
(Continued) (&)
An analysis of cash flows in respect of the acquisition of FRWESERRZEERESD
Gulf Energy is as follows: Fran T
HK$'000
FET
Consideration paid in cash IR & T HRE (20,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EHBERENBEEEEY 43
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEDRLFE (19,957)
Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2020, M EEER S _FTFMH —
revenue for the year of the Group would have been H 5K - $E.Eﬁ¢f”ﬁﬁnﬂrtf—§
HK$53,930,000 and loss for the year of the Group would 53,930,000 0 MAE B FE
have been HK$20,413,000. The pro forma information E718 #% /&20,413,0007% JT ° % &
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily HEEREMRTARE KRUE
an indication of revenue and results of operations of BB SEER T _Z4FMA
the Group that actually would been achieved had the —BRELRAEEERATEER
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2020, nor is it Bl R L EERRER T
intended to be a projection of those results. BAEARREAAHTEA
In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit/loss EEETAEENHEZIRER
of the Group had Gulf Energy been acquired at the i il B @i&/ﬁ)gﬁb}ﬁﬁ
beginning of the current year, the directors of the RERMFEDRKE XA
Company have: Equ
e Calculated depreciation of plant and equipment s BEEBAHONVTES
acquired on the basis of the fair value arising in BRIEMEENNAE (MIE
the initial accounting for the business combination WA M BEREAZE
rather than the carrying amounts recognised in the WRREAE) TE B WHERK
pre-acquisition financial statements; and ERBEHOTE: &
e Determined borrowing costs based on the funding s ERAEEBEBKEHED
levels, credit ratings and debt/equity position of BeKkF EEARKERE
the Group after the business combination. A JLEE TE Y18 BB o
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEKMEB AT
2021 2020
—FC—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Net cash outflow on disposal of: HENRTEIEZ
WEIm L HEE
- Big Honest Limited (“Big Honest") —E#BBRRAA
(note (a)) (TE#I) (FizE()) (4) =
— Lucky Jade Global Limited —InEIRIRE R A A
("Lucky Jade") (note (b)) (IEEERER])
(MEE(b)) (2) =
— Refine Auspicious Limited — AR AR ([EM])
("Refine Auspicious”) (note (c)) (M 5E()) - -
— Prismatic Wonder Limited —aRaERAR ([F¥])
(“Prismatic Wonder”) (note (d)) (BF3E()) - -
(6) =
Note: The Group has not disposed of any subsidiary during the year ended fad: BE_T-_TF=A=+—HLEFELE
31 March 2020. B b EEmME AR -
Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 8EZE-_F_-_—f$=H=+—H
31 March 2021 LFEEMRBATHLEEIE
(a) Disposal of Big Honest (a) HEEMH
On 16 October 2020, the Group disposed of 100% equity RZZE_ZF+ATRA KE
interest in a subsidiary, Big Honest, for an aggregate BEARReREMBTLE —
cash consideration of approximately HK$1. Big Honest is M BARERNEBRE-E
principally engaged in provision of corporate services. BEBRERECERS -
An analysis of assets and liabilities over which control HEREZNENEERABENS
was lost: #r
HK$'000
FHT
Cash and bank balances Re MRTTHEHS 4
Other payables, accruals and H th B <P FRIE -~ BT IE K&
deposit received Elize (86)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEAEFE (82)
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEKMBAT (&)
Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended gFE—_T-_—4$=H=+-—H
31 March 2021 (Continued) IFTEENHMBEASIHESIE
(%)
(a) Disposal of Big Honest (Continued) (a) HEEH (&)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR ZWE
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration ReRE -
Net liabilities disposed of EHEBEFE 82
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (note 6) HEME ARz Yas (HEE6) 82
An analysis of cash flows from the disposal of HEWBARZHRERES TN
subsidiaries as follows: T
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration received EHRHREKE =
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHER® RIBITALR )
Net cash outflow from disposal HEMBAR 2RE ML FHE
of subsidiary (4)
(b) Disposal of Lucky Jade (b) HEHRBEBER
On 16 October 2020, the Group disposed of 100% RZZE_ZTF+A+H AE
equity interest in a subsidiary, Lucky Jade, for an ELRBESREIETHE M
aggregate cash consideration of HK$1. Lucky Jade and MEATEEIRIRA 2 B -
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment HHERE L EHRB AR EENSE
holding. BEZERK-
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEMBAT (&)
Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended gFE—_T-—4=H=+-—H
31 March 2021 (Continued) IFEEMNHEBEASIHEEIE
(&
(b) Disposal of Lucky Jade (Continued) (b) HEBRMBIR(E)
An analysis of assets and liabilities over which control HWhEirdl EERBEZD
was lost: G
HK$'000
FHET
Cash and bank balances Re RRTHEH 2
Other payables, accruals and H At eI FRIE -~ FEET B A K
deposit received =R €% (97)
Net liabilities disposed of &z B EFE (95)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR M=
HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration ReRE -
Net liabilities disposed of FrE 2 BEFE 95
Exchange fluctuation reserve released 6 18 3 R EE K B i
upon disposal 2)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (note 6) HEWB ARz W (M) 93
An analysis of cash flows from the disposal of subsidiary PEMBAAMNERES NN
as follows: T~
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration received BEHRRERE -
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHENRE RRITES 2
Net cash outflow from disposal LEMRBARNRE L FE
of subsidiary 2)
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended
31 March 2021 (Continued)

(c)

Disposal of Refine Auspicious

On 16 October 2020, the Group disposed of its 100%
equity interest in a subsidiary, Refine Auspicious,
for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$1 to an
independent third party. Refine Auspicious is principally
engaged in the investment holding.

Refine Auspicious had no assets and liabilities at the
date of disposal. The net cash inflow from disposal of

subsidiaries were HK$1.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

36. HEMBAT (&)
BE—_FT-—%5=H

=+—g
LEEOHBADHESE

f

(&)

il

c)

—

i 28
WoE-FE+A+AR AR
B — £ B 5 = H R —
MMBAREIEL 2 HRE @
ReREAET BREE
FRELR -

BER I E AN EAER S
e EERANRERAF
EAVET

i B 2 ) M

HK$'000
TET

Cash consideration
Net assets disposed of

RefE
BEHEZEERE

Gain/loss on disposal of subsidiary

HEMB ARz Was B -

Disposal of Prismatic Wonder

On 22 June 2020, the Group disposed of its 100%
equity interest in a subsidiary, Prismatic Wonder,
for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$1 to an
independent third party. Prismatic Wonder and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the investment
holding.

Prismatic Wonder and its subsidiaries had no assets and
liabilities at the date of disposal. The net cash inflow
from disposal of subsidiaries were HK$1.

(d)

HETE
RZZE_ZTFNA-+=-H &K
EER—EBIUF_HFHEER
—RBNBRRFT K 222 E
BIHERERIBLT - TERE
MEBAREENERELRK-

TAELREWMBARREERHNY
BEENRAB-HEMNBRARN
BERANFERIET
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEMIBAT (&)

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended gFE—_T-—4=H=+-—H
31 March 2021 (Continued) IFTEENHBASIHESIE
(%)
(d) Disposal of Prismatic Wonder (Continued) d) HEFTE(E)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERE R Az W

HK$'000

FAT

Cash consideration ReRE -

Net assets disposed of EHEZEEFRE =

(B A 7 2 Mhas 9 -
37. BB E X ERERZE 5
HEMEAS

AEEHFREEAFEBREDZZHMER
BIFFBEEHIINT

Gain/loss on disposal of subsidiary

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests are set out below:

182

2021 2020
% ZTFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ERx FET
Percentage of equity interest held by RS A 2 A
non-controlling interests: ExiE
Gold Strong Industrial Limited (“Gold SHMEIZEARAA]
Strong”) and its subsidiaries (l&FE]) X
H B A A 45% 45%
2021 2020
—FZ—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ER FET
Loss for the year allocated to FEIERERE N2
non-controlling interests: REFEIE:
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries S HERENB QA (2,892) (3,286)
Accumulated balance of non-controlling R 2% B BI3E IR
interests at the reporting dates: Z BEHAEA
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries SHERENB QA (10,954) (8,837)
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRES A B AR 2 K E R

Z-FEBRBANEMARIMEYHE

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed

are before any inter-company eliminations:

Al Z &8

Gold Strong and its subsidiaries SHRREMBAT
2021 2020
—g-—F —T_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Revenue == 30,602 43,893
Total expenses B X 4858 (37,398) (49,719)
Loss for the year FAEE (6,427) (7,300)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNLEEEAE (4,704) (8,589)
Current assets MEEE 4,927 14,366
Non-current assets EREBEE 66,943 61,349
Current liabilities mEna & (77,053) (77,626)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (19,159) (17,727)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated e (k)
from operating activities EAXARESREFH (3,933) 3,513
Net cash flows used in investing activities X & XEFFER S ME
R (548) (44)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash R& KBS EEYF
equivalents CRA) ./ (4,481) 3,469
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38. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

38. FEHERERMEE
EXBREETEHNAaEES

activities
Bank and Lease
other loans liabilities
RITR
Hih &R HEEaE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 April 2019 RZE—-NFHA—H 20,749 20,774
Changes from financing cash flows MERSTREED 18,026 (847)
Disposal of lease liabilities HEHEaE - (1,895)
Exchange realignment PE 7 38 & - (957)
At 31 March 2020 RZE_ZF
=A=+—H 38,775 17,075
At 1 April 2020 RZEZZFWHYH—H 38,775 17,075
Changes from financing cash flows MERECREZD (15,379) (245)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W i — BT /&8 1 ) - 1,790
Exchange realignment HE 5, 78 B - 1,421
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F
=B=+—8H 23,396 20,041
39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. EEFHL=HE
As lessor EBHBAAN

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with the leases negotiated for terms ranging
from two to three years. The terms of the leases also require
the tenant to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market

conditions.

AEEREELEHOLHEEERE
M (Fa P BHRIMEEIS) AEMR
INFMEE=F -HOKRKRTEX
MPXMERZS IREBEERFTR

EHRAEEE -
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Continued)
As lessor (Continued)
At 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

39. EERLLHE (B)

fEBHBA (8)
RZBE-_—F=ZA=+—HERZEZ
TFE=ZFA=+—H KAEBEENLT
B fE w2 DAl A = 4 e L E
HMEZRREEBELEBMOT:

2021 2020

—E-—%F —T_THF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Within one year —FNRN 2,268 960
In the second to fifth years, E_ETERFNR

inclusive (BIEEEMS) 5,001 418

7,269 1,378
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with a director of certain of

the subsidiaries of the Company

The Group leased the properties from Million Wave
Limited (“Million Wave”) for a monthly rental of
HK$92,160 from April 2020 to November 2020 and
HK$98,540 from December 2020 to March 2021.
Mr. Hui Leung Wah (“Mr. Hui"), the director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company, is the beneficial
owner of Million Wave. The amount of rental paid
by the Group for the current year in respect of
leasing of the properties amounted to HK$1,182,480
(2020: HK$1,033,000), which has been included in
"administrative expenses” of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, a property was
rented by the Group from Mr. Hui, for the use by a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, Mr. Poon
Sui Hong, as accommodation. The total rental paid by
the Group amounted to HK$444,000 in respect of each
of the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

(b) Outstanding balances with a joint venture

Details of the loan to a joint venture granted by the
Group as at the end of the reporting period are included
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

(c) Outstanding balance with the spouse of a
subsidiary’s director
Included in other payables, accruals and deposits
received at 31 March 2021 is amount due to the spouse
of Mr. Hui amounted to approximately HK$18,303,000
(2020: approximately HK$14,453,000) which is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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40. FEEALTR 5
% UL S AR A BT RS 1R R A 36 ) B ¥
ZRBHN AEBRNE PG T
BATZRS:

(a) BEAATETFTHEBEATZ
—RBEBEZXS
KEED RIS AHE$92,160%
T(RZE_ZEFMHAE_Z =
TFE+— A)N98,540/ ;T (R
ZEIERFF+RAEE=—F
A ReERA R ([RE])
HMEWE-ARRETHELQF
BEEHFRERE([FRE]D A
MENEZRBEA-RNEBAF
ERBEEMEMIN2HBESRE
1,182,480 L (ZE & F:
1,033,000 L) - EEFI AL E
BaiRPz[TERAX] -

HE-_ZT-_—F=ZA=+—8
IFEE AEERFLERE —
E’E%%*L‘M}i\$/&ﬂ%$w%
NAIZERENRREEREE
BE-XEERBE_ZT=_—F=
BA=Z+—BR-ZZ-_ZTF=A
—t+—HLEFESFXfRaAe
444,00078 TT ©

(b) B2 EATZHMKE

REBEF-—BHALRRAERR
HREMRZFBERN GV BR
FMFE18 -

(c) H—ZMBATIMNEEE
BZREELR
R—E-_—F=ZA=+—H8 =
b B 5RIE - EETRIB R B IR
CEERNTEERBIRIELY
18,303,000 L (ZE T F : 4y
14,453,000 7T ) ' Z KB B EIK
A RERIEERER-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(d) Outstanding balance with directors of

(e)

(f)

subsidiaries

Included in other payables, accruals and deposits
received at 31 March 2021 are amounts due by the
Group to Mr. Yu Wing Lung and Mr. Zheng Jian Xiong,
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company, of
HK$1,172,000 (2020: HK$572,000) and HK$217,000 (2020:
HK$Nil) respectively. Such amounts due are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Outstanding balance with the ex-director
Included in other payables, accruals and deposits
received at 31 March 2021 is amount due to Mr. Wong
Hoi Ping, the ex-director of the Company, amounted
to HK$Nil (2020: HK$294,000) which is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Outstanding balance with an entity related
to the ex-director of the Company

Included in other receivables is the advance to the PRC
entity amounted to HK$Nil (2020: HK$691,000) which
is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
Mr. Wong Hoi Ping is the ex-director of the Company.
His mother is beneficially interested in this PRC entity.
This advance was fully settled during the year ended
31 March 2021.

40. FAEANTRXS (&)
@ RMBATEE 2R

(e)

()

R_EBE-_—F=HA=+—8"
HMEMNRIE B REBERE
Wike RAEEBENARAE
THEBARIESERKELER
Zheng Jian Xiong%t &£ Z KB 5
A1,172,0008 T (Z 2 =& F:
572,000 7T ) }&217,000% 7T (=
ETF-EBT) AHEEMNK
BREER 2ERKRERER-

HEEREZREESLR
RZB-Z—F=A=+—H0 H
fib & 5 3078 - B R FUE R B UUR
CERRBEENARANESELS
FhREZHRESET(ZEZE
& :1294,000 L) Z A IE A E
B 2B RIEEREE-

MAATHEEHBAZE
B2 REELSR
HihIRIBERERFEE R R
REBT(ZF T F:691,000
BL)  HAEEER THEREA
BEREE-TBFEREEAR
AAIES HYHERNBHETEE
BB EEREE ZRARERE
E-E-—F=ZA=+—HI#HF
EREEE-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(g) Compensation of key management

(h)

personnel of the Group

40. FAEANTRXS (&)
(9) g%z%%ﬂxéz@m

2021 2020

—F-—F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Short term employee benefits REEEEN 7,799 7,725

Post-employment benefits RRTER 157 195
Total compensation paid and MEEERAEXMNR

payable to key management FEf 2 Bl & 4858
personnel 7,956 7,920

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Disposal of a property with a close family
member of a director of certain of the
subsidiaries of the Company

During the year, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company disposed of its investment properties to
Power Keen (Hong Kong) Limited ("Power Keen") for a
consideration of approximately HK$16 million. Ms. Hui
Sze Man, the daughter of Mr. Hui Leung Wah (a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company), is the beneficial
owner of Power Keen.

The Group leased back the property as short term lease
from Power Keen for a monthly rental of HK$45,000. The
amounts of rental paid by the Group to Power Keen for
the current year in respect of leasing of the property
amounted to HK$270,000, which has been included in
"administrative expenses” of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

The related party transactions as set out in (a), (b), (c), (d)
and (h) above also constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

(h)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. BEHEI 2T R

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBERR SFeRIECREA
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as LU
follows:
2021 —E-—%
Financial assets cREE
Financial

assets at fair
value through Financial assets at

profit or loss amortised cost Total
BARE
dAERZ REHE R
SREE HEZEREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FERT
Trade receivables JE IR 3R - 14,155 14,155
Loan and interest receivables W E R EKF S - - -
Financial assets included in prepayments, STABMHIE R REM
deposits and other receivables BBz CREE - 37,903 37,903
Financial asset at fair value through ROAEFAERZ e REE
profit or loss 81,955 - 81,955
Cash and cash equivalents BekAeEEN - 40,078 40,078
81,955 92,136 174,091
Financial liabilities cWMAas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REHER A
IRz &R & 15
HK$'000
THERT
Trade payables FEASBR 3R 3,603
Financial liabilities included in other FTAE AL FIE  EETRUA R
payables, accruals and deposits received BliEe s eRBE 48,198
Lease liabilities HEAE 20,041
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ~ FFBRIT R EMEE 23,396
95,238
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FEeEMBEERME
31 March 2021
—EZ-—4%=A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

41. BERNEIsZ2E&M T A (£)

2020 —E-Tx
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets at fair ~ Financial assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BARE
FABREZ R A
SHEE HEZERAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET TR
Trade receivables JE U BR 3K = 8,338 8,338
Loan and interest receivables R E Z R B A & = 11,129 11,129
Financial assets included in prepayments, STABMRIE R REM
deposits and other receivables BB CREE = 34,067 34,067
Financial asset at fair value through BROAEFAERZeREE
profit or loss 51,022 = 51,022
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESED - 28 441 28,441
51,022 81,975 132,997
Financial liabilities cRasE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RE KA
Rz 2R AR
HK$'000
FET
Trade payables BT BRI 5,113
Financial liabilities included in other FT A M BT RRIB - JEETRUIE R
payables, accruals and deposits received Bl zomAas 61,065
Lease liabilities HEAE 17,075
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ~ sFEBRIT R EMEE 38,775
122,028
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REeEMBERETME

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. ﬁEﬂIHZ’AﬁE&/AﬁE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS & &

The Group's finance team headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The finance team reports directly to the financial controller.
At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial controller.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings as at 31 March 2021 was assessed
to be insignificant.

Financial assets measured at fair value
The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss are based on quoted market prices.

The fair values of investments in film production has been
calculated by discounting the cash flow to capture the present
value of the expected future economic benefits to be derived
from the investment, based on an appropriate discount rate.

The fair values of convertible bonds has been calculated by
discounting the cash flow to capture the present value of the
expected future economic benefits to be derived from the
convertible bonds, based on an appropriate discount rate.

AEENMBRERE 2B NER
EETERMIARNAEAEZHRRR
BRF -MBNEAERAMGEEER-
REREEH UHNESITERT
AZEBEEDYEFHETMAIE
BWABE - HELYBEEEN I
fEHEBRENERIBTRRESSE
FETMRT R AEPHRFEY
FEERER -

TRMEERABZARNEBERZERT
ARNBERENEMRS (FERERE
BUHRE)RAIRBZ SR fG&T
NRAERRBATERRR:

R-E-_—F=A=+—B X5H
A2 BRITEREMEE ZENR
A S TEKX

BRAREREBEZEREE
BARER ARG EHREREZ
RABETDERTIGREHE -

EYNERAZ AR BB RS
B3 K Y530 & i B B IR DAA8 1196 6 3
188 B B A 2 TRER R AR AR BRI 2% 2 B
CUHES

ABRBEZF 2 ARENERREER
BEREREREBRUAFTLEE B TR
BESHEEZERRREEMEZ
BEMHE-
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FEMBEEERME
31 March 2021
—EZ-—4%=A=+—H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

As at As at

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
R-®--F R-B-¥F
ZA=+-8 =A=t+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT

hierarchy

Fair value

AREER

EMTAZARERARE
B (45)
AREER

TREHUIMNEEZESREEAN
BEONER (FH = EERMEHER
M8 ABUR)

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

EEKHREREAKRE

Investments in securities (equity
securities listed in Hong Kong)

BHRE (BRLMZBRAER)

Investments in film production

BYRIERR

Investments in convertible bond

TRREFRE

Level 1
ERE

5,257 5,704

Level 3
E3

61,164 45,318

Level 3
F3

15,534 -

Valuation technique:

(EEE YK
Quoted bid prices in an active market
ERTISMEEAEB

Valuation technique:

(EEE YK
Discounted cashflow
BRRENE

Key unobservable inputs:
Basis of selection for the comparable
films, discount rate and the underlying
cash flows, in particular future revenue
of the films

BRIITBERGANE:
BRERBEY AL RAXRIEH
Beng LAREZMARKES

Valuation technique:

(EEE YK

Discounted cashflow

ERBENE

Key unobservable inputs:
Discount rate and future cash inflow

BRITBERGANE:
BEXRARRAERA
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. 2 THRAZAR{ERARE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) B (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREBEER (&)
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value EIW N R IBEEE Z HEE
measurement
Investments Investments
in film in convertible
production bond Total
AR &%
ERRERE "E&E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NEFEMA—H = = =
Additions NE 58,965 - 58,965
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss  RERER 2 ALE
EiE (13,647) - (13,647)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2020 RZZ-NEFE=A
=+t—HBk
“TCFF
mA—H 45,318 - 45,318
Additions NE 13,523 15,534 29,057
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REBZERZ ALE
Y& 2,323 - 2,323
At 31 March 2021 RWZE-Z—F
ER=Er—E 61,164 15,534 76,698
(@) During the current year and the prior year, there were (a) RAEERLFI—EE 20&E

rEBBEZAREFELER

no transfers of fair value measurements between Level

1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for EMEEG A S EE
both financial assets and financial liabilities. INER: e X1 E

(b)  Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss amounting to b)) REBEZERZAAEK:ZF
HK$2,323,000 relates to investments in film production 2 323,000 TEHEAFEEXRESH
held at the end of the current year. Fair value gain on HESR I e B2 RE

BREZRARERBEWMEFTATE
i A B eas | (Bf3E6) o

WHBRAABEFENEREER

investments in film production notes is included in
"other income and gains” (note 6).

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not

measured at fair value:

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
approximate their fair value. The fair value, which included in
Level 3 category, have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing model based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the
discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

cTRMaes:

EERRBBHA ARG E’J%ﬁﬂﬁé
ke RAERAQRAERSE
FAEIRBHA MEE*E}J*HEEEEEE\
MEDPMZAREBEAETE &A
BRZBWABBRRUHFHEER
P ) BEIR &K o
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. R GEE EHERBE

194

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, loan and interest receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables, accruals and
deposits received, lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
in a timely and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Most of the Group's sales were denominated in United
States dollars while expenditures incurred in the operations
of manufacturing plants and capital expenditures were
denominated in RMB. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. Management closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will further consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

AEENTESH T ABERIARR
e W B R K UM B - B A TR RIA
ZEMEE RANEBFABRREZE
REE RekREFED BHK
TR AEMBENRIA B REARE
WreseeRBBE HEAEBERE
RITLEMEE - ZEFSRTANF
FHREREAAMNE EZ2FEMTA
FRNAReREM SRR (B¥RE
MR E R R EAMERRR)  EERR
KREE SRR &M% SRR
REN TN -AEEEEEERILE
RZERBUABREEAYEEEE
Cio

oI BE =1 B

AEEEHRZEEER ZFRER
TTREEEMIRZEMET A
EREEMELE AEEXBHOHE
RETIE MEERFEEFMEL
AXRERFAXTDAARKESIE K
SEBEBALEBRAIINEEPBER-E
BEEIRYERIINERR YREF
BRE—SERBEPERIMNERR -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group's loss before tax and the Group's equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

43. ggmm%fzm%;ﬂm%

W=
SMEERR B (#48)
TERETRBEAREMBHMEH
HETE MARBEXAREHRE
BEHZ2BERT NEEKRRAIEIR
RAEEER (HEBEERBER
AREHRES) 2 HRE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease) in
RMB rate before tax equity*
N BRBiA
Ext#H EEEm i
(TFi) () i, (D)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET TET
2021 —B--%
If Hong Kong dollar weakens BT EARBEE
against RMB 10 (3,794) (3,794)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens WETLARSHE
against RMB (10) 3,794 3,794
2020 —EC-FE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens WETHAARERE
against RMB 5 (2,332 (2,332
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens WETELAREHE
against RMB (5) 2,332 2,332

* Excluding retained profits

* TEREREEN
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

43. BHEREEBEHNE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

196

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL. For equity
securities measured at FVTPL quoted on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, management of the Group manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The management monitors the price risk
by timely review of investment portfolio and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 1, the sensitivity rate is
maintained at 20% in current year.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
20% (2020: 20%) higher/lower, the post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 March 2021 would decrease/increase by
HK$1,051,000 (2020: decrease/increase by HK$1,141,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of equity investments at
FVTPL.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

AEBRERERARAREF AR
a2 BN 58 25 T T b AR AR (B A8 L o
RRERBBMEIZAARDAREN
BARBEFABRZRAEZESME
AEEERERAER —ERATRRA
R REHAERILERR - EEE
FREBRREASEZEERRER
I #5E BN HEER LR ERE -

FREDWDREBENRE BHAE S
ZEAERRARMEE - O BRF1
MzBAREFENRAEFGRE
DMME AFEHRRELRER D
20% °

WSS T AEK A TB20% (=
TTF:20%)  AEE-ZT = —
FZAZ+-—"BLEEZRBERS
BEeRARARBEFABRE ZK
BEREZARBEEE ML, N
1,051,000 (ZE-TF : JJd i
Hn1,141,0005& 7T ) °

S & E b
AEREHEERTAEERHERIFZ
FE=ZFTRBEEALTETRS -AEH
ZHREGMAERREENETERL
EE - HARBEERERF LN
AEBERBEERBUGRARE B
SEZZEERARIAEK-

AEHEMEREE (BRAS MR
EEEMURFABNRE B2 R
HitEWHEZSREE) ZEER
RRAXGHTZREESE RKER
BERZEILAZE@E-
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables, loan and interest receivables,
other receivables and deposits

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses for trade receivables
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the loss
allowance for trade receivables was determined as

follows:

yg AIREEEERE%E
Egnm<@>
(i) FEWERERR ERERKEWK

B - Ei\ﬁﬂﬂgllﬁl REAREZESE
FEWBR
AEERBEEVBRELERE
95k 4R T B ML 70K (o5 EL
P YR E A 2 BEHER
BRE)REEERNRREER
BET R

RZEBE-_—F=ZA=+—HEZ=
7_7¢ A=+—H ' EWKE

FOEBEERERE T SEBEE
;"E:

Less than
Neither one month to Over
past due three months three months
nor impaired past due past due Total
BHLR
—ERAE o ChR
KEBHH B E =&A =f8A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FERT FERT
31 March 2021 —B-—-%F
=A=+-—H
Expected loss rate HEEEX 0% 0% 100%
Gross carrying amount  BREIAA(E 6,736 7,419 2,363 16,518
Loss allowance EERE - - 2,363 2,363
Less than
Neither ~ one month to Over
past due  three months  three months
nor impaired past due past due Total
—EAZE AR
REBHIRE =R =@A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FERT FET
31 March 2020 k- ek 33
=A=+-—H
Expected loss rate BB R 0% 0%-20% 80%-100%
Gross carrying amount REAE 4,408 3,914 2,349 10,671
Loss allowance B E - 21 2,312 2,333

The above expected credit losses also incorporated
forward looking information.

ER TS B A T R AT
L
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. R GEE EHERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (&
Credit risk (Continued) 1*E§Ei&§<%f)

~—r

(i) Trade receivables, loan and interest receivables, FEWIERR - EWE R KR ER
other receivables and deposits (Continued) FE - HtEKWRERZES
(%)
Trade receivables (Continued) JEWBRF ()
The Group considers the probability of default upon $EIE§FW%MAEEWH¢%F

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report

initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

. internal credit rating;
° external credit rating;
o actual or expected significant adverse changes

in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
customer’s ability to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/customer;

J significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the customer, including changes
in the payment status of customer in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
customer.

Loan and interest receivables, other receivables and
deposits

The Group uses four categories for loan and interest
receivables, deposits and other receivables which reflect
their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined
for each of those categories. These internal credit risk
ratings are aligned to external credit ratings.

EARH) AT BT B0 & S B
KEFIGREERRELTRENE
meEFEEERBREDSREE
MR AEERREAREERLE
2B B F] BE M B ) 00 HE RS B A
BARM AR ETH R R b
ZRAFM 6B AAEXFHAE
BR-ATHEFEEHEZE:

o AEERAFR:
o SMEBIERFEAR:

. Eﬁ%i‘éiﬁ’ﬂﬁ%i‘ﬁi,ﬁﬂﬂ’\]%
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EEEARL:
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RE1L:
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FNRBERANE(MNEF
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HBEREE
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables, loan and interest receivables,

other receivables and deposits (Continued)

(i)

Loan and interest receivables, other receivables and

deposits (Continued)
A summary of the

assumptions underpinning the

Group's expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
L

Group's definition
of categories

FRERFAENNER

43. ??%HB@AEEEHMH%

1"1%&“3?&(2;“3)

() FEWERF ERERRER
ME HtERRERRS
(%)

JEWE R EWFIE - B M FEW

HELR &L (&)
AEERMEEBEEANIARE
BB T

Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

BRRHNEEHARENER

Performing

KRR

Underperforming

RARE

Non-performing
KEIR

Write-off

Customers have a low risk of default and a
strong capacity to meet contractual cash
flows

EFMNEVRARRBERENGAORERE
HEE h iRt

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk: significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if interest
and/or principal repayments are 90 days
past due

15 B2 B A 08 35 0 &) JE LSRR s BR9OR
EEMNER/%AE A fE”*”VEH SN
&3 A0

Interest and/or principal repayments are
365 days past due
BASKRERFE R HAE

Interest and/or principal repayments
are two years past due or there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery

MER/FAEETAEMEXLTFER
m &R

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less than
12 months. Expected losses are measured
at its expected lifetime

NREANEHER - UREHFERE12EA
ZAMEBE BHERENARHFEMS

=
==)

Lifetime expected losses

EHRYER

Lifetime expected losses
FHIRHER

Asset is written off

SHEAERBREBGR AR 2020/2021 F 7R
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. B EGEREERB R
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
Credit risk (Continued) E8EME (&)
(i) Trade receivables, loan and interest receivables, (i) FEWERR ERERKEWK

other receivables and deposits (Continued)

Loan and interest receivables, other receivables and
deposits (Continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the
Group considers historical loss rates for each category
of deposits and other receivables and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data.

Management assessed that certain loan and interest
receivables at 31 March 2021 with the carrying amount
of HK$11,129,000 are regarded as written off (note
22) (2020: non-performing and impairment losses of
approximately HK$9,480,000). Save as aforementioned,
the Group has also assessed that the expected credit
loss rate for the deposits and other receivables is
immaterial under 12 months expected losses method.
Thus no loss allowance for those deposits and other
receivables was recognised.

Concentration of credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk and the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets is derived from its trade receivables, loan and
interest receivables, deposits and, other receivables, and
cash deposits at banks.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables, loan and interest receivables,
other receivables and deposits (Continued)

Concentration of credit risk (Continued)

The credit quality of the debtors is assessed based
on their financial positions, past experience and other
factors. The Group has policies in place to ensure
credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 81% (2020: 23%) and 70%
(2020: 68%) of the Group's trade receivables were due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively, within the Europe, America
and the PRC (including Hong Kong) regions. However,
the Group concludes that the credit risk in relation to
these customers is not significant because they have no
history of default in recent years. The Group's historical
experience in collection of receivables falls within
recorded allowance and the directors do not expect any
additional material impairment on trade receivables, and
receivables from other counterparties.

Receivables that aged less than 360 days substantially
related to various customers that has a good trade
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change quality and the
balance are still considered fully recoverable.

Cash at bank and bank deposits
The table below shows the details of bank deposit
balances maintained at the end of the reporting period:

3. #
(4
fs
(i

BEGEEBFREBUR

:I:
=
E)

%ﬁﬂx‘i(ﬁ)

EWERER EUREHEEK
ME HuERRERRERS
(%)

FrEEmRE (&)
EEANEEREDDREBERS
BB BELBREMAE
i AF o AN 6 B 3R 8 BUR A FER
MAZEBEARBEER -R®
HHR AR AL EZ BRI
H81% (ZEZFTF:23%) R
70% (ZZEZFF:68%) 5 5liR
BASEREBOMN EMERFAE (2
%E%/%)Trf@EZE—K&ﬁK%
P YAKREEETEFREER
oA XEERREBZE
EFMNEERBRYTEXR THE
BERITFEAMENCHE - BIT
7N & B /9 38 1T U [0 45 B - E IR
B ARBEARENRE ME
ETEHE AR R R E W E ¥ F
FOREE TS HBREEMEME
KRIE °

fRiik DIRN3GOH MV E R IBEE &
HERERNEEE RIFR S
MEFABR -REBEER &
ERRBARZEERTIERE
BE AN EREERIEEAE
PHERDRE R 2HKE -

BITRSRBITERX
TRINTINBERREFENRT
TFREHRIFRE

2021 2020

—EC-—f —EC-TF

Rating HK$'000 HK$'000

G FHT FHT

Cash at banks and bank deposits A3 - Aa2 39,013 28,441
RITHEERMITHER Baal 1,065 -
40,078 28,441
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. Eﬁ%l‘lllﬁrﬁiiﬁhﬁﬁiaﬁ

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

Credit risk (Continued) 1"?@@ (&)

(i) Cash at bank and bank deposits (Continued) (i) MITHELSRBIER(E)
The rating represents long-term credit rating provided rkERE (—HBEERANGE
by Moody's, an internationally recognised credit rating BB BIRHORBEEN
agency. A rating within the "A” category is judged to R-BAFRENETHTAIEF
be upper-medium grade and are subject to low credit AWAR B RF EEH - FER
risk under the rating regime of Moody's. Accordingly, RE-BHit - ~EEHERER
management of the Group considers that the credit risk Z%ﬁﬁﬁw B ERITERNEER
on the bank balances and bank deposits is limited. RAMR -

Liquidity risk B & & B b

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEBRAKELRDESRETE

a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the ERHESERRER -ZTAZEE

maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets TRTANTREE (WEWENR) 2

(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from FMEREBcAARERE -

operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between AEEZERRBEBERRTERN

continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank HEEcHERBEEEML ZMH Z’ET-ir

loans. The Group's policy is to minimise borrowings. G- AEECBRREERIEE-

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at ﬂKE@EA?ﬁiHﬁﬁiﬁiEﬂ%@ RALER A

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual NEEFHE EHAEINHBENT:

undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2021
—®-—%
Over Carrying
On demand 1 year Total amount at
or less than  but less than Over undiscounted 31 March
12 months 5 years 5 years cash flows 2021
R=ZF=—-%
BERS BiBE KBHE Z=A=+-H
Lir2{@AR BLR5E Bil5F BEeREYH HAREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n FER Fi#En Fi#T TR
Trade payables R 3,603 - - 3,603 3,603
Financial liabilities AR ERFRE
included in other payables, EEFEREKEEZ
accruals, and deposits received S EIEE 48,073 125 = 48,198 48,198
Lease liabilities HEBRE 1,736 3,356 25,922 31,014 20,041
Interest-bearing bank and FERRITRAMEE
other borrowings 23,396 - - 23,396 23,396
76,808 3,481 25,922 106,211 95,238

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2020/2021 Annual Report
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. M EREEEHREBR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nRBEEME (&)
2020
- St 33
Over Carrying
On demand 1 year Total amount at
orlessthan  but less than Over  undiscounted 31 March
12 months 5 years 5 years cash flows 2020
RZZEZTHF
EEksk BBI1F XB® =A=1+-8
SR12[E A BARSE HBiBsE BRERBLE HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTHT THT FER TR
Trade payables ERER 5113 - - 5113 5113
Financial liabilities AR M ERNRIE
included in other payables, EstFERENEZES 2
accruals, and deposits received SRAE 61,065 - - 61,065 61,065
Lease liabilities HEaE 593 2,493 24,555 27,641 17,075
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMEE
other borrowings 30,733 8,431 - 39,164 38,775
97,504 10,924 24,555 132,983 122,028
Capital management EXERE
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management AEBEAERBZFTZARRRER
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going SEAERELE NI RERER
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to WEARLE DXRHEEXBERERAR
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The REE-ASEMNEBRME FFR
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from that of the FETE o
prior year.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEBREEBERAZESMERE
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. REBWIMAFAE - BEFHARE
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may REEWH AEE LG HE MR R
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital ZIRE MR RE BB AN EITHR
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject M-AEBEAXEMINARFAEZE
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes RERKHNR - RBE_T_—F R
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for E-EF=-A=+—HLEFERA &
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and BEAZER BREIBFIELER
2020. o
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

44, KAT 2B BIRAFT

2021 2020
—F-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz BEREE 14 22
Investments in subsidiaries (note a) RHB AR Z"E
(KtsEa) 107,212 104,139
107,226 104,161
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEDY 33,949 16,763
33,949 16,763
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAaE
Other payables and accruals H fth J& < RIB & AT
FIH 2,354 2,302
Interest-bearing other borrowings FEHMEE 10,000 20,513
12,354 22,815
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE,/(AE)FE 21,595 (6,052)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERREARE
LIABILITIES 128,821 98,109
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Due to subsidiaries A B /2B A &) (26,461) (26,461)
Net assets BEFE 102,360 71,648
EQUITY R
Share capital [N 8,728 60,655
Reserves (note b) s (HaEb) 93,632 10,993
Total equity R 102,360 71,648

RRABNMBIRARCEEZTEN —
T —FRA=THHERRETE
THATAETRRRE:

The Company's statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 June
2021 and is signed on its behalf by:

Chung Yuk Lun Wong Chong Fai

EER HAlE
Director Director
EBE EZE
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

44. KATZBBIRRAET (&)

Notes: P 5

(@) Included amount due from subsidiaries approximately HK$40,031,000 (a) B ¥EFE UL /& 2 B 3 IE 940,031,000 7T
(2020: approximately HK$36,958,000). (ZZEZZ 5 :£936,958,000 7T ) °

(b) A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: (b) RARZ EEMENT :

Share premium Contributed Accumulated

account surplus losses Total

% 43 i B AR BNEER RithsiE wst

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FHET

At 1 April 2019 R=ZZE—NLFMA—AH 189,075 146,973 (119,500) 216,548
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZERXAHE

expense

for the year - - (211,349) (211,349)

Issue of shares BTG 8,087 = = 8,087

Share issue expenses Rin BT X (2,293) = = (2,293)

At 31 March 2020 R-ZZ-ZTF=A=+—H 194,869 146,973 (330,849) 10,993
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZERX A

expense for the year - - (35,085) (35,085)

Issue of shares BIIRMG 53,795 - - 53,795

Share issue expenses F 17 % 17 5 2 (1,579) = = (1,579)

Capital reduction EAHIR - 65,508 - 65,508

At 31 March 2021 R-—E-—F=A=+—H 247,085 212,481 (365,934) 93,632

The Company’s contributed surplus at 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFEHA-—BEZZTZ

and 31 March 2020 represents the difference between
the consolidated net asset value of EGL on 8 February
1996, the day on which its entire issued share capital
was acquired by the Company pursuant to the Group
reorganisation referred to in note 34, and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued in consideration
for such acquisition.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company
is distributable to shareholders under certain
circumstances.

ZE=ZA=+—H KRAZH
ABBESHEEER —NLNAREF
Z—ANRB (AR ARE K E34H
Mz EEBHRBE2RD ET
BARZB)ZEREEEFERE
REBRBERZAEMETL
ARRIBEMEEZMIEZRE-

REBRE-NN—FRFDA
(RIERT) » KRR ZHARRT]
RETERT DR TR
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45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Grant of Share Options

On 19 March 2021, the Company has resolved to grant
share options (the “Share Options”) to eligible participants,
subject to the acceptance by the grantees, to subscribe for
a total of 60,000,000 Shares pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted by the Company. Subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, the grantees have accepted the
grant of share options on the dates in April 2021, the date
on which the share options became effective, and thereafter
the grantees are eligible to exercise the share options
immediately. The fair value of the relevant share options at
these effective dates is estimated to be approximately HK$50
million in aggregate, which has been charged to profit or loss
in respect of the year ending 31 March 2022. Further details
regarding to the grant of share options are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 19 March 2021 and
25 March 2021.

45. R EHIEHIE

% H RS B 1
RZZEZ—F=A+NB &2
%&Wéﬁ%/ﬂﬁkﬁ%hﬁﬂﬁ
fe#E]) MEBEFEEAENE T AE
E VAR IR AR 8] 5 49 2 B8 x5 2
R B A 60,000,000 B 10 - R R &
%X& EBRAERZ_ZE-_—FNWNA
2HEBEB(AEKREENE ) E
MR ZBERE BBEEARAGE
& 3 BN 1T 15 B IR 4 o 4B 8 B AR R X 3%
SERBHZAREBRFTEEL S
50,000,000 L  EEEHE-_T ==
A=t —HIEFEZEZNKR-F
BAELERENE - PHFBHRAED
ABMA-_ZT-_—F=A+tNBEZ
E-_—F=ZA-FTHHZRAE
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Particulars of Properties

MRFER

31 March 2021
T —F=A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE

Applicable

interest of

Location Use Tenure the Group
AEE

b Bh A& HE FE{L#ELS

B1, 6th Floor, Block B, Industrial Medium 100%
Mai Hing Industrial Building,
16-18 Hing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
HE I h HA
SBEEE
B2 5161855
EETH¥KRNE
BREGIEBIE

B5, 4th Floor, Block B, Industrial Medium 100%
Mai Hing Industrial Building,
16-18 Hing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
B I B
BB
B2 516-185%
EETH¥KNE
BEEAIEBSE

A factory located at Lan Ma Jiao, Industrial Medium 55%
Tang Wen Qian, Xiejiang Town,
Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
hEERE I A
RE™
e SR B SCAT
BB 2 W
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Particulars of Properties
MEFER

31 March 2021
—E-—F=A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Location Use

Hh 24 A&

wREME (15)

Tenure

21

Applicable
interest of
the Group
AEE
FE{L#ELS

House No. 203 and Vacant
two car parking spaces,
Boulevard Du Lac,
The Beverly Hills,
23 Sam Mun Tsai Road,
Tai Po, New Territories
Hong Kong
HE =E
RKHE
=PIFRE235%
LEZE R L Rl 22
B
2 B E2035: kM A E A1

Shop 240 on 2nd Floor, Commercial
China Travel Commercial City,
No. 219 Zhong Shun Wu Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, The PRC
FEERE [EES
N T S [
B L T ER2195%
PIREENEE
2405% &

N/A

Medium

8
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